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SUGGESTED AGENDA 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 


PERRY, FLORIDA 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 


MONDAY, F.E'BRUARY 1, 2016 
6:00 P.M. 

201 E. GREEN ST,REgT 

TAYLOR COUNTY ADM.INISTRATIVE COMPLEX 
OLD POST OFFICE 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 
286.0105, THAT ANY PERSONS DECIDING TO APPEAL ANY MATTER 
CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE 
MEETING AND MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, waICH RECORD INCLUDES THE 
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON waICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE 
BASED. 

ANY 	 PERSON WISHING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD REGARDING AN 
AGENDAED ITEM WILL BE GIVEN THREE (3) MINUTES FOR COMMENT. 
A COMMENTER MAY ONLY SPEAK ONE (1) TIME FOR EACH AGENDAED 
ITEM. 

1. 	 Prayer 

2 . 	 P1.edge of A1.1.eg.iance 

3 . 	 Approval of Agenda 

COMMENTS AND CONCERNS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR NON-AGENDAED 
AND CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 

CONSENT ITEMS: 

4. 	 APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM JANUARY 19, 2016. 

5 . 	 EXAMINATION AND APPROVAL OF INVOICES. 

6. 	 THE BOARD TO CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR'S SIGNATURE ON A DEBRIS REMOVAL 
AGREEMENT WITH CERES ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, AS 
AGENDAED BY STEVE SPRADLEY, EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
DIRECTOR. 
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7. 	 THE BOARD TO CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR'S SIGNATURE ON A DEBRIS REMOVAL 
AGREEMENT WITH CROWDER GULF DISASTER RECOVER AND 
DEBRIS MANAGEMENT, AS AGENDAED BY THE EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR. 

8 . 	 THE BOARD TO REVIEW AND APPROVE THE RFP (REQUEST FOR 
PROPOSALS) FOR WIDENING/RESURFACING OF OSTEEN ROAD 
UNDER THE FOOT SMALL COUNTY ROAD ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
(SCRAP), AS AGENDAED BY KENNETH DUDLEY, COUNTY 
ENGINEER. 

9. 	 THE BOARD TO APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2016 
CAPITAL FUNDING REQUEST TO TRANSFER AN ADDITIONAL 
$4800 TO THE JAIL TO COVER UNANTICIPATED COSTS, AS 
AGENDAED BY DUSTIN HINKEL, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR. 

GENERAL BUSINESS: 

10. 	 THE BOARD TO DISCUSS AND SET A DATE FOR A BUDGET 
PLANNING WOIUtSHOP, AS AGENDAED BY THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR. 

COUNTY STAFF ITEMS: 

11. 	 THE BOARD TO APPROVE THE TAYLOR COUNTY 4-H FOUNDATION 
AUDIT FOR THE 2014-2015 BUDGET YEAR AND REQUEST FIRST 
AND SECOND QUARTER FUNDS TO BE RELEASED TO THE TAYLOR 
COUNTY 4-H FOUNDATION, AS AGENDAED BY CLAY OLSON, 
EXTENSION AGENT. 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR ITEMS: 

12. 	 THE BOARD TO APPROVE THE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
FOR ARCHITECTURAL FIRM TO DESIGN A COMMUNITY CENTER 
FOR SHADY GROVE, AS AGENDAED BY THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR. 

13. 	 THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO DISCUSS INFORMATIONAL 
ITEMS. 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS AND CONCERNS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR 
NON-AGENDAED ITEMS: 

BOARD INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 

Motion to Adjourn 
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FOR YOUR INFORMATION: 

• 	 THE AGENDA AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTATION, IF APPLICABLE, IS 

AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC ON THE FOLLOWING 

WEBSITE:www.taylorcountygov.com 


• 	 IF YOU ARE A PERSON WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEEDS ANY ACCOMODATION 
IN ORDER TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING, YOU ARE ENTITLED, AT 
NO COST TO YOU, TO THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN ASSISTANCE. PLEASE 
CONTACT MARGARET DUNN, ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, 201 E. 
GREEN STREET, PERRY, FLORIDA, 850-838-3500, EXT. 7, WITHIN TWO 
(2) WORKING DAYS OF THIS PROCEEDING. 

• 	 ANY PERSON WISHING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD REGARDING AN AGENDAED OR 
NON-AGENDAED ITEM WILL BE GIVEN THREE (3) MINUTES FOR COMMENT. 

• 	 BALLOTS USED TO APPOINT CITIZENS TO ADVISORY COMMITTEES AND 
ADVISORY BOARDS ARE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION AFTER THE 
MEETING AND ARE RETAINED AS PART OF THE PUBLIC RECORD. 

http:WEBSITE:www.taylorcountygov.com


TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


THE BOARD TO CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR'S SIGNATURE ON DEBRIS REMOVAL AGREEMENT 
AS AGENDAED BY STEVE SPRADLEY, EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
DIRECTOR. 

Statement of Issue: THE BOARD TO CONSIDER RA TIFICA TION OF COUNTY 

ADMINISTRATOR'S SIGNATURE ON DEBRIS REMOVAL AGREEMENT CONTRACT 

EXTENSION WITH CERES ENVIRONMENTAL INC FOR A ONE YEAR PERIOD. 

Recommendation: APPROVE 

Fiscal Impact: $ _N:...,:;/:.:...A-=------______ Budgeted Expense: Yes D No N/A [KJ 

Submitted By: STEVE SPRADLEY, EM DIRECTOR 

Contact: 850-838-3575 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL tiSSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Facts & Issues: THE FUNCTION OF THE COUNTY DEBRIS AGREEMENT IS 

TO REMOVE DEBRIS FROM PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY. DRAINAGE AREAS. 

WATERWAYS, AND OTHER AREAS DESIGNATED AS ELIGIBLE BY THE COUNTY. 

Options: 1. APPROVE 

2. NOT APPROVE 

Attachments: 1. DEBRIS REMOVAL CONTRACT 

2. AMENDMENT FOR EM DEBRIS AGREEMENT 



EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT 

FOR DISASTER DEBRIS MANAGEMENT SERVICES 


THIS EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT FOR DISASTER DEBRIS MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES, made and entered into the __ day , 2016_ by and between 
the _County of Taylor_hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY" and having its principal 
place of business at _201 East Green Street, Perry, FL__AND Ceres Environmental 
Services, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR" and having its principal place of 
business at_6968 Professional Parkway E, Sarasota, FL__, 

WITN ESSETH: 
WHEREAS, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR entered into an Agreement for Disaster 

Debris Management Services dated_January 22, 2013 , by which 
CONTRACTOR serves as the primary vendor to provide all labor, material and equipment 
required for the clean-up, demolition, removal, reduction and disposal of debris so as to 
provide COUNTY disaster recovery assistance on an as-needed basis pursuant to Request 
for Proposals dated __December 18, 2012 ; and 

WHEREAS, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR desire to modify the Agreement so as to 
extend the term. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING AND THE MUTUAL 
CONVENANTS CONTAINED HEREIN, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. 	 Term of the Agreement is hereby modified so as to extend the term thereof 
until _22_ day of _January--, 2017_. As modified, said term shall 
terminate on the _23_ day of _January , 2017_, 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this extension of Agreement for Disaster Debris Management 
Services has been signed and sealed, in duplicate, by the respective parties hereto. 

DATED this _l__day of _February , 2016 by the COUNTY of 
___TAYLOR,_________ 

DATED this day of , 20_ by Ceres Environmental 
Services, Inc. 

COUNTY OF _TAYLOR,_____ 

By: 
(County Administrator) 

Attest: 

COUNTY Witness 
CERES ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC 

By: 

Title:,___________ 
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-----------------------

Witnesses as to execution on 
Behalf of Ceres Environmental 
Services, Inc. 

Witness 

Print Name 

STATE of _________ 

COUNTY OF ________ 

The FOREGOING INSTRUMENT was acknowledged before me this day 
of , 20-, by ____________ 

of Ceres Environmental Services, Inc., who is personally known to me or has produced 
as identification. 

Notary Public 

Print Name 
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CONTRACT TO PROVIDE DISASTER DEBRIS MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

By and Between 

COUNTY OF TAYLOR, FLORIDA 

and 

CERES ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into on the dates hereinafter indicated, by and between 

the COUNTY OF TAYLOR, hereinafter referred to as "TAYLOR", a political subdivision of the State of 

FLORIDA, and CERES ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC., hereinafter referred to as IICERES", a non-Florida 

corporation authorized to do and doing business in the State of Florida, represented herein by its 

Assistant Vice·President, David A. Preus, duly authorized. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, TAYLOR requires a pre-placement service contract for disaster debris collection, 

processing and disposal services; and 

WHEREAS, TAYLOR prepared and issued a fonnal Request for Proposal No. N/A which was 

advertised 011 the Taylor County Website on November 6, 2012, requesting proposals from qualified 

firms to provide disaster debris collection, processing and disposal services, hereinafter referred to as 

"'the Request", a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit "A"; 

and 

WHEREAS, CERES submitted a formal proposal in response to the Request to provide disaster 

debris collection, processing and disposal services dated December 18, 2012, hereinafter referred to as 

"the Proposa!", a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit "B"; 

and 

WHEREAS, CERES submitted IlContractor's Price Proposal" in furtherance of its proposal to 

provide disaster debris collection for processing and disposal services dated December 18, 2012 

hereinafter referred to as "Fee Schedule", a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein 

by reference as Exhibit "C"; and 

WHEREAS, TAYLOR and CERES are now desirous of entering into a final and binding contract for 

disaster debris collection, processing and disposal services in accordance with the contract documents 

annexed hereto and the terms and conditions outlined herein. 
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NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein, TAYLOR 

and CERES hereby agree as follows, to-wit: 

SECDON 1-GENERAL 

This Contract for disaster debris collection, processing and disposal services will commence 

upon signature of the Chair of the Board of County Commissioners. 

CERES will provide disaster debris collection, processing and disposal services to TAYLOR in 

accordance with the terms and conditions stated herein, and those contained in the Request and 

Proposal (Exhibits A, B, and C). 

For purposes of this Contract, the order of precedence for interpretation will be as follows: 

1. This Contract to provide disaster debris collection, processing and disposal services; 

2. The Request (ItExhibit A") 

3. The Proposal ("Exhibit B") 

4. Fee Schedule ("'Exhibit CN 
) 

SECTION 2 - SCOPE OF SERVlaS 

TAYLOR hereby engages CERES to provide disaster debris collection, processing and disposal 

services in accordance with the terms and conditions stated in Exhibit A. The Scope of Services 

specifically includes those items listed in "Scope of Services ("Exhibit A"). This Contract is a pre­

placement contract that can be activated by TAYLOR in the event of an emergency or disaster-related 

event such as, but not limited to, hurricanes, tornados, and floods. The use of CERES's services under 

this Contract will therefore be on an as-needed basis as requested by Taylor County. The Scope of 

Services may include removal of debris from public property; removal of debris from public streets and 

rights-of-way; processing and disposal of debris; preparing and maintaining documentation of all 

services performed including, but not limited to, time sheets, load tickets, materials used, invoices for 

rented equipment, etc. 

SECTION 3 • MAXIMUM CONTRACT AMOUNT 

The Contract is based on Unit Pricing as set forth In CERES's Fee Schedule (dated December 18, 

2012) which is attached hereto as "Exhibit C" and incorporated herein by reference. 
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SECTION 4 - CONTRACT PERIOD 


this Is a three (3) year Contract commencing on the signature of the Chair of the Board of 

County Commissioners [per Section I. Background] with the option of two (2) one (1) year extensions, 

upon agreement by both parties under the same terms and conditions. Work under this Contract will 

only be performed in the event of a disaster and no funding will be available for this Contract until the 

time of the disaster. 

SECTION 5 - OWNERSHIP OF DEBRIS 

Unless otherwise directed by TAYLOR, titled or registered debris (such as vehicles or boats) will 

not be loaded and removed by CERES and such titled or registered debris shall not become property of 

CERES. 

SECTION 6 - AUDIT OF RECORPS 

The monitoring and auditing of CERES's records shall be allowed to TAYLOR's Finance 

Department and any other appropriate TAYLOR entities, or other third parties as designated by TAYLOR. 

SECTION 7 -INSURANCE AND BOND REQUIREMENTS 

Insurance and bonds are required for this Contract per RFP. 

SECTION 8 - TERMINADON 

TAYLOR may terminate this Contract for cause based on the non-compliance of CERES to meet 

the terms and/or conditions of the Contract; provided that TAYLOR shall give CERES written "Notice of 

Non-Compliance" specifying CERES's non-compliance. If within ten (10) days of receipt of written 

"Notice of Non-Compliance" CERES shall not have corrected such non-compliance and thereafter 

proceeded diligently to complete such correction then TAYLOR may, at its option, place CERES in default 

and the Contract shall terminate on the date specified in such notice. CERES may exercise any rights 

available to it under Florida law to terminate for cause upon the failure of TAYLOR to comply with the 

terms and conditions of this Contract; provided that CERES shall give TAYLOR written notice specifying 

TAYLOR's non-compliance. 

TAYLOR may terminate the Contract at any time by giving thirty (30) day's written notice to 

CERES of such termination or negotiating with CERES an effective date. 
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In the event of the termination of this Contract because of any of the above CERES shall be paid 

for Work performed in a satisfactory manner prior to CERES's receipt of written notice of termination. 

SEmON 9 - INDEPENDENt CONTRACTOR 

While in the performance of providing the services outlined herein or carrying out other 

obligations under this Contract, CERES shall be acting in the capacity of independent contractor and not 

as an employee of TAYLOR. TAYLOR shall not be obligated to any person, firm, corporation, or other 

entity of any obligation of CERES arising from the performance of services under this Contract. Nothing 

contained in this Contract is intended to, or shall be construed in any manner, as creating or establishing 

the relationship of employer/employee between the parties. 

CERES shall at all times remain an independent contractor with respect to the services to be 

performed under this Contract. CERES understands and agrees that TAYLOR shall be exempt from 

payment of all Unemployment Compensation, FICA, retirement, life and/or medical insurance and 

benefits, including Worker's Compensation Insurance for any member, manager, employee, agent, 

servant, or volunteer of CERES, as CERES is an independent contractor. 

SEmON 10 - CONTRACT EXECunON AND AMENDMENT 

This Contract, together with Exhibit A, Band C represent the entire agreement between TAYLOR 

and CERES and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. 

This Contract may be amended only by written instrument signed by both parties. 

SEmON 11-APPUCABLE LAW AND VENUE 

This Contract shall be consummated in the State of Florida and shall be governed and construed 

In accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. Venue shall be in the Circuit Court of Taylor County, 

FL; and by entering into this Contract, CERES expressly waives any objections it has or may have to 

jurisdiction and venue, regardless of CERES's residence or domicile. 

SEmON 12 - tNDEMNIFICAnON 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, CERES shall protect, defend, indemnify, save and hold 

harmless TAYLOR, all COUNTY departments, agencies, boards and commissions its officers, agents, 

servants and employees including volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, expense 

and liability arising out of liability or death to any person or the damage, loss or destruction of any 

property which may occur or in any way grow out of any act or omission of CERES, Its agents, servants, 
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and employees while performing any of the services contemplated under this Contract and any and all 

costs, expense or attorney's fees incurred by CERES as a result of any such claims, demands and/or 

causes of action, except for those claims, demands, or causes of action arising out of the negligence of 

TAYLOR, its agents and/or employees. CERES agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, provide defense 

for and defend any such claims, demands, or causes of action at its sole expense and agrees to bear all 

other costs and expenses related thereto, even if proven to be groundless, false or fraudulent. 

SEOiON 13 - NOTICES 

Any communications to be given hereunder by either Party to the other shall be deemed to be 

duly given if set forth in writing and personally delivered or sent by mail, registered or certified, postage 

prepaid with return receipt requested as follows: 

Notices should be sent to TAYLOR at the following address; 

Jack Brown, County Administrator 

Taylor County Board of County Commissioners 

COUNTY OF TAYLOR 

201 East Green Street 

PERRY, FL 32347 


Notices should be sent to CERES at the following address: 

David A. Preus, Assistant Vice-President 

CERES ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 

6960 Professional Parkway East 

Sarasota, FL 34240 


Written notices hereunder delivered personally shall be deemed communicated as of actual 

receipt, mailed notices shall be deemed communicated five (5) days after deposit in the mail, postage 

prepaid, certified, in accordance with this Section. 

SECTION 14 - SEVERABILITY 

The parties to this Contract understand and agree that the provisions herein, shall. between 

them, have the effect of law. but in reference to matters not provided herelh, the Contract shall be 

governed by the regulations of the United States and the laws of the State of Florida. If any provision of 

this Contract is held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable under present or future laws effective during 

the term of this Contract. such prOVision is fully severable, and this Contract must be construed and 

enforced as if such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provisions never comprised a part of this Contract 
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and the remaining provisions of this Contract remain in full force and effect and may not be affected by 

the illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision or its severance from this Contract. 

SECTION 15 - ASSIGNMENT 

This Contract may not be assigned or transferred at any time to any person, firm, corporation or 

other legal entity except with the express prior written approval ofTAYLOR. 

SECTION 16· DISCRIMINAnON CLAUSE 

CERES agrees to abide by the requirements of the following as applicable: Title VI and VII of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Opportunity Act of 1972, Federal Executive Order 

11246, the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Vietnam Era Veteran's Readjustment 

Assistance Act of 1974, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, the Age Act of 1975, and CERES 

agrees to abide by the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 990. CERES agrees to 

provide a work environment free of potential harassment and not to discriminate in its employment 

practices, and will render services under this Contract without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual 

orientation, national origin, veteran status, political affiliation, or disabilities. Any act of discrimination 

committed by CERES, or failure to comply with these statutory obligations when applicable shall be 

grounds for termination ofthis Contract. 

SECTION 17 -OWNERSHIP OF RECORDS 

When applicable, all records, reports, documents, or other material related to this Contract 

and/or obtained or prepared by CERES in connection with the performance of the services contracted 

for herein shall become the property of TAYLOR, and shall, upon request, be returned by CERES to 

TAYLOR, at CERES's expense, at the termination or the expiration of this Contract. 

SEa'ON 18 - CODE OF GOVERNMENTAL ETHICS 

CERES acknowledges that the Florida Statutes (Code of Governmental Ethics) applies to CERES in 

the performance of services and work called for in this Contract. CERES agrees to immediately notify 

TAYLOR if potential violations of the Code of Governmental Ethics arise at any time during the term of 

this Contract. 

SEa.ON 19 - FEDERAL CLAUSES 
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CERES agrees to the following miscellaneous terms and provisions for all federally funded and 
reimbursable contracts: 

A) CERES shall comply with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled, "Equal 

Employment Opportunity", as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and as 

supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60). 

B) CERES shall comply with the Copeland ItAnti-Kickback" Act of (18 U.S.C. 874) as 
supplemented in Department of labor Regulations (29 CFR Part 3). 

C) CERES shall comply with Sections 103 and 107 of the Agreement Work Hours and Safety 

Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-330) as supplemented by Department of Labor Regulations (29 CRF Part 5). 

D) CERES shall comply with all notices of awarding agency requirements and regulations 
pertaining to reporting. 

E) CERES shall comply with all notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations 

pertaining to patent rights with respect to any discovery or invention which arises or is developed in the 

course of or under such Agreement. 

F) CERES shall comply with all awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to 

copyrights and rights in Data. 

G) CERES shall provide access by the State of Florida, COUNTY of TAYLOR, United States of 

America, FEMA, the Controller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized 

representatives, to any books, documents, papers and records of CERES which are directly pertinent to 

this specific Contract for the purpose of making audit, examination or excepts, and transcriptions. 

H) CERES shall retain all required records for a period of at least three years after the State 

of Florida or COUNTY ofTAVLOR has made final payments and all other pending matters are closed. 

I) CERES shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or requirements issued under 

Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857{h)). Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), 

Executive Order 11738, Environmental Protection Agency Regulations (40 CFR Part 15). 

J) CERES shall comply with all mandatory standards and policies relating to energy 

efficiency which are contained in the State Energy Conservation Plan issued in compliance with the 

Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Public law 93-163,89 STAT 871). 
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rN W1TNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract before the undersigned competent 

witnesses on the dates hereinafter indicated. 

WITNESSES: COUNTY OF TAYLOR, FLORIDA 

a..wYncuYh'4Af",( By: 1J!U~ Y4s:z,~ " 

Date: March 4, 2013~OJ~ 

CERES ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 

By: .. )~/~ 
David A. Pre us, Assistant Vice-President 

Date: ;:;...t/~ d-Ol..l 
I 

APPR~\~ 

Offtce of"" COUNTY ~ 
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SUBJECTffITLE: 
THE BOARD TO CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR'S SIGNATURE ON DEBRIS REMOVAL AGREEMENT 
AS AGENDAED BY STEVE SPRADLEY, EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
DIRECTOR. 

FEBRUARY 1, 2016 

Statement of Issue: THE BOARD TO CONSIDER RA TIFICA TION OF COUNTY 

ADMINISTRATOR'S SIGNATURE ON DEBRIS REMOVAL AGREEMENT CONTRACT 

EXTENSION WITH CROWDER GULF DISASTER RECOVERY AND DEBRIS MANAGEMENT 

FOR A ONE YEAR PERIOD. 

Recommendation: APPROVE 

Fiscal Impact: $ _N-'.I_A______ Budgeted Expense: Yes D No N/A [X] 

Submitted By: STEVE SPRADLEY, EM DIRECTOR 

Contact: 850-838-3575 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL I ISSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Facts & Issues: THE FUNCTION OF THE COUNTY DEBRIS AGREEMENT IS 

TO REMOVE DEBRIS FROM PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY, DRAINAGE AREAS, 

WATERWAYS, AND OTHER AREAS DESIGNATED AS ELIGIBLE BY THE COUNTY. 

Options: 1. APPROVE 

2. NOT APPROVE 

Attachments: 1. DEBRIS REMOVAL CONTRACT 

2. AMENDMENT FOR EM DEBRIS AGREEMENT 



CrowderGulf 

Disaster Recovery and Debris Management 

5435 Business Parkway Office: (BOO) 992-6207 
Theodore, Alabama 36582 Fax: (251) 459·7433 

January 13. 2016 

Mr. Steve Spradley via email: Stephen.spradley@taylorcountygov.com 
ErneJgenCy Management Director 
Taylor County 
591 East US Highway 27 
Perry, FL 32341 

Re: Contract Renewal for Disaster Debris Management Services 

Dew' Mr. Spradley: 

CrowderGulf has been providing Taylor County Disaster Debris Management Services per the contract executed on 
March 04,2013. The term for this agreement is a thirty·six (36) month period with the option to renew no more than 
two (2) additional one (1) year periods. 

If Taylor County is in agreement to renew the existing contract, please sign the renewal acceptance below and return 
ft to CrowderGulf. Upon execution of this actmowledgement, the contract wiU continue under the same lenns and 
conditions until its new expiration date of March 04,2017. 

We appreciate the opportunity to renew this contract and stand ready to respond immediately in the event the 
community of Taylor County requests Oll' services. If you have any questions or if we can be of any further 
assistance please do not hesitate to contact me or Ashley Ramsay at 8QO.992-6207 or by &omail 
jramsay@crowdergulf.com. 

.Best regards, _~' 

~~ 
John Ramsay 
President 

RENEWAL ACCEPTANCE­ T.yIor CounJv. FL 

Signature 

Nama/Tille 

Date 

mailto:jramsay@crowdergulf.com
mailto:Stephen.spradley@taylorcountygov.com
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Contract for Debris Management Services 


THIS CONTRACT is made this the ~. day of fto,rt.l) , 2013, by and between 
CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. (herein referred to as "Contractor") and Taylor County a 
political subdivision of the State of Florida (herein referred to as County 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, it is foreseen that it may be in the public Interest to provide for the expedient 
removal of storm debris within the corporate limits of the County plus recovery Technical 
Assistance to the appointed and elected officials resulting from a natural or manmade event; 
and 

WHEREAS, the County has in the past suffered the full force and effects of major storms and 
the resulting destruction brought upon the County by such storms or manmade disasters; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Health and Safety of all the citizens will be at serious risk; and 

WHEREAS, the immediate economical recovery of the County and its citizens is a major 
concem and the primary priority for recovery; and 

WHEREAS, the availability of experienced prime storm debris contractors may be severely 
limited; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor has the experience, equipment. manpower, permits and licenses to 
perform all storm related debris services; and 

WHEREAS, the County and the Contractor have agreed to the Scope of Services, prices, 
terms and conditions as set out in this Contract; and 

THEREFORE, in considerations acknowledged by both parties, said parties do agree to the 
following stipulations and conditions. 

1.0 	 SERVICES 

1.1 	 Scope of Contracted Services: 
The Contractor shall provide all expertise, personnel, tools, materials, equipment, 
transportation, supervision and all other services and facilities of any nature 
necessary to execute. complete and deliver the timely removal and lawful disposal of 
all eligible ato,.",..genertlted debris (herein referred to .s "debriS'?, including 
hazardous and industrial waste materials and within the time specified in this 
Contract. Emergency push, debris removal and demolition of structures will be 
limited to: 1) that which is determined to eliminate immediate threats to 'ife, public 
health, and safety; 2) that which has been determined to eliminate immediate threats 
of significant damage to improved public or private property; and 3) that which is 
considered essential to ensure the economic recovery of the affected community to 
the benefit of the community at large. 
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These contracted services shall provide for the cost effective and efficient removal 
and lawful disposal of debris accumulated on all public. residential and commercial 
properties, streets, roads, other rightso()f~way and public school properties, including 
any other locally owned facility or site as may be directed by the County. 
Contracted services will only be performed when requested and as designated by 
the County. 

The Contractor shall load and haul the debris from within the legal boundaries of the 
municipality to a site(s) specified by the County as set out in Section 4.8 of this 
Contract. 

1.2 	 Emergency Push I Road Clearance: 
The Contractor shall accomplish the cutting, tossing and/or pushing of debris from 
the primary transportation routes as identified by and directed by the County. This 
operational aspect of the scope of contracted services shall be for the first 72 hours 
after an event and will be billed on a time and material basis. Once this task is 
accomplished, the following additional tasks will begin as required. 

1.3 	 Right-of-Way (ROW) Removal: 
The Contractor shall remove an debris from the ROW of the County when directed 
to do so by the County. The Contractor shall use reasonable care not to damage 
any County or private property not already damaged by the storm event. Should 
any property be damaged due solely to negligence on the part of the Contractor, the 
County may either bill the Contractor for the damages or withhold funds due to the 
Contractor in an amount not to exceed the dollar amount of compensatory damages 
that the landowner is able to prove. 

1.4 	 Rlght-of.Entry (ROE) Removal (if Implemented by the County): 
The Contractor will remove ROE debris from private property with due diligence, as 
directed by the County. The Contractor also agrees to make reasonable efforts to 
save from destruction items that the property owners wish to save. (i.e .• trees, small 
buildings. etc.). The Contractor will exercise caution when working around public 
utilities (i.e., gas, water, electric, etc.). Every effort will be made by the County to 
mark these utilities but the County does not warrant that all will be located before 
debris removal begins, nor does the Contractor warrant that utility damages will not 
occur as a result of properly conducting the contracted services. 

1.5 	 Demolition of Structures (if Implemented by the County): 
The Contractor will remove structures designated for removal by and at the direction 
of the County. The Contractor agrees to remove in a timely manner all structures as 
determined by the County as set out in Section 1.1 of this Contract. 

1.6 	 Private Property Waivers: 
The County will secure all necessary permiSSions, waivers and Right-of-Entry 
Agreements from property owners as prescribed by the Government for the removal 
of debris and/or demolition of structures from residential and/or commercial 
properties, as set out in Sections 1.4 and 1.5 above. 
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1.7 	 Disaster Recovery Technical Aulstance: 
The Contractor will provide Disaster Recovery Technical Assistance to elected and 
appointed officials within the County. This service shall include Debris Program 
Management Assistance. This is the concept of complete recovery management 
support where the Contractor would assist a local government applicant on all 
aspects of the recovery process. Contractor personnel cannot assume the sovereign 
duties and functions of the County officials and therefore, these services shall be 
provided by the Contractor through a consulting firm acceptable to the County and in 
the form of guidance and consultation. If we have to hire a consulting firm, then we 
will pass through the charges to the County, 

2.0 	 PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES 

2.1 	 Description of Service: 
The Contractor agrees to perform the contracted services in a profeSSional and 
workmanlike manner and in compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations and permits. Only the highest quality workmanship will be acceptable. 
Services, equipment and workmanship not conforming to the Contract documents or 
meeting the approval of the County may be rejected. Replacements and/or rework, 
as required, will be accomplished at no additional cost to the County. 

2.2 	 Cost of Services: 
The Contractor shall bear the costs of performing all contracted services hereunder, 
as directed by the County, including but not limited to that which is set out in Section 
1.0, plus applicable permit and license fees and all maintenance costs required to 
maintain its vehicles and other equipment in a condition and manner adequate to 
accomplish and sustain all contracted services as set out in this Contract. 

2.3 	 Mattera Related to Performance: 

2.3.1 	 Subc:ontractor(s): 
The Contractor may utilize the service of subcontractors and shall be 
responsible for the acts or omissions of its subcontractors to the same extent 
the Contractor is responsible for the acts and omissions of its employees. 
The Contractor shall ensure that all its subcontracts have and carry the same 
major provisions of this Contract and that the work of their subcontractors is 
subject to said provisions. Nothing contained in this Contract shall create any 
contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the County. The 
Contractor shall supply the names and addresses of subcontractors and 
materials suppliers when requested to do so by the County. 

2.3.2 	 Indemnification: 
The Contractor agrees to indemnify. hold harmless and defend the County 
from and against any and aU liabilities, suits, actions, legal proceedings, 
claims, demands, damages, costs and expenses (including attorney's fees) 
rising out of any act or omission of the Contractor. its agents. subcontractors 
or employees in the performance of this Contract. but excluding any damage. 
injury, or loss to person or properly solely the result of the County'. 
negligent, reckless, or willful acts or omissions or those of its employees, 
agents, or other contractors or subcontractors. In no event shall Contractor's 
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liability hereunder exceed the dollar amount paid or to be paid to Contractor 
for its services under this Contract. 

2.3.3 	 Insurance(s): 
The Contractor agrees to keep the following Insurance in full force and effect 
during the term of this Contract. The Contractor must also name the County. 
as additional insured, while working within the boundaries of the County. 

2.3.4 	 Worker's Compensation: 
• Coverage per County requirements. 

2.3.6 	 Automobile liability: 
• Coverage per County requirements. 

2.3.6 	 Comprehensive General Liability: 
• Coverage per County requirements. 

2.3.7 	 Insurance Cancellation I Renewal: 
The Contractor will notify the County at least thirty (30) days in advance of 
cancellation. non-renewal or adverse change to the required insurance. New 
certificates of insurance are to be provided to the County at least ten (10) 
days following coverage renewals or changes. 

3.0 	 STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE 

3.1 	 Contractor Representative: 
The Contractor shall have a knowledgeable and responsible Contractor 
Representative Report to the County's designated Contract Representative within 
24 hours following the activation of this contract. The Contractor Representative 
shall have the authority to implement all actions required to begin the performance of 
contracted services as set out in this Contract and the Contractor's General 
Operations Plan. 

3.2 	 Mobilization: 
When the written Notice to Proceed has been received by the Contractor and/or the 
on-site Contractor Representative, he/she will make all necessary arrangements to 
mobilize a minimum of 50% of the required resources within 48 hours and 100% of 
the required resources within 96 hours to commence and conduct these contracted 
services. 

3.3 	 Payment and Performance Bonds: Contractor shall provide payment and 
performance bonds 7 - 10 days following activation of contract. 

3.4 	 Time to Complete: 
The Contractor shall complete all directed work as set out in Section 1.0 of this 
Contract within (number ofdays will be determined once extent of damage has been 
determined) working days and in accordance with Section 5.8 of this Contract. 
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3.5 	 Completion of Work: 
The Contractor shaH be responsible for removal of an debris up to the point where 
remaining debris can only be described as storm litter and additional collection can 
only be accomplished by the use of hand labor. 

3.5.1 	 Extensions (optional): 
In as much as this is a "time is of the essence- based Contract, the 
commencement of contracted services will be as set out in Section 3.2. If the 
completion of this Contract is delayed by actions of the County, then and in 
such event the time of completion of this Contract shall be extended for such 
additional time within which to complete the performance of the Contract as ;s 
required by such delay. This Contract may be extended by mutual consent of 
both the County and the Contractor for reasons of additional time, additional 
services and/or additional areas of work. 

3.6 	 Term of Contract: 
The term of the Contract shall be for a period of thirty-six (36) months beginning on 
the date of acceptance by and signatures of the County and Contractor, whichever 
comes later. 

3.7 	 Contract Renewal: 
This Contract may be renewed for no more than two additional one (1) year periods 
after a written concurrence of both parties on any negotiated changes to the terms 
and specifications contained in this Contract. Section 7.0 of this Contract may be 
reviewed and amended on an annual basis, at which time amended unit costs may 
be submitted by the Contractor to the County to reflect the current disaster recovery 
market value of all contracted services in this Contract. Such amendments shall 
become part of this Contract after both parties sign any such written arnendment(s) 
as required by Section 8.3 of this Contract. 

3.8 	 Contract Termination: 
This Contract shall terminate upon (six) 6 months written notice from either party and 
delivered to the other party. as set out in Section 8.1 of this Contract. 

4.0 	 GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1 	 Other Agreements: 
The County may be required to enter into agreements with Federal and/or State 
agencies for disaster relief. The Contractor shall be bound by the terms and 
conditions of such agreements. The County shall provide Contractor with copies of 
any such federal or state agreements within 7 days of the execution thereof. 

4.2 	 County Obligations: 
The County shall fumish all information and documents necessary for the 
commencement of contracted services. including but not limited to a valid written 
Notice To Proceed. A representative will be designated by the County to be the 
primary point of contact for inspecting the work and answering any on site questions 
prior to and after activation of this Contract via a written Notice To Proceed. The 
County is responsible for issuing all Public Service Announcements (PSA) to advise 
citizens and agencies of the available debris services. The Contractor may assist 
the County with the development of debri ..based PSA(s), if requested. 
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4.3 	 4.3 Conduct of Work: 
The Contractor shall be responsible for planning and conducting all operations in a 
satisfactory workmanlike manner. The Contractor shall exhibit respect for the 
citizens and their individual private properties. All operations shall be conducted 
under the review of a County Representative. The Contractor shall have and 
require strict compliance with a written Code of Ethics. The Contractor will supervise 
and/or direct all contracted services. The Contractor is solely responsible for the 
means, methods, techniques, safety program and procedures. The Contractor will 
employ and maintain on the work site a qualified supervisor who shall have full 
authority to act on behalf of the Contractor and all communications given to the 
supervisor by the County's Authorized Representative shall be as binding as if given 
to the Contractor. 

4.4 	 Damages: 
The Contractor shall be responsible for conducting operations in such a manner as 
to cause the minimum damage possible to existing public, private and commercial 
property and/or infrastructure. Contractor shall also be responsible for any property 
damages solely caused or the result of the negligence of its employees and 
subcontractors as set out in Sections 1.2 through 1.5 of this Contract. However, in 
no event shall the Contractor's liability hereunder exceed the dollar amount paid or to 
be paid to Contractor for its services under this Contract. 

4.5 	 Other Contractor(s): 
The Contractor shall acknowledge the presence of other contractors involved in 
disaster response and recovery activities by the federal. state and local govemment 
and of any private utility I and shall not interfere with their work. 

4.6 	 Ownership of Debris (opUonal): 
All debris, including regulated hazardous waste. shall become the property of the 
Contractor for removal and lawful disposal. The debris will consist of. but not limited 
to vegetative. construction and demolition. white goods and household solid waste. 

4.7 	 Disposal of Debris: 
Unless otherwise directed by the County. the Contractor shall be responsible for 
determining and executing the method and manner for lawful disposal of all eligible 
debris, including regulated hazardous waste. The primary location of the reduction 
and disposal site(s) shall be determined by the County and Contractor. Other sites 
may be utilized as directed and/or approved by the County. 

4.8 	 Federal-Aid Requirements: 
The Contract proviSions of the Federal Highway Administration's Form FHWA-1273 
(Appendix C). titled "Required Contract Provisions - - Federal-Aid Construction 
Contracts" and FEMA FACT SHEET 9580.214, "Debris Removal on Federal­
Aid Highways, shall apply to all work performed by the Contractor or any of its 
Subcontractors. 
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5.0 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 


5.1 	 Geographic Assignment: 
The geographic boundary for work by the Contractor's crews shall be as directed by 
the County and will be limited to properties located within the County legal 
boundaries. 

5.2 	 Multiple, Scheduled Passes (optional): 
The Contractor shall make scheduled passes at the direction of the County and/or 
unscheduled passes of each area impacted by the storm event. The County shall 
direct the interval timing of all passes. Sufficient time shall be permitted between 
subsequent passes to accommodate reasonable recovery and additional debris 
placement at the ROW by the citizens and the County. 

5.3 	 Operation of Equipment: 
The Contractor shall operate all trucks, trailers and all other equipment in compliance 
with any/all applicable federal, state and local rules and regulations. Equipment shall 
be in good working condition. All loading equipment shall be operated from the road, 
street or ROW using buckets and/or boom and grapple devices to collect and load 
debris. No equipment shall be allowed behind the curb or outside of the public ROW 
unless otherwise directed by the County. Should operation of equipment be 
required outside of the public ROW, the County will provide a Right-of-Entry 
Agreement, as set out in Section 1.6 of this Contract. 

5.4 	 Certification of Load Carrying Capacity: 
The Contractor shall submit to the County a certified report indicating the type of 
vehicle, make and model, license plate number and/or trailer VlN number. assigned 
debris hauling number and measured maximum volume, in cubic yards, of the load 
bed of each piece of equipment to be utilized to haul debris. 

The measured volume of each piece of equipment shall be calculated from the actual 
physical measurement performed by the County and Contractor Representative(s). 
A standard measurement form certifying actual physical measurements of each 
piece of equipment shall be an attachment to the certified report(s) submitted to the 
County. 

5.5 	 Vehicle Information: 
The maximum load capacity of each hauling vehicle will be rounded to the nearest 
whole cubic yard (CY). (Decimal values of .1 through .4 will be rounded down and 
decimal values of .5 through .9 will be rounded up.) The measured maximum load 
capacity <as adjusted) of any vehicle load bed will be the same as shown on the 
trailer measurement form and painted on each numbered vehicle or piece of 
equipment used to haul debris. All vehicles or equipment used for hauling will have 
and use a Contractor approved tailgate. and sideboards will be limited to those that 
protect the load area of the trailer. 

5.6 	 Security of Debris During Hauling: 
The Contractor shall be responsible for the security of debris on/in each vehicle or 
piece of eqUipment utilized to haul debris. Prior to leaving the loading sita(s), the 
Contractor shall ensure that each load is secure and trimmed so that no debris 
extends horizontally beyond the bed of the equipment in any direction. All loose 
debris shall be reasonably compacted and secured during transport. As required, 
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the Contractor will survey the primary routes used by the Contractor and recover 
fallen or blown debris from the roadway(s). 

5.7 	 Traffic Control: 
The Contractor shall mitigate impact on local traffic conditions to all extents possible. 
The Contractor is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate traffic 
control in accordance with the latest Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices. The 
Contractor shall provide sufficient signing, flagging and barricading to ensure the 
safety of vehicular and pedestrian traffic at all debris removal, reduction and/or 
disposal site(s). 

5.8 	 Work Days/Hours: 
The Contractor may conduct debriS removal operations from sunup to sundown, 
seven days per week. Any mechanical, debris reduction operations or buming 
operations may be conducted 24 hours a day, seven days per week. Adjustments to 
work days and/or wo~ hours shall be as directed by the County following 
consultation and notification to the Contractor. 

5.9 	 Hazardous and Industria' Wastes: 
The Contractor shall set aside and reasonably protect all hazardous or Industrial 
materials encountered during debris removal operations for collection and disposal in 
accordance with the Contractors Hazardous and Industrial Materials Cleanup and 
Disposal Plan. The Contractor will build, operate and maintain a Hazardous Waste 
and Industrial Material Storage area until proper disposal of such waste is feasible. 
The Contractor may use the subcontracting services of a firm specializing in the 
management and disposal of such materials and waste, iflwhen directed by the 
County. 

5.10 	Stumps: 
All hazardous/eHgible stumps identified by the County will be pulled, loaded, 
transported, stored, reduced and disposed in accordance with the standards of this 
Contract. All stumps will be documented, invoiced and paid in accordance with 
Stump Conversion Table - Diameter to Volume Capacity. 

5.11 	 Utilizing Local Resources: 
The Contractor shall, to the extent possible, give priority to utilizing resources within 
the County. 
procurement 
subcontracts a

Debris Contract local preferences will include, 
of services, supplies and equipment, plus 
nd employment to the local work force. 

but not limited to, 
awarding service 

5.12 Work Safety: 
The Contractor shall provide and enforce a safe work environment as prescribed in 
the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970. as amended. The Contractor"iII 
provide such safety eqUipment, training and supervision as may be required by the 
County and/or Govemment. The Contractor shall ensure that its subcontracts 
contain a similar safety provision. 
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5.13 	Inspection and Testing: 
All debris shall be subject to adequate inspection by the County or any public 
authority in accordance with generally accepted standards to ensure compliance with 
the Contract and applicable federal, state and local laws. The County will, at all 
times, have access to all work sites and disposal areas. In addition, authorized 
representatives and agents of the Government shall be permitted to inspect all work, 
materials, invoices and other relevant records and documentation. 

5.14 	Other Agencies: 
The term -Governmenr as used in this Contract refers to those governmental 
agencies, which may have a regulatory or funding interest in this Contract. 

6.0 	 REPORTS, CERTIFICATIONS and DOCUMENTATION 

6.1 	 Accountable Debris Load Forms: 
The County shall accept the serialized copy of the Contractor's debris reporting 
ticket(s) as the certified, original source documents to account for the measurement 
and accumUlation of the volume of debris delivered and processed at the reduction 
and/or disposal site(s). The serialized ticketing system will also be used in the event 
of additional debris handling for volume reduction and/or the possible requirement for 
a debris transfer station(s). These tickets shall be used as the basis of any 
electronic generated billing and/or report(s). 

6.2 	 Reports: 
The Contractor shall submit periodic, written reports to the County as requested or 
required, detailing the progress of debris removal and disposal. These reports may 
include, but not limited to: 

6.2.1 	 Daily Reports: 
The daily reports may detail the location where passes for debris removal 
were conducted, the quantity of debris (by type) removed and disposed and 
the total number of personnel crews engaged in debris management 
operations and the number of grinders, chippers and mulching machines in 
operation. The Contractor will also report damages to private property 
caused by the debris operation or damage claims made by citizens and such 
other information as may be required to completely describe the daily conduct 
of the Contractor's operations. 

6.2.2 	 Weekly Summaries: 
A summary of all information contained in the daily reports as set out in 
Section 6.2.1 of this Contract or in a format required by the County. 

6.2.3 	 Report(s) Delivery: 
The scheduling, point of delivery and receiving personnel for the debris 
operations report(s) will be directed by the County in consultation with the 
Contractor. 
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6.2.4 	 Final Project Closeout: 
Upon final inspection and/or closeout of the project by the County, the 
Contractor shall prepare and submit a detailed description of all debris 
management activities to include, but not limited to the total volume, by type 
of debris hauled, reduced and/or disposed. plus the total cost of the project 
invoiced to the County. If requested, any other additional information as may 
be necessary to adequately document the conduct of the debris management 
operations for the County and/or Government. 

6.3 	 Additional Supporting Documentation: 
The Contractor shall submit sufficient reports and/or documentation for debris 
loading, hauling. disposal, and load capacity measurements as may reasonably be 
required by the County and/or Government to support requests for debris project 
reimbursement from external funding sources. 

6.4 	 Report Maintenance: 
Contractor will be subject to audit by federal, state and local agencies pursuant to 
this Contract. The Contractor will maintain all reports, records, debris reporting 
tickets and contract correspondence for a period of not less than three (3) years. 

6.5 	 Contract File Maintenance: 
The Contractor will maintain this Contract and the invoices that are generated for the 
contracted services for a period of five (5) years or the period of standard record 
retention of the County, whichever is longer. 

7.0 	 UNIT PRICES and PAYMENTS 

7.1 	 See enclosed RFP Exhibit uB" ContnlctolS Price Proposal 

7.2 	 Billing Cycle: 
The Contractor shall invoice the County on a 30 day basis reflecting the close of 
business on the last working day of the billing period. Serialized debris reporting 
tickets and disposal site verification of the actual cubic yardage for each load of 
debris or itemized stumps will support all invoices. 

7.3 	 Payment Responsibility: 
The County agrees to accept the Contractor's invoice(s) and supporting 
documentation as set out in Section 6.3 of this Contract and process said invoices 
for payment within 30 business days of the receipt thereof. The County will advise 
the Contractor within five (5) working days of receiving any debris service invoice 
that requires additional information for approval to process for payment. 

7.4 	 Ineligible Work: 
The Contractor will not be paid for the removal. transportation. storage, reduction 
and/or disposal of any material or stumps as may be determined by the County 
and/or Government as ineligible debris. 
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7 ••• 1 	 Eligibility Inspections: 
The Contractor and County will inspect each load to verify the contents are in 
accordance with the accepted definition of eligible debris, as set out in 
Section 1.1 of this Contract. 

7.4.2 	 Eligibility Determinations: 
If any load is determined to contain material that does not conform to the 
definition of eligible debris, the load will be ordered to be deposited at another 
landfill or receiving facility and no payment will be allowed for that load and 
the Contractor will not invoice the County for such loads. 

7.5 	 Unit PricelServlce Negotiations: 
Unknown and/or unforeseen events or conditions may require an adjustment to the 
stated unit prices in Section 7 of this Contract. Any amendments. extensions or 
changes to the scope of contracted services or unit prices are subject to full 
negotiation(s) between the County and the Contractor and subject to the review of 
the Government and must comply with Section 8.3 of this Contract. 

7.6 	 Specialized Services: 
The Contractor may invoice the County for costs incurred to mobilize and demobilize 
specialized equipment required to perform services in addition to those specifled 
under Section 1.0 of this Contract. Additional speCialized services will only be 
performed iflwhen directed by the County. The rate for specialized mobilization and 
demobilization shall be fair and reasonable as determined by the County. 

8.0 	 MISCELLANEOUS 

8.1 	 Notice: 
Whenever in this Contract it is necessary to give notice or demand by either party to 
the other. such notice or demand shall be given in writing and forwarded by certified 
or registered mail and addressed as follows: 

Contractor: 	 CrowderGulf, LLC 

5435 Business Parkway 

Theodore, AL 36582 

800-992-6207 

jramsay@crowdergulf.com 

Taylor County: 

Address Clerk of Court, i" Floor Courthouse 

108 North Jefferson Street, Suite 102 

Peny, FL 323.8 

Phone ____..........__..............................___ 


Emall_..................................._____ 


8.2 	 Applicable Law: 
The laws of the State of Florida shall govem this Contract. Any and all legal action 
necessary to enforce the Contract will be held in Taylor County, Florida. and the 
Contract shall be interpreted by the laws of Florida. 
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8.3 	 Entire Contract/Amendments: i 

This Contract (including any schedules or exhibits attached hereto) constitutes the I 
entire Contrad and understanding between the parties with resped to the matters fcontained herein. This Contrad supersedes any prior contrads, negotiations, 
proposals, agreements and/or understandings, whether verbal or written. relating to I 
the subject matter hereof. This Contrad may be mOdified, amended or extended ! 

I 

only by a written instrument executed by both parties. t 
i 

8.. Waiver: I 
In the event one of the parties waives a default by the other, such a waiver shall not Ibe construed or deemed to be a continuing waiver of any subsequent breach or 
default of the other provisions of this Contrad, by either party. I 

8.6 	 Severability: I 
If any provision of this Contrad is deemed or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable 
under the applicable laws or regulations of any jurisdiction. such proviSion will be 
deemed amended to the extent necessary to conform to applicable laws or 
regulations. If it cannot be so amended without materially altering the intention of the l
parties. it will be stricken and the remainder of this Contract will remain in full force and 	 1 

" 
effect. 

j 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Contrador has caused this Contrad to be Signed in its corporate l 
name by its authorized representative and the County has caused this Contrad to be signed in 

f 

its legal name by persons authorized to execute said Contrad as of the day and year first I 
written above on page one. f 

! 
~ 
t 

CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. t 
Taylor County, FL 

By: rttJ!~ V\~2-= 
By: 	 ~n Ramsay~-7 
TrUe: 	 President Title . tJ) 	- ­'. ".V. -- ~.\~r~',lo-:'.,

~v ......... '1~ }",
~ ~ ••••\':t. Co .... 'k'\ 
• ~ .t. 0 ~~'•• 'It(lIs:." -~\ b 

Q i~ SEAL <i z:a:: :r- 'J I!: 
ATTEST: 	 ATTEST: '$.\ .If:? 

....... 	 A. ""~.

fJ> ··.:i OR\v•••• ............. 


AL4#rAltliL 	 ~'rhtIA.i~~? 
Wesley 	 Name 
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EXHIBIT "8" 


CONTRACIOR'S PRICE PROPOSAL 


Date 12114112 

Proposal of CrowderGulf Joint Venture. Inc. 

(hereinafter called "Contractor"), authorized to do business under the Jaws of Florida proposes 

to the County of Taylor, FJorida, (hereinafter called "County"), 


The Contractor, in compliance with your invitation for proposals for: 

TAYLOR COUNTY DEBRIS REMOVAL SERVICES 

Having examined the specifications with related documents and the sites of the proposed 
work, and being familiar with all of the conditions surrounding the work of the proposed project, 
including availability of equipment and labor, hereby proposes to perform in accordance with 
this Request for Proposal, and at the prices stated. These prices shall cover all expenses incurred 
in performing the work required under the Contract Documents. of which this proposal is a part. 
Unbalanced proposals will not be accepted and are cause for rejection ofany proposal. 

Contractor hereby agrees to commence work under this contract on or before a date to be 
specified in a written "Notice to Proceed" of the County and to fully complete the work in the 
Contractual period of time allotted. 

This price proposal form must be eompleted, ligned, and lubmitted. No lubstitute 
forms wm be accepted. Proposals submitted without this eompleted priee proposal will be 
reJeeted. 

Contractor acknowledges receipt of the foUowing addenda: 

Contractor agrees to complete the project as described in accordance with the specifications and 
other information included in the contract documents for the following prices: 
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ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITPRlCE 

1 REMOVAL AND HAULING OF VEGETATIVE 
DEBRlS FROM ROW TO DMS, including limbs and 
trees placed on ROW under pay items 10 and 11 
below. 

0-1S.9miles 

16.0-30.9 mUes 

31-60 miles 

$__6.80Jcy 

S__7. 40 Icy 

$----A..~cy 

2 DMS SITE MANAGEMENT, 
Management ofdisaster Rllated debris deliveRld to the 
DMS by the Contractor or County. 

$__O.~/cy 

3 GRINDING OF VEGETATIVE DEBRIS AT A DMS 
PROVIDED BY TIlE COUNTY. Grinding of 
disaster Rllated debris delivCRld to the DMS by 
Contractor or County 

$__2.70 Icy 

4 AIR CURTAIN BURNING OF VEGETATIVE 
DEBRIS AT A DMS PROVIDED BY mE 
COUNTY. Burning ofdisaster Rllated debris 
delivCRld to the DMS by Contractor or County. 

$__1.J~Q-'CY 

S OPEN BURNING OF VEGETATIVE DEBRIS AT 
A DMS PROVIDED BY nIE COUNTY. Burning of 
disaster Rllated debris delivered to the DMS by 
Contractor or County. 

$__1.20 Icy 

6 LOADING, HAULING, AND DISPOSAL OF 
VEGETATIVE DEBRIS REDUCED BY 
GRINDING FROM DMS TO AN APPROVED 
LANDFILL AS DIRECTED BY THE COUNTY, 
County to pay aU tipping fees directly. 

0-1S.9 miles 

16.0-30.9 miles 

31-60 miles 

S---2.. ..®/cy 

$__3. 50 ley 

$__5. 50 ley 

7 LOADING, HAULING, AND DISPOSAL OF 
VEGETAnVE DEBRIS REDUCED BY BURNING 
FROM DMS TO APPROVED LANDFILL AS 
DIRECTED BY THE COUNTY, County to pay 
tipping fees mctly. 

- - ­

0-15.9 miles 

16.0-30.9 miles 

31-60miJes 

$~.OO/cy 

I$__4.00 Icy 

$~.OO/cy __ 
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8 REMOVAL AND HAULING OF C&D DEBRIS 
FROM ROW TO DMS 0-15.9 miles 

16.0-30.9 miles 

3]-60 miles 

S__6.80/cy 

$__7.40 Icy 

$__S.OO/cy 

9 REDUCTION OF C&D DEBRIS BY GRINDING 
$__2_.70 Icy 

10 LOADING. HAULING. AND DISPOSAL OF C&D 
DEBRIS REDUCED BY GRJNDING FROM DMS 
10 AN APPROVED LANDFILL AS DIRECTED 
BY mE COUNTY. County to pay an tipping fees 
directly. 

0-1S.9 miles 

J6.0-30.9 miles 

3]-60 miles 

S__3. 00 Icy 

$__4.00 Icy 

S_3.00/cy 

11 REMOVAL OF C&D DEBRlS AND HAULING 
DIRECTLY 10 AN APPROVED LANDFILL AS 
DIRECTED BY lHE COUNTY. with County paying 
all tipping fees directly.(NON DMS OPTION) 

0-1S.9 miles 

16.0-30.9 miles 

31·60 miles 

$__7. 25 Icy 

$__S.25Icy 

$__9.00 Icy 

12 REMOVAL OF HAZARDOUS LIMBS. The 
Contractor shall remove all hazardous hanging limbs 
over 21> in diameter at the break point and place them 
on pubUc property or ROW. 

$~.OO !tree 

13 REMOVAL OF HAZARDOUS TREES. The 
Contractor shall remove hazardous trees in the size 
categories listed (measured 54" above ground) and 
place them on public property or ROW. 

6 inches to 11.99 inches diameter 

12 inches to 23.99 inches diameter 

24 inches to 35.99 inches diameter 

36 inches to 47.99 inches diameter 
Greater than 48 inches diameter 

$~.OO /tree 

S~.OO Itree 

$~.OO /tree 

$ 200. 00 Itree 
$ 250.00 /tree 

14 REMOVAL OF HAZARDOUS STUMPS. 
Contractor shall remove hazardous stumps greater 
than 24 inches in diameter measured 24 inches above 
the ground. Contactor shall backfill holes and ruts 
left by excavation of the stump. 

24 inches to 35.99 inches diameter 

~~inches to 47.99 inches diameter 

S 225 .~/stump 

S 300. 00 /stump 

22 




Greater than 48 inches diameter $ 400.00 Istump 

15 REMOVAL, HAULING. AND DISPOSAL OF 
WHITE GOODS. The Contractor shaU remove. 
decontaminate, transport and recycle or dispose 
approved white goods (appliances) in accordance with 
all federal, state, and local rules, regulations, and 
laws. 

S~.oo lunit 

16 REMOVAL, HAULING, AND DISPOSAL OF 
ELECTRONICS WASTE. The Con1:r'ador sbaU 
remove, haul, and dispose electronics waste in 
accordance with all applicable rules, regulations, and 
laws. The e-waste will be loaded, transported. and 
disposed at a facility approved to accept such items. 

S~.oo lunit 

17 REMOVAL, HAULING, AND DISPOSAL OF 
CONCRETE. The Contractor shall load, haul, and 
dispose of concrete material separated by the property 
county. 

$---11.00 Icy 

18 REMOVAL, HAULING, OF HOUSEHOLD 
HAZARDOUS WASTES (HHW). The Contractor 
shall collect and transport household hazardous 
wastes to a central collection site identified by the 
County. 

$--.-5....00... lib. 

19 REMOVAL, HAULING, AND DISPOSAL OF 
LAWNMOWERS AND EQUIPMENT WITH 
SMALL ENGINES. The Contractor shall load, haul, 
and dispose of lawmnowers and other equipment with 
small engines. County is responsible for fmal 
disposal costs. 

$~.oo/eacb 

20 REMOVAL, HAULING, AND DISPOSAL OF 
ABANDONED TIRES. The Contractor shan 
secregate, load, and haul abandoned tires to a 
collection site identified by County. [Tippiog fees to 
be paid by County]. 

$---L."'OO leach 
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$__O . .§Q../Jb.REMOVAI.. HAULING, AND DISPOSAL OF 

DEAD ANIMAL CARCASSES. The Contractor shall 

collect and tnmsport dead animal carcasses to a 
central collection site identified by the County. 
[Tipping fees to be paid by County] 

21 

REMOVAL AND HAULING OF STORM $.--.11.. 00 Icy 

DEPOSITED SOILS TO DMS. The contractor shall 

haul storm deposited soils to a DMS designated by the 

County. Final disposition of the soils shall be the 

responsibility of the County. 


22 

CANALIWATERWAY DEBRlS REMOVAL. The 

Contraetor shall remove storm generated debris from 

drainage canals, creeks, and ditches. No hauling to 

DMS or landfill will occur under this line item. 


23 

$__3 .00/per linear foot 1 foot to 10 feet (average width) 

$__5 . oo/per linear foot10.1 feetto 20 feet(average width) 

$__7_.oo/per linear foot20.1 feet to 35 feet(average width) 

$ 9 .oolper lin~ar footG~UtarL~ feet(average Width) 
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CONTRACTOR'S PRICE PROPOSAL - PART II 
EQUIPMENT AND LABOR RATES 

ITEM DESCRIPTION DOURLY lBlCI 
I. JD 544 Wheel Loader with debris grapple 
2. JD 644 Wheel Loader with debris grapple 
3. Extendaboom Forklift with debris grapple 
4. 153 Bobcat Skid Steer Loader with debris grapple 
5. 153 Bobcat Skid Steer Loader with bucket 
6. 153 Bobcat Skid Steer Loader with street sweeper 
7. 30-50 H Fann Tractor with box blade or rake 
8. 2 - 2 V, cu. yd. Articulated Loader with bucket 
9. 3 - 4 ell. yd. Articulated Loader with bucket 
10. JD 648E Log Skidder or equivalent 
11. CAT D4 Dozer 
12. CAT 05 Dozer 
13. CAT 06 Dozer 
14. CAT 07 Dozer 
15. CAT 08 Dozer 
16. CAT 125 - 140 HP Motor Grader 
11. JD 690 Trackhoe with debris grapple 
18. JD 690 Trackhoe with bucket and thumb 
19. Rubber Tired Excavator with debris grapple 
20. JD 310 Rubber Tired Backhoe with bucket and hoe 
21. 210 Prentiss Knuckleboom with debris grapple 
22. CAT 623 Self-Loader Scraper 
23. Hand-Fed Debris Chipper 
24. 30 Ton Crane 
25. 50 Ton Crane 
26. 100 Ton Crane (8 hour minimum) 
27. 40 - 60' Bucket Truck 
28. Greater than 60' Bucket Truck 
29. FueV Service Truck 
30. Water Truck 
31. Portable Light Plant 
32. Lowboy Trailer with Tractor 
33. Flatbed Truck 
34. Pick-up Truck (unmanned) 
35. Self-Loading Oump Truck with debris grapple 
36. Single Axel Dump Truck, 5 -12 cu. yd. 
37. Tandem Axle Dump Truck, 16 - 20 cu. yd. 
38. Tandem Axle Dump Truck. 21 - 30 cu. yd. 
39. Tandem Axle Oump Truck, 31 - 50 cu. yd. 
40. Tandem Axle Dump Truck, 51- 80 cu. yd. 
41. Chainsaw (without operator) 

25 

$ 100.00 

$ 110.00 t 
$ 65.00 

$ 60.00 I 
$ 50.00 

•
i
If 

$ 60.00 ~ 
$ 45.00 • 
$ 90.00 

I 
( 
~ 

$ 100.00 

$ 75.00 I
$ 60.00 ~ 

f 
~$ 75.00 

I 
f$ 90.00 

$ 110.00 

$ 125.00 
l:­

$ 90.00 I 

,l$ 100.00 
i

$ 100.00 ! 
$ 105.00 

t 

$ 60.00 ,I 
$ 90.00 

150.00$ i 
$ 35.00 i 

f 

$ 150.00 t$ 170.00 [
$ 250.00 

$ I90.00 

$ 120.00 f 
$ 50.00 ( 

I 
,$ 60.00 

$ 1400 
$ 90.00 

I 
$ 40.00 I 
$ 14.00 l 

f$ 125.00 
~ $ 45.00 £ 
l 

$ 60.00 t 
~ 

$ 70.00 i 
$ 85.00 t 

l 

$ 100.00 ! 
$ 4.00 I

I 

t 
1 

r 



i 
42. Temporary Office Trailer 
43. Mobile Command and Communications Trailer 
44. Laborer, with small hand tools 
45. Skilled Sawman 
46, Crew Foreman with cell phone 
47. Tree Climber 

All equipment rates include the cost oftbe operator. fuel. and maintenance. 

$ 15.00 
\$ SO.OO 

$ 28.00 
~ 

$ 32,00 ~ 
$ 45.00 f 
$ 90,00 

AU labor rates include the cost ofpersonal protective equipment, including but Dot limited to: hardhat, traffic safety 
vest, steel-toed shoes, gloves. leggings and protective eyewear. I 

I 
& 
! 

ADDmONAL SERVICES PROVIDED AT NO COST: 

IA. 	 Training and Assistance: Annual sessions for all key personnel and assistance in all 

disaster debris recovery planning efforts as requested. 
 I 

B. 	 Preliminary Damage Assessment: Detennining the impact and magnitude ofthe l 
disaster event to help expedite any applica1ions for federal assistance. l ,I 

C. 	 Mobilization and Demobiliza1ion: All arrangements necessary to mobilize and 
tdemobilize the Contractor's labor force and equipment needed to perform the J 

Scope ofServices contained herein shall be made by the Contractor. Said activity to 
include mobilization after notice to proceed, response time to fIrst push, hours to full r 
operations, staging. 

[ 

t 
D. 	 Mobile Command Unit: The Contractor shall provide use ofthe mobile command 


unit for County's debris recovery management personnel to serve as a field, 

operations command center. 
 IE. 	 Temporary Storage ofDocuments: The Contractor shall provide storage ofdaily 

disaster-related documents and reports for protection during the disaster event 
 i 

F. 	 Debris Planning Efforts: The Contractor shall assist in disaster debris recovery ,& 

planning efforts as requested by the County. These planning efforts shall include, 
but are not limited to, identification ofadequate temporary debris storage and reduction I

I,sites, estimation ofdebris quantities, and emergency action plans for debris clearance 
following a disaster event [ 

~ 
o. 	 Reporting and Documentation: The Contractor shaH provide and submit to the Monitor 

and the County, all reports and documents as may be necessary to adequately document t 
its performance ofthis Contract, to include all requirements for documentation requested 
by FEMA and/or State government for reimbursement ofcosts. In providing the above I
data, Contractor has taken into account al1 contingencies foreseeable by one with the 
expertise and knowledge in disaster debris removal, including, but not limited to, the 
Right-of-Entry process for debris removal from private property and the related I 
regulatory agencies' requirements. I 


I 

! 
f 
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t 
No amount of work is guaranteed under this contract i 

it, 

Multiple Contracts may be awarded for work on this project. The amount due to Contractor will ~ 
be based on the actual cubic yards of debris and established units of other material removed, 

! 

~ 
multiplied by the Contractor's unit price per each unit. The actual amount may be more or less 
than the total project cost estimate, based on the actual quantity ofdebris removed. AU payments 
made to the Contractor shall be subject to a 5% retainage which will be retained for a minimum 
of sixty (60) days after completion of all contract work to insure against late completion of the 
project and/or undiscovered damage to public or private property. I 
Contractor understands that the County reserves the right to reject any or all proposals. Upon 
receipt ofwritten notice ofthe acceptance ofproposal, Contractor shall execute the final contract I
within twenty-four (24) hours. I 

The foregoing prices shall include all labor, materials, equipment, removal, overhead, profit, I
~.

freight, insurance, etc., to cover the finished. work specified in this proposal. , 
,. 
~Respondent understands that the County reserves the right to reject any or all offers and to waive 
~ 

informalities in the proposal. The bidder agrees that this proposal shall be good and may not be 
withdrawn for a period of ninety (90) calendar days after the scheduled closing time for f 

I.receiving proposals. The undersigned affirms they are duly authorized to represent this firm, that i 
this proposal has not been prepared in collusion with any other fmn., and that the contents l 
contained herein have not been communicated to any other firm prior to the official opening. t 

I 
Respectfully submitted: f 

t 
i 

Business Name: Cl'OWderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. ~. 


Address (City, State, Zip Code): 5435 Business Parkway, Theodore. AL 36582 

Office Phone, Fax Number, and Email: (BOO) 992-8207, (251) 459-7433 - Fax, jramsay@crowdergulf.com , 

Business Representative Name and Title: John Ramsay, President 

Signature ofRepresentative: ___________________ 

I 
t 

l 
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TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Countv Commission ADenda Item 

SUBJECTlfITLE: I COMMISSIONERS TO REVIEW AND APPROVE ADVERTISING FOR 
THE PROPOSED WIDENINGIRESURF ACING OF OSTEEN ROAD 
UNDER THE FDOT SMALL COUNTY ROAD ASSISTANCE 
PROGRAM. 

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: 1,2016 

Statement of Issue: Under the direction of the Board, the Engineering Division prepared the 
attached plans and specification package for the improvement of Osteen Road (CR 359B) from 
US HWY 98 to Woods Creek Rd under the Florida Department of Transportation's Small 
County Road Assistance Program (SCRAP). This information will be presented as a Request 
For Proposals (RFP) and will be advertised upon receiving approval from the Board and the 
remaining jurisdictions. 

Recommended Action: The Board should approve soliciting RFPs for the proposed 
widening/resurfacing scope of work to be received March 7, 2016. Subsequent approval of 
received proposals will be contingent upon available funding. 

Fiscal Impact: FISCAL YR 2015/16 - $738,097.00 SCRAP Funding remaining 

Budgeted Expense: YES 

Submitted By: ENGINEERING DIVISION 

Contact: COUNTY ENGINEER 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL I ISSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Fads & Issues: 

By the direction of the Board, the Engineering Division prepared the attached plans and 
specification package for the improvement of Osteen Road (CR 359B) from US HWY 98 to 
Woods Creek Road under the FDOT's Small County Road Assistance Program. The attached 
specifications and construction plans have been incorporated into a Request for Proposals (RFP) 
that will be advertised upon receiving Board and permitting approval; FDOT approval has 
already been received. This roadway improvement project consists of furnishing all needed 
materials, equipment, labor and supervision to widen and resurface the approximate 1.82-miles 
of roadway. Beyond reconstruction, widening and resurfacing, the improvements also include 
safety modifications, drainage improvements, pavement markings and signage, along with other 
associated work as more fully detailed in the plans and specifications material. 

The Board previously entered into and approved a Reimbursement Agreement with FDOT in the 
amount of $752,417.00 for the Osteen Road project. Staff expects that there will be a good 
chance that the monies remaining from this original reimbursement agreement amount after 
allotting for survey, geotechnical, and construction administration expenses will be insufficient 
to complete the entire project as proposed without additional funding from FDOT or the Board. 
A last resort would be to reduce the project's scope of work. This matter will be more fully I
discussed once the RFP's have been received and evaluated. Nonetheless, Staff recommends 
that the Board approve soliciting requests for proposals for the proposed widening and 
resurfacing in accordance with the attached scope of work. I 


I, 


http:752,417.00
http:738,097.00


Once the Board has approved the proposed scope of work, Staff will solicit for proposals while 
permitting aspects are being finalized. It is intended that proposals for this project be received at 
the March 7, 2016 regular Board meeting. 

Options: 

1) Aprove the proposed scope of work for advertisement to solicit RFPs. 

2) Revise the proposed scope of work prior to advertising for RFPs. 

3) 	 Reject the proposed scope of work, state reasons for denial and discontinue the 
project. 

Attachments: 

Proposed Request for Proposal package 

Construction Plans (Roadway Plan Views and Quantities) 
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BID DOCUMENTS 

Osteen Road (CR 359B) Widening/Resurfacing 
FDOT SCRAP Project 
Taylor County, Florida 
2013-003-ENG 

January 2016 

Prt'part'd for: 

Taylor County Board of County Commissioners 
1 08 Jefferson St.. 
Perry, Florida 32347 

Prt'pal'E'd by; 

Taylor County Engineering 
201 East Green Street 
Perry, FL 32347 
850.838.3500 
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FOOT SCRAP: Osteen Road (CR 359B) WidminglResurfacing 2013-OO3-ENG 

MALCOLM PAGE JIM MOODY JOOYDEVAHE PAM FEAGLE PATRICIA PATTERSON 
District 1 District :2 District 3 District 4 District 5 

TAYLOR COUNTY 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 


ANNIE MAE MURPHY, Clerk 
Post O/Iice Box 620 
Penv. florida 32348 

DUSTIN HINKEl.., County Administrator 
201 East Green Stmet 
Penv. Florida 32347 

CONRAD C. BISHOP. JR., CounlyAl'lX!flleY 
Post Office Box 167 
Penv. florida 32348 

(850) 636-3506 f't1one (850) 838-3S00. extension 7 Phone (850)584-6113 Phone 
(850) 636-3549 Fax (850) 838-3501 Fax (850) 584·2433 Fax 

INVITATION TO BID 

The Taylor County Board of Couuty Commissioners is soliciting sealed proposa:Is for 
construction of the Osteen Road Widening/Resurfacing. 

Qualified fnms or individuals desiring to provide the required products or services must submit 
five (5) packages in a sealed envelope or similar package marked "Sealed Proposal (or Osteen 
Road Widening/ReslIrfacing" to the Clerk of Court, 1 st Floor Courthouse, 108 North Jefferson 
Street, Suite 102, Perry, Florida 32347, to arrive no later than 4:00 P.M .. local time, on March 4. 
2016. All Proposals MUST have the respondent's name and mailing address clearly shown 
on the outside of the envelope or package when submitted. Proposals will be opened and 
respondents annOlmced at 6:)0( P.M. local time, or as soon thereafter as practical, on March 7, 
2016, in the Taylor County Administrative C9mplex, 201 East Green Street, Perry, Florida 
32347. 

RFP infOlmation MUST be obtained the Clerk of Coml, 1st. Floor Comthouse, 108 North 
Jefferson Street, Suite 102, Pedy, Florida 32341, (850) 838-3506, for a $100.00 non-refundable 
fee. RFP infOlmation mayJ)e reviewed on-lineal www.taylorcouutygov.comIBids/Index.htm. 

A Pre-Bid Conference will be beld at 10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, February 24, 2016, at the 
Administrative Complexlqcatedat201 East Green Street, Perry, Florida 32347. 

The County reserves the right, ill its sole and absolute discretion, to reject any or all Proposals, to 
cancel or withdraw this solicitation at any time and waive any ilTegulaIities in the RFP process. 
The Couuty reserves the light to award any contract to the respondent which it deems to offer the 
best overall service.; therefore, the Couuty is not bound to award any contract( s) based 011 the 
lowest quoted price. The County, in its sole and absolute discretion, also reserves the light to 
,vaive any nunor defects in the process and to accept the proposal deemed to be in the County's 
best interest No faxed Proposals will be accepted. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, Taylor Comlty, Florida 

Page 1 ofl 
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INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 


TABLE OF CO~TENTS 

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINED TERMS ................................................................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE 2 - COPIES OF BIDDIN"G DOCmIENTS.................................................................................................. 1 

ARTICLE 3 - QUALmCATIONS OF BIDDERS ............................................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE 4 - EXAMINATION OF BIDDIN"G DOCl..ThAENTS. OTHER RELATED DATA. AND SITE .............. 2 

ARTICLE 5 - PRE-BID CONFERENCE ....................................................................................................................... 4 

ARTICLE 6 - SITE AND OTIIER AREAS ................................................................................................................... 4 

ARTICLE 7 - IN"TERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA....................................................................... , ....................... 4 

ARTICLE 8 - BID SECUR.ffY ..................................................................................................... ,., ............................... 5 

ARTICLE 9 - CONTRACT 1Th1ES ................................................................................................................ , ............ 5 

ARTICLE 10 - UQUIDATED DAMAGES .................................................................................................................. 5 

ARTICLE 11 - SUBSTITUTE AND "OR-EQUAL" :rrE].1S ...................................................................................... 5 

ARTICLE 12 - SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPUERS. AND OTIIERS...................................... .. ........................... 6 

ARTICLE 13 - PREPARATION OF BID ...................................................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE 14 - BASIS OF BID; COMPARISON OF BIDS ............................. " ....................... ' ................................ 7 

ARTICLE 15 - SUBMIITAL OF BID .......................................................... ~ ................................................................ 7 

ARTICLE 16 - MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BID ..................................H"....................................... 8 

ARTICLE 17 - OPENIN"G OF BIDS ........................................................ " ................................................................... 8 

ARTICLE 18 - BIDS TO REMAIN SUBJECT TO ACCEPTANCE ....... " .................................................................. 9 

ARTICLE 19 - EVALUATION OF BIDS AND AWARD OF CONTRACT ............................................................ 9 

ARTICLE 20 - CONTRACT SECURITY AND IN"SURANCE ................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE 21 - SIGNIN"G OF AGREEl'vlENT ............................................................................................................... 10 


" ...............................................................................
ARTICLE 22 - SALES AND USE TAXES ............... <H................ 10 

ARTICLE 23 - RETAIN"AGE ..............................................d ......................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE 24 - CONTRACTS TO BE ASSIGNED ...................................................................................................... 10 


ARTICLE 1 - DEFINED TERl1:S 

1.01 Tenns used in these Insu'Uctions to Bidder:; have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions and 
Supplement<uy Conditions.~i\dditional !elms used ill these Instructions to Bidders have the meanings indicated below: 

A 	 Issuing Office--The office fi'om which the Bidding Docmnents are to be issued and where the bidding 
procedures are tOlJe adtniui'>tered The issuing office for this project will be the Taylor Coullty Clerk of 
COIll.1S located at j'Jt Floor Courthouse, 108 N. JeffiJrson St., Suite 101, PelT)~ FL. Bidding procedures will be 
admiJ.:llsteIl>d at the Taylor COlillty Admillistratil'e Complex located at 101 East Green St., Perr)~ FL. 

B. 	 Bidde.r-- One who submits a Bid directly to Owner as distinct fl:om a sub-bidder. who submits a bid to Bidder. 

C. 	 S7.lccessjill Bidder-The lowest. responsible and responsive Bidder to whom O\\ner (on the basis of Owner's 
evaluation as hereinafter provided) makes an award. 

ARTICLE 2 - COPIES OF BIDDL~GDOCUMENTS 

2.01 Complete sets of the Bidding Documents in the lllullber and for the deposit s~ if any, stated in the 
Advertisement or Invitation to Bid may be obtained from the Issuing Office. 

EJCDC C-200 Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction Contracts 

Copyright © 2002 National Society of Professioual Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 
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FDOT SCRAP: Osteen Road (CR359B) WideningfResurfiu:ing 	 2013-OO3,ENG 

2.02 Complete sets of Bidding Documents shall be used in preparing Bids: neither Owner nor Engineer asswnes 
any re&ponsibility for elTors or nlisintetpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets ofBidding Doctnnents. 

2.03 01,l,'ller and Engineer, in making copies ofBidding Docmnents available 011 the above temlS, do so only for the' 
pwpose ofobtaining Bids for the Work and do not confer a lice1lSe or grant for any other use. 

ARTICLE 3 - QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS 

3.01 To demonstrate Bidder's qualifications to perform the Work. v.i.thin five days of Own<.'f'S request, Bidder 
shall submit written evidence such as financial data, previous experience, present commitments. and such other data as 
may be called for below. 

[A. Valid Business/Contractor LicensingjRegistration Information 1 

[B. 	Proof of CWTent qualification with the Florida Department of Transportation in Tallahassee. Florida to 
conduct the scope ofwork outlined in these specifications.] 

[C. 	 The successfid Contractor and any subcontractors shall emoll ill. and be in compliance with the Department 
ofHomeland Security's E-Verify Employment Elillibility Verification system prior to contract execution.] 

ARTICLE 4 - EXMllNATION OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS, OTHER RELATED 
DATA, AND SITE 

4.01 Subswiace and Physical Conditiolls 

A 	 The Supplementary Conditions identiJ:y: 

1. Those repolts of explorations and tests of subsurface COnditiollS at or contiguous to the Site that Engineer 
has used in preparing the Bidding Documents. 

2. Those dra1.l.'ings of physic.ai conditions in or relating to existing surface and subsurface stmctures at or 
contiguous to the . Site (except U~dergroultd Facilities) that Engineer has used in preparing the Bidding 
Documents. 

B. Copies of reports and drawings referenced in Paragraph 4.01.A ...\ill be made a\'ailable by O\\ller to any 
Bidder on req~test. Those rep01ts and dra\\ings are not part of the Contract DOCluuents, bItt the "technical data" 
contained therein upon .. which Bidder is entitled to rely as provided in Paragraph 4.02 of the General Conditions has 
been identified and established.in Paragraph 4.02 of the Supplementary Conditions. Bidder is responsible for any 
interpretation or conclusion Bidder draws from any "technical data" or any other data. intelpretations. opinions or 
infmmation tonlained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings. 

4.02 Underground Facilities 

. A Infomiation and data shown or indicated in the Bidding DOCIIDlents with respect to existing Underground 
F?cilities at or contiguOllS to the Site is based upon information and data fhmished to O\\ner and Engineer by O\\llers of 
such UndergrOlIDd Facilities, including O\\ner. or others. 

4.03 Ha=ardous Elntiromnental Condition 

A. The Supplementary Conditions identifY those repolts and dra"ings relating to a Hazardous Environmental 
Condition identified at the Site. ifany. that Engineer has used in preparing the Bidding DocIuuents. 

EJCDC C-200 Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Consbuction Contracts 

Copyright © 2002 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 
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FDOT SCRAP: Osteen Road (CR 359B) WideninglResurfacing 2013-OO3-ENG 

B. Copies of reports and drawings referenced in Paragraph 4.03.A "ill be made available by Owner to any 
Bidder on request. Those reports and drawings are not part of the Contract Doctunents. but the "teclmical data" 
contained therein upon which Bidder is entitled to rely as provided in Paragraph 4.06 of the Genem Conditions b.'h 
been identified and established in Paragraph 4.06 of the Supplementary Conditions. Bidder is responsible for any 
interpretation or conclusion Bidder draws from any "technical data" or any other data, interpretations, opinions, or 
information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings. 

4.04 Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data ftnnished to prospective Bidders with respect 
to subsurface conditions. other physical conditions and Ulldergr01Wd Facilities, and possible changes in the Bidding 
Documents due to differing or twanticipated conditions appear in Paragraphs 4.02, 4.03, and 404 of the General 
Conditions. Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data furnished to prospectin: Bidders 'with 
respect to a Hazardous Environmental Condition at the Site, if any, and possible changes in the Contract Documents 
due to any Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site v.il.ich was not ;:,!town 01 indicared in 
the Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Docwnents to be within th~ Scope of tile Wode appear in 
Paragraph 4.06 of the General Conditions. 

4.05 On request. Owner will provide Bidder access to the Site to conduct such examinations. investigations. 
explorations, tests, and studies as Bidder deems necessary for submission Qf a Bid. Bidder shall fill all holes and clean 
up and restore the Site to its former condition upon completion of such ~xplorations, irr.,'~tigations, tests. and studies. 
Bidder shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations relative to excavation and utility locates. 

4.06 Reference is made to Article 7 of the Supplementary Conditions the identification of the general uature of 
other work that is to be perfonned at the Site by Owner or others (such as milities and other prime contractors) that 
relates to the Work contemplated by these Bidding DOCWllenrs. On request. Owner will provide to each Bidder for 
examination access to or copies of Contract DoclUnents (other than portions thereof related to price) for such other 
work. 

4.07 It is the responsibility ofeach Biddt::r before submitting a Bid to: 

A examine and carefully study the Bidding DoClunents. the other related data identified in the Bidding 
Documents, and any Addenda: 

B. visit the Site and become fru.nili~With and satisfy Bidder as to the general. local. and Site conditions that may 
affect cost, progress. and performance otthe W01k: 

C. become familiar',Vith and satisfy Bidder as to all federal, state, and local Laws and Regulations that may affect 
cost, progress, and perfonuance ofthe Work; 

D. carefuUy study all: <(1 ) reports of explorations and tests of subswface conditions at or contiguous to the Site 
and all dr3.",viugs ofphysi<;al cl::tnditions in or relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at or contiguous to the 
Site (except Undergrou.nd'J'acilities) which have been identified in the Supplement8.1Y Conditions as provided in 
Paragraph 4.02 of the General Conditions, and (2) reports and dra\\1.ngs ofHazardous Environmental Conditions at the 
Site which have been identified in the Supplement8.1Y Conditions as provided in Paragraph 4.06 of the General 
ConditionS:' 

E. obtain and carefully study (or accept consequences of not doing so) all additional or supplementaty 
examinations,investigations, explorations, tests, studies, and data concerning conditions (surfuce. subsluiace, and 
GntiergrOlmd Facilities) at or contiguous to the Site which may affect cost. progress. or performance of the Work or 
which relate to any aspect of the means, methods. techniques. sequences, and procedures of construction to be 
employed by Bidder, including applying any specific means. methods. techniques. sequences. and procedures of 
construction expressly required by the Bidding Documents. and safety precautions and programs incident thereto: 
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F. agree at the time of submitting its Bid that no fiuther exanllnations. investigations, explorations, tests, studies. 
or data are necessary for the determination of its Bid for perfonnance of the Work at the price(s) bid and VI'ithin the 
times and in accordance ",ith the other tenns and conditions of the Bidding Documents: 

G. become aware of the general nann-e of the work to be perfOimed by O,mer and others at the Site that relates to 
the Work as indicated in the Bidding Docmnents: 

H. correlate the information known to Bidder, infOimatioll and obselvations obtained fi'om visits to the Site. 
reports and drawings identified in the Bidding DoC1.Ullents. and all additional exan:rinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, studies, and data Vlith the Bidding Doctnnents: 

I. promptly give Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambigIuties. or di<;crepancies that Bidder 
discovers in the Bidding Documents and confinn that the ",ritten resolution thereof by is acceptable to 
Bidder: and 

J. detennine that the Bidding DOC1.Ullents are generally sufficient to indicate aud convey und~'Standing of all 
temlS and conditions for the perfonnance of the Work. ' 

4.08 The submission of a Bid will constinrte an inconlmvertible representation Bidder thi.lt Bidder bas complied 
with every reqnirement of this Article 4, that WitllOut exception the Bid i$ premised upon perfonning and finnishing the 
Work reqnired by the Bidding Documents and applying any specific means, tnetllods. techniques. sequences, and 
procedures of construction that may be shoVln or indicated or expres:c,iy reqnired by the Bidding Docutnents, that 
Bidder has given Engineer v.ritten notice of all conflicts, errors, alllbig:nities, and discrepancies that Bidder has 
discovered in the Bidding Doctnnents and the ",ritten resolutions thereof by are acceptable to Bidder, and that 
the Bidding Doctnnents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all tenllS and conditiollS for 
perfonlling and finnishing the Work. 

ARTICLE 5 - PRE-BID CONFERE~CE 

5.01 A pre-Bid conference wilt be held at 10:00 o.m.Jocal time on Febmary 24. 2016. at the Taylor Cowty 
Administrative Complex. 201 Green Pen,}" Florida 32347. Representatives of O\\ner and Engineer will be 
present to discuss the Project. Biddef"'f,re ellcotullged to attend and participate in the conference. Engineer will 
transmit to all prospective Bidders of record such AJdenda as Engineer COllSiders necessary in response to questions 
arising at the conferenc/if JUld or!lO less 10 days prior to the Bid Opening Date. Oral statements may not be relied 
upon and will not be binding or legnlly efiecl1Ye. 

ARTICLE 6 - SITE Al""'D OTHER AREAS 

6,01 The Site is identified in tlle Bidding Docwlents. Easements for pemlallent stmcnu'es or pemlallent changes in 
exi!<lin,g fusilities are to be obtained and paid for by OVlllet' lIDless othernise pro\ided in the Bidding Documents. All 
additiOMllands and access thereto reqnired for temporary construction facilities. col1Struction equipment or storage of 
materials and equipment to be inc01pOf8.ted in the Work are to be obtained and paid for by Contractor. 

ARTICLE 7 - INTERPRETATIONS Al'ID ADDENDA 

7.01 All questions about the meaning or intent of the Bidding Documents are to be submitted to the Project 
Manager or Engineer in writing. Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by Engineer in response to such 
questions will be issued by Addetlda mailed or delivered to all parties recorded by Engineer as having received the 
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Bidding Documents. Questions received less than ten (IO) days prior to the date for opening of Bids may not be 
answered. Only questions answered by Addenda \\'ill be binding. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications ",ill 
be without legal effect. 

7.02 Addenda may be issued to clarifY. correct. or change the Bidding Documents as deemed advisable by O\\Uel 
or Engineer. 

ARTICLE 8 - BID SECURITY 

8.01 Bid secmity will be required for this projeet. 

8.02 When required, A Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to Owner ill all ammm: of Five 
percent (5%) of Bidder's maxmuun Bid price and in the form of a certified check or money onit;r or a Bid bond 
(on the fonn attached) issued by a surety meeting the requirements of Paragraphs 5.0i anti ~.02 the General 
Conditions. 

8.03 The Bid secmity of the Successful Bidder VJill be retained until snch Bidder has executed the Contract 
Doclunents, fiu:nished the required contract secmity and met the other q)Dditions of the .Norice of Award. whereupon 
the Bid security ",ill be returned. If the Successful Bidder fails to exec:ute and deliver the Contract Docmnents and 
fiu:nish the required contract secmity ",i.thin 15 days after the Notice ofA\\'ard. O\\'ller may annul the Notice of Award 
and the Bid security ofthat Bidder ",ill be forfeited The Bid seemity ofother Bidder<: whom O\\'ller believes to have a 
reasonable chance ofreceil.1ng the award may be retained by Ov.ller until the earlier of seven days after the Effective 
Date of the Agreement or 61 days after the Bid opening, whereupon Bid seemity fiunished by such Bidders \\ill be 
returned. 

8.04 Bid security of other Bidders whom O\\'ller believes <It) nm have a reasonable chance of receiving the award 
will be returned within seven days after the Bid opening. 

ARTICLE 9 - CONTRACT TIMES 

9.01 The number ofdays \\i.thin wbi;::h, or the dates by which, the Work is to be substantially completed and ready 
for final payment are sei forth in the Agreelnent. 

ARTICLE 10 - LIQtJIDATED DAMAGES 

10.01 Provisions for liquidated damages. ifany, are set forth in the Agreenlent. 

.ARTICLE 11 - SUBSTITUTE AND "OR-EQUAL" ITEMS 

11.01 The Contract. if awarded, -will be on the basis of materials and equipment specified or desC1ibed in the 
Bidding Doclunents -wi.thout consideration of possible substitute or "or-equal" items. Whene\'er it is specified or 
descn'bed in the Bidding Documents that a substitute or "or-equal" itenl of material or equipment may be fiu:nished or 
used by Contractor if acceptable to Engineer, application for such acceptance will not be considered by Engineer until 
ilfter the Effective Date of the Agreement. 
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ARTICLE 12 - SUBCONTR.<\CTORS, SUPPLIERS, AND OTHERS 


12.01 If the Bid Fonn or Supplementary Conditions require the identity of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers. 
individuals. or entities to be submitted to Owner in adv1Ulce of a specified date prior to the Effective Date of the 
Agreement the apparent Successftl.l Bidder, and any other Bidder so requested, shall 'within five days after Bid 
opening, submit to Owner a list of all such Subcontractors, Suppliers, individuals, or entities proposed fhr.toose 
portions of the Work for which such identification is required. Such list shall be accompanied by an exPerience 
statement vvith pertinent information regarding similar projects and other evidence of qualification for each such 
Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or entity if requested by Owner. IfOv.'ller or Engineer, after due investigation. has 
reasonable objection to any proposed Subcontractor, Supplier, individual. or entity. Owner may, before the Notice of 
Award is given, request apparent Successftll Bidder to submit a substitute. without an increase in the 

12.02 If apparent Successftll Bidder declines to make any such substitution, Ov\'ller may award the Contract to the 
next lowest Bidder that proposes to use acceptable Subcontractors, Suppliers, individuals. or entities. Decilliing to 
make requested substitutions will not constitute grounds for forfeiture of the Bul '>el..lmty of auyBidder. Any 
Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or entity so listed and against which Ov.l1er or Engineer makes no Written objection 
prior to the giving of the Notice of Award will be deemed acceptable to 0>.\11er ,mdEngineer subject to revocation of 
such acceptance after the Effective Date of the Agreement as provided in Paragraph 6.06 of the General Conditions. 

12.03 Contractor shall not be required to employ any Subcontractor. Supplier. individual. or entity against whom 
Contractor has reasonable objection. 

12.04 Contractor shall not award work to Subcontractor(s)in excess of the limits stated in SC 6.06. 

12.05 Any proposed Subcontractors shall provide proof of cu~:rent licensure in the related trade category for the 
work they will be perfonning. Further, all proposed Suwontra,;:fors shall be required to meet the same insurance 
requirements as that required for the Bidder either thmugb'iru employee relationship or separate coverage. Failure to 
provide proof of current licensure andlor i:n:.nrance will be considered a "Violation of contract terms and conditions and 
result in termination of award. 

ARTICLE 13 - PREPAR4.TION OF BID 

13.01 The Bid Fonnl~ includ~ with the Bidding Documents. Additional copies may be obtained fi'om Engineer or 
the Issuing Office. . 

13.02 All b~s on the Bid Form sIian be completed by printing in ink or by type\niter and the Bid signed in ink. 
Erasures or alteratiolls shall pc initialed in ink by the person signing the Bid Fo11ll. A Bid price shall be indicated for 
each [~ection. Bid iteri~,alte1native, adjustment unit price item, and unit price item] listed therein, or the words "No 
Bid.'· "No Change," or "Not AWlicable" entered. 

13.03. A Bid by a cOl]JOration shall be executed in the corporate uame by the president 01' a vice-president 01' other 
corpor~e officer accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The cOlporate seal shall be affixed and attested by the 
secretaly or an assistant secretary. The cOlporate address and state of incol]JOration shall be shown below the signattll'e. 

13.04 A Bid by a partnership shall be executed in the partnership name and signed by a partner (whose title nmst 
appear nnder the signature). acconlpanied by evidence of authority to sign. The official address of the partnership shall 
be shown below the signature. 

13.05 A Bid by a limited liability company shall be executed in the name of the firm by a menlber and accompanied 
by evidence of authority to sign. The state of fonnation of tile finn and the official ad<h:ess of tile finn shall be sho\\n 
below the signattll'e. 
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13.06 A Bid by an individual shall show the Bidder's name and official address. 

13.07 A Bid by a joint venture shall be executed by each joint venturer in the mrumer indicated on the Bid Fonn. 
The official address of the joint venture shall be shov.n below the signature. 

13.08 All names shall be typed or printed in ink below the signatures. 

13.09 The Bid shall contain an acknowledgment of receipt of all Addenda. the numbers of which shall be filled in on 
the Bid Form. 

13.10 The address and telephone munber for connnunications regarding the Bid shall be shov.n. 

13.11 The Bid shall contain evidence of Bidder's authority and qualification to do business in the state where the 
Project is located or covenant to obtain such qualification prior to award of the Contract. Bidder's state contractor 
license number, ifany, shall also be shown on the Bid Form. 

ARTICLE 14 - BASIS OF BID; COMPARISON OF BIDS 

14.01 Lump Slim 

A Bidders shall submit a Bid on a lwnp sum basis for the base Bid and include a separate price for each alternate 
described in the Bidding Docwnents as provided for in the Bid Form. The price for each alternate v.ill be the amount 
[added to] [or} [deleted from] the base Bid ifO\\ner "elects the alternate. In the comparison ofBids, alternates v.ill be 
applied in the same order as listed in the Bid form. 

14.02 The Bid price shall include such amounts as dIe Bidder deems proper for overhead and profit on account of 
cash allowances, ifany. nruned in the C0l1tract DOClllrents as provided in Paragraph 11.02 of the General Conditions. 

" ~ 

14.03 Bid prices will be compared after adjusting for ditlerences in the time designated by Bidders for Substantial 
Completion. The adjusting amount will be determined at the rate set forth in the Contract Documents for liquidated 
damages for failing to achieve Sub'!!tantial Completion for each day before or after the desired date apperuing in 
Article 9. 

ARTICLE 15 - SUBMITTAL OF BID 

15.01 With each copy ofthe Bidding DoclUnents, a Bidder is fhrnished one separate unbolUJd copy of the Bid Fonn.. 
and, ifrequll:ed, the Bid Bond Form. The lUlbound copy ofthe Bid Fonn is to be completed and submitted with the Bid 
security and the following data: 

fA. :aid Bond (5%)] 

[B. Certificates of Liability Insurance or Agency Statement] 


[CO DeClaration Page from Workers' Compensation Insurance or Exemption Certificate issued by the State] 


[D. Wmkers' Compensation Hold Hannless Agreement (Required when submitting a w.e. exemption)] 

[E. Public Entity Crimes Affidavit. signed and notarized as required by Chapter 287. 133(3)(a) ] 

[F. Non-Collusion Affidavit 
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[G. Valid Business/Contractor LicensinglRegistration Information 

[H. Proof of ClUTent qualification 'with the Florida Department of Transportation in Tallahassee. Florida to 
conduct the scope ofwork outlined in these specifications.] 

[1 ProofofContractor and anv subcontractors enrollment in and compliance ""jth the De.partment ofHomeland 
Secmlty's E-Verify Ell.wloyment Eligibility Verification system or a statement that such compliance ,}ill be 
prior achieved prior to contract execution,] 

[J. List of Proposed Subcontractors and pOltion of work provided {Include: Scope of proposed Work Value of 
work.. % oftotan 

[K. List ofProposed Suppliers {Include: List ofproposed supplies. Value of supplies. % oftotan . 

[L. List ofProject References 

15.02 A Bid shall be submitted no later than the date and time prescrihd and at the place indicated in the 
Advertisement or Invitation to Bid and shall be enclosed in an opaque sealed envelope plainly nwked with the Project 
title (and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Project for which the Bid is submitted), the UaDle and address of 
Bidder, and shall be accompanied by the Bid security (""nen required) and other required documents. If a Bid is sent 
by mail or other delivery system, the sealed envelope containing the Bid shall be enclosed in a separate envelope 
plainly marked on the outside v.ith the notation "Ost~~n Road reR 35913) ltid~ning/llesllr(acing." Hand deliveries 
and mailed Bids shall be addressed to Clerk of Court, 1sCfloor Courthouse, 108 North Jefferson Street, Suite 102, 
Peny, Florida 32347. Bids subDlitted by Overnight delivery shall also be delivered to the physical address of the Clerk 
ofCoUt1: Clerk ofCourt, 1st Floor Courthouse, 108North Jefferson Street, Suite 102, Perry, Florida 32347. 

15.03 The Taylor County Board ofCotmty Com1Dis~ioneri; DO£S NOT ACCEPT F A.XED PROPOSALS. 

15.04 Proposals that are not delivered to the place indicated in the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid prior to the 
date and time prescribed shall not be cQhsidered and ",ill be returned to the responder unopened. 

15.05 Incomplete Bid proposal~ that donot provide the required information and/or the required number of copies, 
may be deemed incomplete by the Board ofCotmty Commissioners and not considered during the Bid Evaluation. 

ARTICLE 16 - MODIFICATION A.1~ WITHDRAWAL OF BID 

16.01 A Bidmay be modified or 'withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed in the manner that a Bid 
mnst be .executed and delivered to the place where Bids are to be submitted prior to the date and time for the opening of 
Bids, 

16.02, Oll.::e opened. no Bid may be v.ithdrawn prior to the Board of County COllWussioners action v.ithout 
written eOllsent of th;; Clerk ofCotut. 

ARTICLE 17 - OPENING OF BIDS 

17.01 Bids will be opened at the tinle and place indicated in the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid and, lulless 
ob\ionsly non-responsive, read aloud publicly. An abstract of the amounts of the base Bids and major alternates, if 
any, v.ill be made available to Bidders after the opening ofBids. 
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ARTICLE 18 - BIDS TO RKMAIN SUBJECT TO ACCEPTANCE 

18.01 All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for the period of time stated in the Bid Fonll. but (hvner may, in ih 
sole discretion.. release any Bid and return the Bid security prior to the end of this period. 

ARTICLE 19 - EVi\LUATION OF BIDS AND AWARD OF CONTRACT 

19.01 Owner reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion. to reject any or all Bid:;, to crull..:d or withdra\\ 
this bid solicitation at any time and waive any inegularities in the Bid process. Owner restncs the to 3,,,,,rd 
any contract to the respondent which it deems to offer the best overall service; therefore, O\.\l]cr is not bound to 
av.'atd any contract based on the lowest quoted price, Owner, in its sole and absl.11Ult' discretion.. abo reserves the 
right to waive any minor defects in the process and to accept the bid deemed to be ill 'COUill) 's be,;! in~erest. 

19.02 Ov.'ller. in its sole and absolute discretion. also reserves the rig:bl to a loc.,l business preference in a 
maximum amOlmt of five (5) percent of the bid price pursuant to Taylm COllnty ordirlil1lCe No :!003-12. 

19.03 More tllan one Bid for the same Work fi'om an individual or lmder the same or different names v.ill not 
be considered. Reasonable !tfOlmds for believing that any Bidder has an interest in mOT">! than one Bid for the Work 
may be cause for disqualification of that Bidder and the rejection ofall Bids in 'V,iJich that Bidder has an interest. 

19.04 In evaluating Bids, Owner will consider whether or l1(lt the Bids comply v.ith the prescribed requirements, and 
such alternates, tmit prices and other data, as may be requested in the Bid Fonll or prior to the Notice ofAward. 

19.05 In evaluating Bidders, Chvner v.ill consider the qualillcations of Bidders and may consider the qualifications 
and experience of Subcontractors. Suppliers, and other individuals or entities proposed for those portions of the Work 
for which the identity of Subcontractors:. Suppliers, and o~ber individuals or entities must be submitted as pro·dded in 
the Supplementaty Conditions. 

19.06 Ov.'ller may conduct '"uch inv~tigations as Ov.'ller deems necessary to establish the responsibility, 
qualifications, and financial ability ef Bidders, prow-sed Subcontractors, Suppliers. individuals. or entities to perf01111 

tlJe Work in accordance v.ithl:he Contract DoclUuents. 

19.07 If the Contracti;) to be In'vllIded, Ovmer v.ill award the Contract to the Bidder whose Bid is in the best 
interests of the Project. 

ARTICLE 20 - CONTRACT SECURITY AND INSUR.ANCE 

20.(;1 Ardc1e 5 of the General Conditions, as may be modified by the Supplementary Conditions, sets forth Ch'ller's 
requirements as to perfonnance and payment bonds and insurance. When the Successful Bidder deliYers the executed 
Agreement to Q\vner. it shall be accompauied by such bonds. 

20.01 All Proposals submitted require General Liability and Workmen's Compensation hlSllfance. and must 
indude a Certificate of Insurance showing the coverage(s) required, listing Taylor COlmty as an additional insured, 
or a sworn statement from an insurance agent, verifying that if the prospective respondent is av.'atded the bid, a 
Certificate of Insurance will be issued to the successful respondent within thirty (30) days of the acceptance of the 
proposal, in the amouut stated. Also include the Declaration Page from the insurance policy. showing Workmen's 
Compensation Insurance on all employees working on the project. Any respondent, who does not finnish the 
required insurance docwnents v.ithin thirty (30) days after the bid award. is hereby advised that the bid will be given 
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to the next lowest respondent who meets all proposal specifications. Workers' Compensation exemptions will be 
accepted upon providing a current cel1ificate, Articles of Incorporation. and a signed Taylor COlmty Workers' 
Compensation Hold Hannless Agreement. Any responder who does not furnish the required insurance documents 
\\ill not be considered. 

ARTICLE 21 - SIGNING OF AGREEl\IENT 

21.01 When Owner gives a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it shall be accompanied by the required 
number of unsigned cOlmterparts of the Agreement with the other Contract DOClUnents which are identified in the 
Agreement as attached thereto, Within 15 days thereafter, Successful Bidder shall sign and deliver the required number 
of counterparts of the Agreement and attached documents to Owner. Within ten days thereafi~L Owner shall deliver 
one fully signed counterpart to Successful Bidder with a complete set ofthe Drawings with appropriate identification. 

ARTICLE 22 - SALES AND USE TAXES 

22.01 Owner is exempt from Florida state sales and use taxes on al1 Direct Pm'chased materials and equipment to 
be incorporated in the Work. Said taxes for such items shall not be included in the Bid. Refer to Paragraph SC-6.l0 
of the Supplementary Conditions for additional infonnation. 

22.02 O\\'Uer is exempt from payment of sales and compensating use taxes of the State of FlOlida and of cities 
and cOlmties thereof on all materials to be incorporated into the Work which are Direct Purchased by Owner. 
Contractor pm-chases are not eligible for this exemption and suchcosts shall be accounted for 'within the Bid. 

1. O\\'ller \\ill furnish the required certIficates of tax exemption to Contractor for use in the pm-chase 

of Direct Purchased supplies and nmterials to be incorporated into the Work. 


2. Owner's exemption does not apply to supplies, materials, or construction tools. machinery, ! 
equipment. or other property purchased by or leased by Contractor. or to supplies or matelials not Iincorporated into the Work. !" 

i 

i 
t 

ARTICLE 23 - RETAINAGE 

!
23.01 Pr01isions concerning Contractor's rights to deposit securities in lieu of retainage are set forth in the I
Agreement. I 

~ 

f 
ARTICLE 24 - CONTRACTS TO BE ASSIGNED i 

! 

24.01 Ovmer as "buyer" v.ill execute a contract with the successful Bidder as "seller" for the procm-ement of Igoods and special services for Osteen Road (eR 359m Widening/Resurfacing. The materials and equipment i
pro\"ided for in the procm-ement contract are to be furnished and delivered to the Site [or other location] for ! 
installation by Contractor. The said procurement contract v.ill be assigned by Owner to Contractor as set fOlth in the I
Agreement. Contractor will accept the assignment and assunle responsibility for the "seller", who \\ill become a 
Subcontractor to Contractor. 

r 
,.f24.02 Bidders may examine the contract doclUuents for the procurement of goods and special services for Project 

at the Issuing Office. f 
~ 
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ARTICLE 1 BID RECIPIENT 

1.01 	 This Bid is submitted to: 

Taylor County Board ofCOllnty Commissioners 

Clerk ofCourt 

pi Floor COllrtllouse, StlUe 102 

108 North Jefferson Sf. 

Perry, Florida 32347 


1.02 	 The lUldersigned Bidder proposes ,md agrees. if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement with 
Owner in the form included in Bidding Documents to perfofln all Work as specified or indicated in the 
Bidding DOCWlleut" for the and wirhin the times indicated in tIlis Bid and in accordance with the 
otIler tenus and conditions of the Bidding Docmnents. 

ARTICLE 2 BIDDER'S AC~OWLEDGEMENTS 

2.01 	 Bidder accepls. all of !he terms and conditions ofthe Instructions to Bidders. including "ithout linlitation those 
. dealing Vlith the di~"position of Bid security. This Bid \\111 remain subject to acceptance for 60 days after the 
Bid opening. or for such longer period of time that Bidder may agree to in wTiting upon request of Ov.ller. 

ARTICLE 3 BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIO~S 

3,01 	 In subnlitting this Bid, Bidder represents iliat: 

A. 	 Bidder has exanllned and carefully studied the Bidding Documents. the other related data identified in 
the Bidding Docwnents, and the following Addenda, receipt ofwhich is hereby acknowledged. 

Addendum No. AddendlIDl Date 
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B. 	 Bidder has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general. local and Site 
conditions that may affect cost. progress, and performance of the Work. 

C. 	 Bidder is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local Laws and Regulations that may 
affect cost, progress and performance of the Work. 

D. 	 Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions lit or 
contiguous to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing swface or 
substnface structures at or contiguous to the Site (except UndergrOlmd Facilities) which have been 
identified in SC-4.02, and (2) reports and dra'wings of Hazardous Environmental Conditions that have 
been identified in SC-4.06. 

E. 	 Bidder has obtained and carefblly studied (or accepts the consequences for not doing so) all addirional 
or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations. tests, ,-,tudies and data concerning 
conditions (stnface, subsurface and UndergroUlld Facilities) at or ttl the S:i!~ which may 
affect cost, progress, or perfonnance of the Work or which relate to any a!.pect of the m<:ans, methods, 
tec1ll1iques. sequences. and procedmes of construction to be by Bidder, including applying 
the specific means, methods, techniques, sequences. and procedmes construclion expressly required 
by the Bidding Documents to be employed by Bidder. and safety precantions and programs incident 
thereto. 

F. 	 Bidder does not consider that any ftuther examinations, in\·e'5tigations. explorations, tests, studies, or 
data are necessary for the detennination of this Bid for perfonnl.lllCe of the Work at the price(s) bid and 
within the times and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding DocUlllents. 

G. 	 Bidder is aware of the general natme {If ",mIk to he pelfonned by Owner and others at the Site that 
relates to the Work as indicated in the Biddmg Docml1ents. 

H. 	 Bidder has correlated the infoDlhilion known to Bidder. infonnation and observations obtained from 
visits to the Site, repoft.; and drawings identified in the Bidding DocUlllents. and all additional 
examinations. investigauons, explorations, test!';, studies, and data ~ith the Bidding DocUlllents. 

1. 	 Bidder has given Engineer \,'fitten notice of all conflicts, elTors, ambiguities. or discrepancies that 
Bidder has discovered ill the Biddin¥ Documents, and the ",'litten resolution thereof by Engineer is 
acceptable to Bidder. 

1. 	 The Bidding Documents are g~llerally sufficient to indicate and convey lUlderstallding of all tenus and 
conditions tor the performance of the Work for which this Bid is submitted. 

K. 	 Bidder \\ill submit written evidence of its authority to do business in the state where the Project is 
located no.t later than the date of its execution of the Agreement. 

ARIICLE 4 - FURT1IERREPRESE:\lATIONS 

4.01 Bidder Ru1her represents that: 

A 	 this Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalfof any lUldisclosed individual or entity 
and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or mles of any group. association. organization 
or corporation: 

B. 	 Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham 
Bid; 

C. 	 Bidder has not solicited 01' induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and 

EJCOC C-410 Suggestt'd Bid Form for Construction Contracts 
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D. 	 Bidder has not sought by collusion to obtain for itself any advantage over any other Bidder or over 
Owner. 

ARTICLE 5 - BASIS OF BID 

5.01 	 Bidder \\ill complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following pric<.:(,,); 

Osteen Road WideninglReslufacing Project: 2013-003-ENG 


Total Lump Sum Bid Price $_­

160 Days 	 (words) (muB,.:rals) 

Any and all specified cash allowances are included in the price(s) set fOlth ab::ye ami have btt."u computed in 
accordance with Paragraph 11.02 of the General Conditions. 

Bidder acknowledges that estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and are solely the purpose of comparison of 
Bids, and final payment for all Unit Price Bid items will be based on adual quantities, determmed as provided in the 
Contract Documents. 

Bidder also acknowledges that the award of this project or any portion thereof '.viII be contingent upon the 
availability of ftmds. If ftmding is not available to award the project in its entirety, the Board of County 
Commissioners reserves the right to award portions thereof so as to remain v.ithin available ftmding. Such partial 
award will not relieve the Bidder from complying with the full requirements of the aViarded portions as more 
specifically detailed within these specifications. 

ARTICIJE 6 Tl.\tIE OF COMPLETION 

6.01 	 Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will be completed and ready for final 
payment in accordance " ..-jth Paragraph 14.07.B of the General Conditions on or before the dates or ",ithin 
the nwnber of calendar d.'lYs indicated in the Agreement. 

6.02 	 Bidder accepts the pfly,isions ofthe Agreement as to liquidated damages ill the event offuilure to complete 
the Work withiu the C01Ur3ct Tilnes, 

ARTICIJE 7 ~ AITACIl.\1E~lS TO TIllS BID 

7.01 	 'flle follo\\ing docnments are attached to and made a condition of this Bid: 

A. 	 Required Bid security ill the foo11 of__ 

B. 	 Certifii..:ate of liability Insurance or Agency Statement 

C. 	 D(;daration Page foon Workers' Compensation Insurance or Exemption Issued by the State ofFlorida 

D, 	 Workers' Compensation Hold Harmless Agreement (Required when submitting a w.e. exemption) 

E. 	 Public Eutity Crimes Affida~it signed and notarize<L as required by Chapter 287. 133(3)(a), F.S. 

F. 	 Non-Collusion Affidavit 

G. 	 Valid Busilless/Contractor LicensinglRegistratioll Information 

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts 
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H. 	 Proofof current qualification \lith the Florida Department of Transportation in Tallahassee, Florida to i
conduct the scope of work outlined in these specifications. I

1. 	 Proof of Contractor and any subcontractors enrollment in and compliance with the Department of 1 
Homeland Security's E-Verify Employment Eligibility Verification system or a statement that such 
compliance will be prior achieved prior to contract execution. I 

fJ. 	 List of Proposed Subcontractors and portion of work provided (Include: Scope of proposed 
Value ofwork, % of total) I 

K. 	 List ofPmposed Suppliers (Include: List ofproposed supplies, Value ofsupplies, % of total) l 
! 
I 

L. 	 List ofProje<:t References ~ 
I 
€ 
f 

I 
f 

ARTICLE 8 - DEFINED TERMS 

8.01 	 The temlS used in this Bid widl initial capital letters have the meaningc, stated ill the Instructions to Bidders, ~ 
Ithe General Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions. ~ 

! 
~ 

~ 

ARTICLE 9 BID SUBMITTAL 	 ~ 

9.01 This Bid submitted by: 	 i 
i 
!

IfBidder is: I 

I 
l 

An Individual 

Name (typed or printed): _________________ 

I 
fBy: (aln~dhi;.17~a~ll~al~~;s;i;~~n;ti~1I~re~)--------~---------____ (SEAL) 	 i 
f 

I 
~Doing business as: ___-.,....___:.......________________ 	
~ 


A Partnership 	 i•
I 

Partn~rship Name: (SEAL) 	 I 
i 

By: ___~~_______________________ 	 I ~ 

(Signature ofgel/eral partner -- attach evidence ofauthority to sign) f 
Name (typed or printed): ____________________ !,

f 

I 
I 

A Corporation. 

I 
I 

Corporation Name: 	 (SEAL) 
f 

State of Incorporation: ______________________________ l 
Type (General Business, Professional. Service, Limited Liability):.___________ lBy: _______________________________________________ 

r(Signature -- attach el'idence ofauthority to sign) l 
EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts 
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Name (typed or printed): __________________ 


Title: __________________ 
 (CORPORATE SEAL) 

Attest _________________________ 

Date of Authorization to do business in FLORIDA is 

A Joint Venture 

Name of Joint Venrure: _________________________________ 

First Joint Venturer Name: (SEl\L) 

By:~-----------------------------
(Signature offirstjoint venture partner - attach el'hlence ofauthority to :o/g1/) 

Name (typed or printed): _________-"-________ 

Title: __________________________ 

Second Joint Vennrrer Name: (SEAL) 

By: 
(Signature ofsecondjoint wmture partner -- attach el'idellce ofauthority to sign) 

Name (typed or printed): ___________________ 

Title: __________________________ 

(Each joint venturer mm! sign. The manner of signing for each individual. partnership, and 
cOlporation that is a party to the joint venmre should be in the manner indicated above.) 

Bidder's Business Address _______________________ 

Phone No. Fax No. __________ 


SUB:rvITITED on . 20 __, 


State Contractor License No. . (Ifapplicable) 


EJCDC C-410 Suggestw Bid Form for Construction Contracts 
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HOLD HARw..ESS. RELEASE AND ThllEMNIlY AGREEME.:~T 

COMES NOW, (Contractor), after having obtained a State 

of Florida Workers' Compensation Exemption Certificate, a copy of which is attached hereto and marked Exhibil 

"A", and in Consideration of Taylor COlmty (Owner) having accepted said Worker's Compensation exemptlon and 

Ovwner having agreed for Contractor to proceed v.ith the follov.ing project. to-\\it: 

Osteen Road (CR 359B) WideninglResuifacing 

Taylor County, Florida' 


Contract: The intent of this contract is to secure all labor and equipment required for the Osteen Road (CR 359B) 

WideninglResurfacing project in Taylor Comlty, Florida. This projecl consisb (If \\idcning and resurfacing an 

existing approximately 20 ft v.ide road to a 24 ft ,vide paved road\',-ay. This work ';;ffort will include installing 

limerock widening strips, variable depth limerock overlay, reclaiming lhe existing asphalt, and restufacing the 

roadway. The project will also include reshaping ditches, extending. removing. and installing guardrail and 

stomlwater culverts. sigIlage and pavement marking~. as more funy detailed in the project plans and specifications. 

The tenn Contractor is hereby defi1Jl;;d to inclta1c all. ov.ners, lllallaging members. employees and successors 


contractually obligated to perfoml the above I'foject. 


The term Owner is hereby defined to include Taylor County Board of County Commissioners. it directors, 


employees, attomey(s), and desi!?,llated representatives. 


1. Contfi;tctor hereby agrees to indemnify. hold harmless and defend O,\ner from any liability, claim. 

demand, action. cause of action, suit. loss. dalllage, expense. cost, attorney fee. settlement or judgment as a result 

any iujury while perfonning the above project. I will not allow anyone to subcontract and no other person will be 

aliowed on the job site. 

2. Contractor also hereby agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and release Owner. from any liability. 

claim, demand. action, cause of action, suit. loss, dalllage, expense. cost. settlement or judgment for any medicaL 

dental. orthopedic, surgery or any expense as a result of any injury on said project. 

Page 1 of2 



FDOT SCRAP: Osteen Road (CR359B) WideninglR.esuriilcing 2013-OO3-ENG 

3. Contractor hereby agrees to release Owner from liability of whatever kind of nattn'e as a result of 

any injury on the above project. 

4. Contractor hereby agrees that venue of any litigation, as a result of this Hold Hanuless Releas,: 

and Indenmity Agreement shall be exclusively i.ll Taylor County. Florida and the laws of the State of FIOlidi! shall 

govern. 

5. Contractor hereby agrees that they have relied on the legal advice of an attorney Jud that they fully 

understand dus agreement and have voluntarily executed same. 

DONE AND EXECUTED this __day of_________. 

WITNESS: 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF TAYLOR 

I hereby certify that on this day personally appeared before me, an officer duly authorized to administer 
oaths and take acknowledgments, __~_.___.__;~I? me well knovm and known to me to be the individual 
described in and who executed the foregoi.ng. and ack110i\Vledged before me that they executed the 5an1e freely and 
vohmtarily for the purpose therein expressed. 

Witness my hand and official seal this ~._day of ___ 

NOTARY PUBliC 

My COlllmission Expires: _______ 

dayof________. __Accepted by Taylor COlIDty, Florida this 

Page 2 of2 
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SWORl~ STATEMENT UllmER SECTION 287.133(3)(a), 

FLORIDA STATUTES, ON PUBLIC E:\lITY CRIMES 


THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBliC OR OTHER OFFICER 
AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS. 

1. 	 This sworn statement is submitted with Bid. Proposal or Contract No.__________ 

fur______________________________________________________________ 

2. 	 This sworn statement is submi.tted by (Name ofentity submitting sworn statemell~~ 


Whose business address .~______________________ 


(ifapplicable) its Federal Employer Identification Nwuber (FEIN) "._~ ____. ' 
(if the entity has no FEIN, include the.Social Security Nwuberofthe indn;idual signing this sworn 

statement___________________ 

3. 	 My name is and my relationship to the entity 

nruneabove.~_______________ 

4. 	 I understand that a "public entity crime" as d'Cfl1led in Paragraph 287. 133 (l)(g), Florida Statutes, means a 
violation of any state or federal law by a person '.\;th respect to and directly related to the transaction of 
business 'with any public entity or nrith an agency or political subdivision of any other state or ",ith the 
United States, including, but not limitedJo. any bid or contract for goods or services to be provided to any 
public entity or an agency Of political subdhision of any other state or of the United States and involving 
antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering. conspiracy, or lnaterial misrepresentation. 

5. 	 I tmderstand that "convicted" "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287-133(I)(b), Florida Statutes, 
means a finding ofguilt or a conviction public entity crime, with or without an adjudication of guilt. in 
any federal or~tate trial cOurlQi'record i'elating to charges brought by indictment or infoflllation after July 
1. 1989, as a'l;'eSUlt of n jury nonjury verdict, nonjury triaL or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo 
contendere. 

6. 	 I und~~tand that an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287. 133(1)(a), Florida Statutes, means: 
a...... A predecessor or successor ofa person comicted of a public entity crime: or 
b. 	 An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity 

and who has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers, 
directors, executives. partners, shareholders, employees. members. and agents ",ho are in the 
management of an affiliate. The o\\llership by one person of shares constihlting: a controlling 
interest in another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair 
market value under an aml'S length agreement shall be a plima facie case that one person controls 
another person. A person who knO\\ingly enters into a joint venhtre with a person who has been 
convicted of a public entity crime in FlOlida during the preceding 36 months shall be considered 
an affiliate. 

7. 	 I understand that a ''person'' as defined in Paragraph 287. 133(l)(g)(e), Florida Statutes, means any natural 
person or entity organized under the laws ofany state or the United States with the legal power to enter into 
a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for the provisions of goods or services let 
by a public entity. or which otherv.ise transacts or applies to transact business ,,,ith a public entity. The 
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tenn "person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders. employees, members, 
and agents who are active in management ofan entity. 

8. 	 Based on information and belief, the statemenl, which I have marked below. is true in relation to the entity 
submitting this sworn statement. (please indicate which statement applies) 

___ Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officers, directors. executives. partners. 
shareholders, employees, members or agents who are active in management of the entity. 110r affihare of the 
entity has been charged with and comicted of a public entity Clime subsequent to July 1. 1989. 

___ The entity submitting this SWOlll statement, or one or more of the officers, directors. e:~ecutives. partners. 
share holders, employees. members, or agents who are active in management oftbe entity h;,;;; been charged 
'With and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989 AND (Please indicate whidl 
additional statement applies.) 

There has been a proceeding conceming the conviction before a \~mcer of the State of 
Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings. The final order entered by the hearing officer did 
not place the person or affiliate on the convicted vendor H"L (Please attach a copy of the final 
order). 

The person or affiliate was placed on the comicted vendor list. Tllere has been a subsequent 
proceeding before a hearing office of the State of FJOlida, Division of Administrative Hearings. 
The final order entered by the hearing officer determilled that it was in the public interest to 
remove the person or affiliate from the convicted vendor li~t. (Please attach a copy of the fmal 
order.) 

The person or affiliate has not been placed on the convicted vendor list. (Please describe any 
action taken by or pending 'With the Departulent ofGelleral Services.) 

(Signature) 	 (Date) 

STATEOF __________________ 

COUNfY 

PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE ME. the undersigned authority, _______________________ 
(Name ofindividual signing) 

who, after first being sworn by me, a:ffi.'Ced hislher signattrre in the space provided above on this day 

NOTARY PUBUC 
My COlIUl:ussion expires: 
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NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 

(STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF TAYLOR) 

___________________ being fIrst duly sworn. deposes and says that: 

(1) 	 He/ShefThey is/are the of 
(Owner. Partner. Officer, Representative or Agent) 


__________________, the Bidder that has submitted the attached Bid: 


(2) HelShefThey is/are fully infonned respecting the preparation and contents 	of the attached Bid and of all 
pertinent circmnstances respecting such Bid: . 

(3) 	 Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid: ! 
~ 

(4) 	Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, O\vners, agents, representatives. employees or parties in ~ 

tinterest. including tllls affiant, have in any way colluded. conspired. connived or agreed, du:ectly or indirectly. I 
with any other Bidder, finn, or person to submit a collusive or sham Bid ill c.onnection with the Work for which I 

the attached Bid has been submitted; or to refraul from Bidding in connection v,ith such Work: or have in any l 
i 

manner. directly or indirectly. sought by agreement or collusion, or conuuunication, or conference with any t 
Bidder, finn, or person to fix any overhead, profit. or cost elements of the Bid or of any other Bidder, or to fix 
any overhead, profit, or cost elements of the Bid Price or the Bid Price of any other Bidder, or to secure tllfOUgh 
any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or lllllav;ful agreement any a{h-flJltage against (Recipient), or any person 
interested in the proposed Work: 

(5) 	 The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fait and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance, or lllllav.ihl agreement on. the Pi'l~t of the BIDDER or any other of its agents, 
representatives. owners, employees or parties ofinterest. incJuding this affiant. 

Signed. sealed and delivered in tlle presence of: 

By:__.,--_________ 

Witness Signature 


Witness 	 Print Name and Title 

STATE OF FLORIDA (COUNTY OF TAYLOR) ! 
On this the day of ___ . before me. the undersigned Notary Public of the State of Florida. ~ 

f 
personally appeared (Name(s) of individual(s) who appeared before i 
notary) and whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within Affidavit of I 
Non-Coilllsion. and he/she/they acknowledge that he/she/they executed it. l 

~ 

W1TNESS my hand and official seal. 
Notruy Public. State ofFlorida 

NOTARY PUBLIC: 

SEAL OF OFFICE: 

(Name ofNotruy Public: Print, Stanlp or type as commissioned) 

__Personally known to me. or 

Personal identification: 

Type ofIdentification Produced 

Did take an oath. or 


Did Not take an oath_ 
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AGREEl\tIENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR FOR 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE) 

TIIIS AGREEMENT is by and bef:\veen Taylor County Board of County Conumssioners (O\\'1ler) and 

(Contractor). 

O\\'1ler and Contractor. in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein. agree as follo\\-s: 

ARTICLE 1 - WORK 

1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Docmnents. The Work is generally 

described as follows: 


Osteen Road (eR 359B) Widening/Resurfacing Contract: The intent of this contract is w secure all labor and equipment 

required for the Osteen Road (CR 359B) WideninglResurfacing project in Taylor Cmillt)'. Florida. This project consists 

of widening and resurfacing an existing approximately 20 ft wide road to 24 ft wide paved roadway. This work eifOlt 

will include installing limerock widening strips. variable depth limerock overlay, rec1i1iming the existing asphalt. and 

resurfacing the roadway. The project will also include reshaping ditches. removing. and installing guardrail 

and stonnwater culverts. signage and pavement markings, as flli)re fully detailed in the project plans and specifications. 


ARTICLE 2 TIlE PROJECT 

2.01 The Project for which the Work lillder the Contract DOClUlleut<; may be the whole or ouly a part is generally 

described as follows: 


This project is to a lump slim project, Wilh add/deduct items as specified on the Bid Proposal. 

ARTICLE 3 ENGINEEWFROJECT ADMIl"(STRATION 

3.01 The Proj~ct has been designed by: 

r 
Taylor County Engineering I 

l 
I201 East Street 


Perry, FL 32347 

850.8383500 


j
I 

3.02 The Project will be administered by: t 

! 
f 

Taylor County Enginel'Iing Dhision f 
l201 East Gn:t'u Street I 

Perry, Florida 32347 

I 
l 

(Engineer and Project Administrator), who is to act as Owner's representative. assume all duties and responsibilities, aud 

have the rights and authority assigned to Engineer in the Contract Documeuts in connection \\ith the completion of the Work 

in accordance \\ith the Contract Documents. 
 I 

,fEJCDC C-520 suggested Form ofAgret'ment Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (StiplIlated Price) 
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ARTICLE 4 COl'lTRACT TIMES 

4.01 Time of the Essence 

A All time limits for :Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion. and completion and readiness for final paymeIJ! as 
stated in the Contract Documents are ofthe essence of the Contract. 

4.02 Days to Achieve Substantial Completion and Final Payment 

A The Work ,,,ill be substantially completed within 150 days after the date when the Contract Times commence to nm 
as provided in Paragraph 2.03 of the General Conditions, and completed and ready for final payment in accordance "ith 
Paragraph 14.07 ofthe General Conditions v.ithin 160 days after the date when the Contract T:iJ.lli;:; COllllllem::e to nul. 

4.03 Liquidated Damages 

A Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence of tIus Agreement and that Ov.llel 'will suffer financial 
loss if the Work is not completed witllin the times specified in Paragraph 4.02 above. plus any extensions thereof allowed in 
accordance with Article 12 of the General Conditions. The patties also recognize the delay,,-. expense, and difficulties 
involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered by Owner jf the Work is not completed on 
time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proo( Ov.ller and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay 
(but not as a penalty), Contractor shall pay Ov.ller an alllOunt consistent ,"i1h Section 8-10 of the FDOT Standard 
Specifications for each day that expires after the time specified in Paragraph 4.92 for Sub;;,tantial Completion until the Work 
is substantially complete. After Substantial Completion. if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaiIling 
Work within the Contract Time or any proper extension thereof granted by Ov.ner, Contractor shall pay Ov.ller an amount 
consistent with Section 8-10 of the FDOT Standard Specifications for each day that expires after the time specified in 
Paragraph 4.02 for completion and readiness for final pa;y1llei:lt, \mtil the Work is completed and ready for final payment. 

4.04 Correction PeriodIWarranty 

A The Correction Period specified in Paragraph 13,1)7 of the General Conditions is modified to require that all 
workmanship and materials ftunished to complete this project;>uall be watTanted for no less than a three-year period after the 
date of final acceptance. 

ARTICLE 5 CONTRACT PRICE 

5.01 Ov.ller shall pay COIltractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract DoClmlents .an amOlUlt in 
current ftmds equal to the swn Qfthe amounts determined pursuant to Paragraphs 5.01.A below: 

A For all Work other thailUnit Price Work, a LlUnp Sum of: 

($~ 
(words) (munerals) 

AU spl!cific cash aUowances are included in the above price and have been COlnputed in accordance with paragraph 
11.02 of the Ueneral Conditions. 

ARTICLE 6 ~PAYMEl\l PROCEDlJRES 

601 Submittal and Processing of Payments 

A Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment ill accOrdatlCe with Alticle 14 of the General Conditions. 
Applications for Payment ,"ill be processed by Engineer as provided in the General Conditions. 

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage 

EJCDC C-S20 Suggl'Sted Form of . .\grffmen. Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price) 
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A Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of Contractor's Applications for 
Payment on or about the lOth day of each month dlning performance ofthe Work as prO\ided in Paragraphs 6.02.A1 and 
6.02.A2 below. All such payments 'will be measured by the schedule ofvalues established as provided in Paragraph '1JJ7.A 
of the General Conditions (and in the case ofUnit Price Work based on the munber ofunits completed) or, in the event There 
is no schedule ofvalues. as pfO',,;ded in the General Requirements: 

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments \Nill be made in an amount equal to the percentage indicalcd 
below but. in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously made and less such amounts as Engineer may detennine 
or Owner may withhold, including but not limited to liquidated damages. in accordance with Paragraph 14.02 of the 
General Conditions: 

a. 90% percent ofWork completed (with the balance being retainage): and 

b. 90% percent of cost of materials and equipment not incOIporated hI the Work (with the balance being 
retainage). 

2. Upon Substantial Completio~ OVlller shall pay an anlolIDt sufficiem.to increase total payments to Contractor to 
90% percent of the Work completed, less such amounts as Engineer "hall determine, or .OWNER may ",ithhold, in 
accordance with Paragraph 14.02.B.5 of the General Conditions and less Ten percent (10%) of Engineer's estimate of the 
value ofWork to be completed or corrected as shown on the tentative list of items to be completed or corrected attached to 
the certificate ofSubstantial Completion. 

6.03 Final Payment 

A Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 14.07 of the General Conditions. 
Ov.ner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recomm.ended by Engineer as pro'l;;ded in said Paragraph 14.07. 

ARTICLE 7 Th'TEREST 

7.01 All moneys not paid when due as provided in Article 14 of the General Conditions shall bear interest at the rate of 
Zero percent (0%) per arl1lum. 

ARTICLE 8 COl'."TRACTOR'S REPRE~ENTAnONS 

8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Agreement, Contractor makes the follo\\ing representations: 

A Contractor h~ts examined and carefully studied the Contract DOClIDlellts and the other related data identified in the 
Bidding Documents. 

B. Contractor htls visited the Site and become familiar ",ith and is satisfied as to the generat local, and Site conditions 
that may affect co<;{, progress, and performance of the Work. 

Contractor is famIliar with and is satisfied as to all federaL state, and local Laws and Regulations that may affect cost. 
progre'>s, and peliommnce of the Work. 

D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) rep011s of explorations and tests of substll'face conditions at or contiguous to 
me Site and all drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface or subsurface stmctul'es at or contiguolls to 
the Site (except UndergrOlUld Facilities) which have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions as provided in 
Paragraph 4,02 of the General Conditions and (2) rep011s and dra\Nings of a Hazardous Environmental Condition. if any, at 
the which has been identified in the Supplementary Conditions as pro\ided in Paragraph 4.06 of the General Conditions. 

E. Contractor has obtained and carefully studied (or assmnes responsibility for doing so) all additional or supplementary 
examinations. investigations. explorations, tests, studies, and data concemillg conditions (surface, subsurface, lind 

EJCDC C-S20 suggested Form of Agl-eement Bem-een OWner llIld Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Plite) 

Copyright. 2002 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJC.DC. AIllight'l r_rnd. 


00520-3 


http:sufficiem.to


FDOT SCRAP: Osteen Road (CR 359B) WideninglResurfacing 	 2013-003-ENG 

Underground Facilities) at or contiguous to the Site which may affect cost, progress, or perfonnance of the Work or which 
relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques. sequences. and procedures of construction to be employed by 
Contractor, including any specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction expressly required 
by the Bidding Docwnents. and safety precautions and programs incident thereto. 

F. Contractor does not consider that any fiJrther examinations, investigations, explorations, tests. studies. or data are 
necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Pllce, \\ithin the Contract Times, and in accordance >.Yith the other 
temlS and conditions of the Contract Docwnents. 

G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by O\\ller and others at the Site that relates to the 
Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 

H. Contractor has correlated the infonnation knO\\ll to Contractor, information and observations obtained from ,/1.,lts to 
the Site, reports and dr,mings identified in the Contract Documents. and all additional examinations, inve,tigations. 
explorations, tests, studies, and data "i.th the Contract Docunlents. 

L Contractor has given Engineer \\TItten notice of all conflicts. enors. ambiguities. or discrepancIes that Contractor has 
discovered in the Contract Documents, and the ,,'litten resolution thereof by EnfCin.:cr is acceptable to Contractor. 

J. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all tenns and conditions for 
perfomlance and furnishing of the Work. 

ARTICLE 9 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

9.01 Contents 

A. 	 The Contract Docrllllents consist of the follo\\ing: 


L This Agreement (pages 1 to 6, inclusive). 


2. 	 Perfonllance and Payment bond. 

3. 	 Standard General Conditioll'>, 

4. 	 Supplementary Conditions. 

5. 	 Specifications as listed in the table ofcontents of the Project Manual. 

6. 	 Drawing;;: consisting 132 sheets with each sheet bearing the following general title: Osteen Road feR 359B) 
WideninglReswfacinglor] the Dra\\ings listed on attached sheet index. 

Addenda (nulllbers __ to __, inclusive). 

8. 	 Exhibits to thi<; Agreement (enumerated as follows): 


a.Contrnctor's Bid (pages __ to __, inclusive). 


h. DoclDllentation sublllitted by Contractor prior to Notice ofAward (pages __ to __. inclusive). 

c. Contractor's and Subcontractor's Valid Business/Contractor LicensingIRegistration Information .. 

9. 	 The following which lllay be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement and are not 
attached hereto: 

a. 	 Notice to Proceed. 

E:.JCDC C-S20 Suggested Form of .Agrtt'mf'nt Betwtt'n Owner and Contractor for Con~truction Contract (Stipulated Plice) 

Copyright. 2002 National Society of ProCessional Engintt'I'S for EJCDC. All rights resen"ed. 


005204 




, 

FOOT SCRAP: Osteen Road (CR 359B) WideninglR.esurfacing 2013-OO3-ENG 

! 

t 
I

b. 	 Work Change Directives. r 
c. 	 Change Order(s). i 

! 
i 

B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.0l.A are attached to this Agreement (except as expressly noted otherwise abcive). 
! 

t 
l 

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9. 	
~ 

ID. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in Paragraph 3.04 of the 
General Conditions. i 

IARTICLE 10 MISCELLAl"'EOUS 

10.01 Terms I 
A TemlS used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the Conditions and the Supplementary 

Conditions. 

10.02 Assignment ofColltract 

A No assigument by a party 11ereto ofany rigbts under o~interests in the Contract ''',;iIl be binding 011 another party 
hereto \.\;'t11out the written consent of the party sougbt to be bollhd: and, specifically but v.ithout limitation. moneys that may 
become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this ¥ 

restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any "'TIlten consent to an assignment, no 
assignment \\ill release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility lmder the Contract Documents. I
10.03 Successors and Assigns I 

A Owner and Contractor each binds itl>elf. its parlll'::ls, sa~cessors. assigns. and legal representatives to the other party f 
hereto, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal representath~~s in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligatiOllS r 
contained in the Contract Documents. 

10.04 Severability ! 
I 
~ 
~ 

A 	 Any provision ofpart of tlJe Contract Documents held to be void or amenforceable lmder any Law or Regulation 
shall be deemed stricken. and all remaining pro'\:isions shall continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and 
Contractor, who agt'ee that the Contract DoclUuents shall be refonned to replace such stricken provision or part 
thereof with 11 yalid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the 
stricken provision. l 

~ 

t 
I 
l 

10.05 Preference To State Residents ~ 
r 
I: 


Chapter 2010-147, Section 50, Laws of Florida. providing for preference to residents of the State of Florida, is i 

hereby made a of this Contract: Each contract that is ftmded by state ftmds must contain a provision requiring the t 

~ 


contractor. to give preference to the employment of state residents in the perfonnance of the work on the project if state ! 

residents ha\"e substantially eqnal qualifications to those of nonresidents, As used in this Section, the term "substantially 

~ 
f 

eqnal qualifications" means the qualification of two or more persons among whom the employer cannot make a reasonable i
determination that the qualifications held by one person are better suited for the position than the qnalifications held by the t 
other person or persons. t 

l10.06 Public Records Pro\;'sion ! 
I 
,t 

EJCDC C-520 Snggested Form ofAgreement Between Omter and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Pritt') t 
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A. In accordance v.ith Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contracts; Public records, Contractor shall specifically: 
a. 	 Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the public agency in 

order to perfonn the service. 
b. 	 Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions that the public agency 

would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in tlns chapter or as otherwise 
provided by law. 

c. 	 Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public record:; disclosure 
requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law. 

d. 	 Meet all reqillrements for retaining public records and transfer. at no cost, to the public agency all pllblk 
records in possession of the contractor upon tennination of the contract and destroy any duplicate public 
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records 
stored electronically must be provided to the public agency in a fonnat that is compatible with the 
infomlation technology systems of the public agency. 

10.07 Other Provisions 

A. Venue for disputes arising from this contract shall be Taylor COWlty, Florida. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and ContI'actor have signed tills Agreement in dupHc,t1te. One cowlterpart each has been 
delivered to Owner and Contractor. All pOltions of the Contract Documents have been !>i~'lled or identified by Owner and 
Contractor or on their behalf. 

Tills Agreement will be effective on ________________, (',villch is the Effective Date of the 
Agreement). 

OWl'''ER: 	 CO~TRACTOR: 

Taylor County Board ofCounty Cotntnissioners 

By: Dustin Hinkel 	 By: 

Title: COUllty Adnrinistrator 	 Title: 

{COUNTY SEAL] 	 {CORPORATE SEAL} 

Attest: Annie Mae Mwphy 	 Attest: 

Title: Taylor County Clerk ofCourt 	 Title: 

Address for givinflllotices: 	 Address for giving notices: 

108 North Jefierson St.. Suite.J02,P~, FL 32347 

OR 

P~O. Box 620. Perry, FL 32348 

License No.: 
(If ClImer is a cmporatton, attach evidence of aulhority to sign. If Owner (Where applicable) 
is a public hody, )dtach evidence of aulhority to sign and resolution or 
QtJIer documents authorizing execution ofOwner-Contractor Agreement.) 

Agent for service or process: 

(If Contractor is a corporation or a partnersillp. attach evidence 
ofautllOrity to sign.) 

EJCDC C-S20 Suggested FonD of Agl'ef'ml'llt Betwef'n Ownel' and Contractol' fol' Con~tru('tion Contract (Stipulated PIiee) 
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DAMAGES FORM 

BID BOND 

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 

BIDDER (Name and Address): 

I 
I 

SURETY (Name and Address ofPrincipal Place ofBusiness): I 
i 
~ 

I 
t 

OWNER (Name and Address): 

TAl"LOR COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COM:MISSIONERS 

108 NORTH JEFFERSON ST. 

PERRY FL 32347 
 ,l 
BID 

Bid Due Date: March 4,2016 i 
f 

Project (Brief Description Including Location): Osteen Road (eR 359B) Witlening/Res!lJJrJeing Contract: The intent of this t 
1contract is to secure all labor and equipment required for the Osteen Road 359B) WideninglResurfacing project in 

Taylor County, FIOlida. This project consists of widening and resurfacing an existing approximately 20 ft ",ide road to a 24 I 
ft wide paved roadway. This work effort will include installing limerock widening strips, variable depth limerock overlay. ~ 
reclauning the existing asphalt, and resurfacing the roadway. The project v.ill also include reshaping ditches, extending, rremo\ling, and installing guardrail and stonnwater culvelts, ~~gnage and pavement markings, as more fully detailed in the 
project plans and specifications. 

BOND 
Bond Number: I
Date (Not later than Bid due date):, t 
Penal Sunt: r 

t(W9tds) (Figures) 

fSurety and Bidder, intendin~~to be legally bOUlld her~hy. subject to the tenus printed on the reverse side hereof, do each 
cause this Bid Bond to be dulY.executedQn its behalfby its authorized officer. agent. or representative. f 
BIDDER 

-=-:,.-:-:'-~=----'--=-=-__~:--____ (Seal) 
Bidckr's Namt: and COIJlOrate Seal 

Signature and Title 

Attest: 
Signature and Title 

Note: Above addresses are to be used for giving required notice. 

J 
SURETY 

I 
J 

-=:-_--:-::-::-_--=-=-__-=--:--___ (Seal) lSurety's Name and Corporate Seal i 

IBy: 
J'Signature and Title 

(Attach Power ofAttomey) ~ 
~ 

Attest: ~ 

Signature and Title f 


J 

• 
~ 
~ 

~ 
EJCOC NO. C-435 (2002 Edition) 00435-1 ! 
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DA.l\fAGES FORM 

1. Bidder and Surety. jointly and severally, bind 
tllemselves. their heirs. executors. administrators. 
successors, and assigns to pay to Owner upon default of 
Bidder any difference between the total amOlmt of Bidder's 
Bid and the total amOlwt of the Bid of the next lowest, 
responsible Bidder who submitted a responsive Bid as 
determined by Owner for the work required by the Contract 
Documents, provided that: 

1.1. 	 Ifthere is no such next Bidder, and Owner does not 
abandon the Project, then Bidder and Surety shall 
pay to Owner the penal sum set forth on the face of 
this Bond. and 

1.2.In no 	event shall Bidder's and Surety's obligation 
herelUlder exceed the penal smn set fOlth on the 
face of this Bond 

2. Defaldt of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder 
to deliver within the tinte required by the Bidding 
Docmnents (m' any extension thereof agreed to in writing by 
Owner) the executed Agreement required by tlIe Bidding 
Docmnents and any performance and payment bonds 
required by the Bidding Documents. 

3. This obligation shall be null and void if: 
3.LOwner accepts Bidder's Bid and Bidder delivers 

-within the time required by the Bidding Documents 
(or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by 
O\vner) the executed Agreement required by 
Bidding Documents and any perfoflnance and 
payment bonds required by the Biddin§r 
Documents, 01' 

3.2.All Bids are rejected by Owner, or 
3.3.0\\'ller fails to issue 	a Notice of Award to Bidder 

within the time specified in tlJi Biddin~ Documents 
(or any extension thereof agreed to. in v.Titing by 
Bidder and. if applicable, consented to by Surety 
\-vhen required by Paragi'aph 5 hereof). 

4. Payment twder this Bond be due and payable upon 
defaldt by Bidder and within calendar days after receipt 
by Bidder and of \\T1tten notice of default from 
O\\'ller. which notice will he given with reasonable 

promptness. identifying tlus Bond and the Project and 
including a statement of the amOlwt due. 

5. Surety waives notice ofany and all defenses based on or 
arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of Award 
agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder. provided thitt the 
total time for issuing Notice of Award including exteo,llms 
shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from Bid due 
date without Surety's \\Titten consent 

6. No suit or action shall be commenced lUlder tlIis Bond 
prior to 30 calendar days after the 110tice ofdefault required 
in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and 
in no case later than one year aftel Bid du.e date. 

7. Any suit or action lUlder this Bond shall be 1:00mnenced 
only in a court of compdent juri sdiction located in the state 
in which the Project is located. 

8. Notices rCtllmoed 1lclclmdel ~hall be in \\Titing and sent to 
Bidder and Surety at their respectl,,'e addresses shown on the 
face of thi& Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal 
delivery, commercial coUrito"f. or by United States Registered 
or Certified Mail, return ro:::ceipt requested, postage pre-paid. 
and shall be deemed be effective upon receipt by the 
party concerned. 

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current 
and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority of 
the offk:er, agent, or representative who executed this Bond 
on behalf of Surety to execute. seal, and deliver such Bond 
and bind the Surety thereby. 

10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable 
stanltory requirements. Any applicable reqtllrement of any 
applicable statute that has been otnitted from this Bond shall 
be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at length. If 
any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable 
statute, then tlIe provision of said statute shall govern and 
the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith 
shall continue in frill force and effect. 

11. The term "Bid" as used herein includes a Bid, offer. or 
proposal as applicable. 

EJCDC NO. C-43S (2002 Edition) 00435-2 
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PERFORl\1ANCE BOND 

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Ov.ner, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): SURETY (Name and Address of Principal Place ofBusiness): 


OWNER (Name and Address): 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY CO:MMISSIONERS 

108 NORTH JEFFERSON ST. 

PERRYFL,32347 


CONTRACT 

Date: 
Amount: 
Description (Name and Location): Osteen Road (CR 359B) WfdeninglRestl1jacillg Contract: The intent of this contract is to secure 

all labor and equipment required for the Osteen Road (CR 359B) WideningJResurfacingproject in Taylot County, Florida. This 
project consists of widening and resurfacing an existing approximately 20 ft ",ide road toa 24 ft "vide paved roadway. This work 
effort will include installing limerock widening strips. variable depth limerock oyerlay, reclaiming the existing asphalt. and 
resurfacing the roadway. The project will also include reshaping ditches, extending. remOii'ing.. and installing guardrail and 
stormwater culverts, signage and pavement markings~ as more fhlly detailed in the project plans and sIK'cmcations. 

BOND 
Bond Number: 
Date (Not earlier than Contract Date): 
Amount: 
Modifications to this Bond Form: 

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the ternlS printed 011 the reverse side hereof, do each cause this 
Performance Bond to be duly executed on its behalfby its authorized ofticer, agent. or representative. 

CO~TRACTOR AS P~CIPAL 
Company: 

SUREIY 

Signahrre: 
Name and Title: 

(Seal) __________~------~~__----------(Seal) 
Slrrety's Name and Corporate Seal 

By: 
SignahJre and Title 
(Attach Power ofAttorney) 

(Space is provided below for signahrres of additional 
parties. if required.) 

Attest: 
Signatme and Title 

CONTRACTOR Ai;) PRINCIPAL SURETY 
Company: ' 

Siguawe: (Seal) --=-__-:--::-::-__--;-::::--____~;-------------- (Seal) 
Name and Title: Slrrety's Name and Corporate Seal 

By: 

Signature and Title 

(Attach Power ofAttorney) 


Attest: 

SignahJre and Title: 


EJCDC No. C-610 (2002 Edition) 
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I. ContJ:actoc and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, 
executors, adminisb:ators, successors, and assigns to Owner fur the pe:dimnance ofthe 
Conlract, v.ilich is ill£orpontted mem by remeru:e. 

2. If Conlractoc perl'onns the Com:mct. Surety and Cont:lactor have no obligation 
unc:Ier this Bood, except to participate in conferences as prav.ided in Paragraph 3.1, 

3. If the2-e is no Owner Defirult, Surety's obligation under this Bond shall arise after: 

3. L Owner has notified Contractor and Surety, at the addresses described in 
Paragrnph 10 below, that Owner is cansidering declaring a ConIIactor 
Default and has requested and attempted to anange a confi:t-ence with 
ConImctor and Surety to be held not later than 15 days a.ft.e£ receipt of 
such notice to discuss methods of perfurming the Contract. If Owner, 
ConImctor and Surety agree, ConIIactor shall be allowed a re.asonable 
time to perform the Contract., but such an agrremenl shall not waive 
Owner's right, ifany, subsequently to declare a Contractor Default; and 

3.2. 	 Owner has declared a ConIractOr l:)rlault and fonnally temlin.ated 
Contractor's right to complete the Contract. Sud! Contractoc 1:>rlau1t shall 
not be declared earlier than 20 days after ConlractO£ and Surety have 
recei~-ed notice as provided in ParagJaph 3.1; and 

3.3. 	 Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price to: 

I. 	Surety in accordance with the temlS ofthe Contract; 

2. Another contractor selected plll:!i1lllllt to Paragtaph 4.3 to periimn the 
ConIIact 

4. 'When Owner has satisfied the cooditions ofParagJ3ph 3, Surety shall promptly and 
at Surety's expense take one of the following actions: 

4.1. 	 Arrange fur ConIIactoc, with COllSellt of Owner, to perform and complete 
the ConIIact; or 

4.2. 	 Undertake to periimn and complete the Conlract itself, dtrongh it; agenk 
or lbrough independent cOlllractors; or 

43. 	 Obtain bids or negotiated proposals ftom quaIi1ied c:on1:ritj:tQfS acceptab!!.! 
to Owner for a conlract for perfimnance and compJ.eti~ of tr..e Contract, 
ammge for a conlract to be prepared for execu.tioo by O\y-ncr and: 
Contractoc selected with Owner's C011CUITeDC'!. to be secured "\li:ijh . 
periimnance and payment bonds executed by 3 quali1ied surety equivalent 
to the bonds issued on the Contract,. and pay to Owner JIle amounl of 
damages as described in ParagJ3ph 6 in excess of tb.\t;Balance of the 
Contract Price ill£urred by Owner resulting from Con~ Default or 

4.4. 	 Waive its right to periimn and complete, arrange fur~letion. at- obtain 
a new contractor and with reasonable promptness uo.detti;e cin:1.lmStanres: 

1. 	After investigation. ~ the amount fur v.ilich it may be liable 10 

Owner and, as soon as pnlcti.::'<!hle after the .amount is determined, 
tmder payment dterefur to Own~; or 

2. Deny liabilily in whole or Ul part and notify Owner citing reasons therefor. 

5. IfSurety doe-; IIot proceed a, provided in Paragnlph 4 with reasonable promptness,. 
Surety shall be deemed to be In defuull on this Bcrui 15 days after receipt of an 
additional wntten Owner to Surety demanding that Surety perform its 
obligations undo: Ihi" and Owner shall be entilled to enfurce any remedy 
a,'mlabie- to Owner. If Surety proceeds as provided in ParagJaPh 4-4, and Owner 
refuses the l).',-m t..~ Of Sui:ety has denied liability, in whole or in part, 
wtilioot :fi:trttll.'r notice Ow-ru,"f .sl\!ill be entitled to enforce any re:medy available 10 

Owner. 

FORINFORMATION ONLY - Name. Address and Telephone 
Sur~1' Agency or Broker 
O-wncr''i Representative (engineer or other party) 
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6. After O\vner has terminated Conlractor'S right to complete the COIlIract. and if 
Surety elects 10 act under Paragtaph 4.1,4.2, or 4.3 above. then the responsibilities of 
Surety to Owner shall not be greater than those of ConIIactO£ undo: the Contract, and 
the responsibilities of Owner to Surety shall not be greater than those ofOwner under 
the COIlIract. To a limit of the amount of this Bond, but subject to commitment by 
Owner of the Balance of the Contract Price to mitigation ofcost; and damages on the 
ConIraCi;, Surety is obligated without duplication fur: 

6.1. 	 The responsibilities of ConIIactor for correction of dclectiVl' Worlt and 
compJ.etion ofthe Contract; 

6.2. 	 Additional legaL design professiOIJal, and delay (0;;1>; l¢';uitlng &om 
Contractor's Defauli;, and resulting from the aClions or failure to ,ct of 
Suretyunc:ler Paragrnph 4; and 

63. 	 Liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specified in the 
Contract, acmal damages caused by delayed pe:rfunnance or non· 
performance ofContJ:actoc. 

7. Surety shall not be liable to Owner or oth= for obligations of C0n1ractor that are 
u.nrelated to the Contract, and the Balance ofthl'; Contract Pn"" m.m not be reduced or 
set offon account of any such 11l1:felated obligatiaru.. No right of action shall accrue on 
this Bond to any person or tUlity oth,..r liMn {hr,1J.e.r or its heirs. executors, 
administrators. or successors. 

8. Surety hereby Wllives ll.ouc< ofany including changes of time. to Contract 
or to related Sl1b~. purcb£;,e orders. other obligations. 

9. Any proc~ding. legal or equil«ble, unc:Ier this Bond may be instituted in any COWl 

of competent JluisdiClion in the loc:arion in v.ilich the Worlt or part of the Worlt is 
located and sb:;ill be instituted with;.!l two years a.ft.e£ Contractor Default oc within two 
~lIB after ConfIactO£ ceased ",-orliJ:Ug or within two years after Surety refuses or fails 
to perlbrm its obhgatlO'1:lS under t!as Bond, v.ilichever occut5 lim. Ifthe provisions of 
this parngtaph are VOid or prohibited by law. the minimum period of limitation 
aulilable to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction ofthe suit shall be applicable. 

10. Notice to Surety. Owner, or Contractor shall be mailed or deli1.'ereci to the address 
sl!.ov.ll ro the signature page. 

11. Wheo this Bcrui has been furnished to comply with a statutory requirement in the 
location ,vbere the Contract WlIS to be perfonned, any provision in this Bond 
contlicting with said statutory requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and 
provisions confurming to such statutory requiren:ttm shall be deemed ill£orporated 
herein. The intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory band and not as a 
common law bond 

12. Definitions. 

12.1 Balance of the Contract Price: The total amount payable by Owner to 
ContJ:actoc under the ConIIact after all proper adjustments ha....e been made, 
including allowance 10 Contractor ofany amounts received or to be received by 
Owner in settlement of insumnce or other Clain:ts for damages to which 
Contractor is entitled, reduced by all ....alid and proper payrnmts made to or on 
behalfofContractor under the Conttact. 

12.2. 	 Contract: The agreement between Owner and Contractor identified on the 
signature page, ill£luding all Contract Documents and changes therelo. 

12.3. 	 ContJ:actoc Default: Failure of Contractor, which has neither been 
remedied nor waived, to periimn or othemi.se to comply with the tem:lS of 
the Conlract. 

12.4. 	 Owner Default: Failure of Owner. which has neither been remedied nor 
waived, to pay ContJ:actoc as reqWred by the Contract or to perfunn and 
complete or comply with the other temlS thereof 
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Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner. or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): SURETY (Name and Address of Principal Place ofBusiness): 

OWNER (Name and Address): 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COM:MISSIONERS 

108 NORTH JEFFERSON ST. 

PERRY FL, 32347 


CONTRACT 
Date: 
Amount: 
Description (Name and Location): Osteen Road (CR 359B) WidenillglReslI1facing Contract.· The intent of this contmct is to secure 

all labor and equipment required for the Osteen Road (CR 359B) WideninglResmfacillg pruject in Taylor County, Florida. This 
project consists of widening and resnrfacing an existing approximately 20 ft wide road to a 14 ft v.ide paved roadway. TIris work 
effort 'Will include installing limerock v.idening strips, variable depth limerock merlay, reclaiming the existing asphalt, and 
resnrfacing the roadway. The project will also include reshaping ditches. extending, temovu!g. and installing guardrail and 
stormwater culverts. signage aud pavement markings. as more fully detailed in lil>! project plans and specifications. 

BOND 
Bond Number: 
Date (Not earlier than Contract Date): 
Amount: 
Modifications to this Bond Foml: 

Snrety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms printed on the reverse side hereof, do each cause this 
Payment Bond to be duly executed on its behalfby it:. authorized officer. . or representative. 

CO~TRACTOR AS P~CIPAL 
Company: 

SURETY 

Signature: 
Name and Title: 

(Seal) -:::--~--::-:__-;-:;::-__-:::--;--______ (Seal) 
Surety's Name and Corporate Seal 

By: 
Signature and Title 
(Attach Power of Attorney) 

(Space is provided below for signatures of additional 
parties, ifrequired.) 

Attest: 
Signature and Title 

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY 
Company:­

Signature: (Seal) -=-_~::--_-:-::::__--=--:-______ (Seal) 
Name and Title: Surety's Name and Corporate Seal 

By: 

Signature and Title 

(Attach Power of Attorney) 


Attest: 
Signature and Title: 

EJCDC No. C-615 (2002 Edition) 
Oliginally prepared through the joint efforts of the SW'ety A5sociation of America. Engineers Joint Contract Docwnents Committee, the Associated General 
Contractors of America, the American Institute of Architects, the American Suoconfl-acton Association, and the A5sociated Specialty Contractor5. 
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1. Contractor and Surety, jointly and severnlly, bind themselves, their heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns to Owner to pay for labor, 
materials, and equipment furnished by Claimants for use in the performance of 
the Contract, which is incorpomted herein by reference. 

2. With respect to Ov.'ller, this obligation shall be null and void ifContractor: 
2. L Promptly makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due 

C1aimants, and 

2.2. 	 Defends, indemnifies, and holds bannless OWner from an claims, 
demands, liens, or suits alleging non-payment by Contractor by any 
person or entity vvho furnished labor, materials, or equipment for use in 
the performance of the Contract, provided Owner has promptly notified 
Comractor and Surely (at the addresses described in Paragraph 12) of 
any claims, demands, liens, or suits and tendered defense of such 
claims, demands, liens, or suits to Contractor and Surety, and provided 
there is no Owner Default. 

3. With respect to Claimants, this obligation shan be null and void ifContractor 
promptly makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due. 

4. 	Surely shall have no obligation to Claimants unde!:this Bond tmtil: 

4.1. 	 C1aimants who are employed by or have a direct contract with 
Contractor have given notice to Surety (at the addresses described in 
Paragraph 12) and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to Owner, stating that 
a claim is being made under this Band and, with substantial accuracy, 
the amount of the claim. 

4.2. 	 Claimants who do not have a direct contract with Contrnctor: 

1. 	Have furnished written notice to Contractor and sent a copy, or 
notice thereof: to Owner, within 90 days after having last performed 
labor or last furnished materials or equipment included in the claim 
stating, with substaniia1 accuracy, the amount of the claim and the 
name of the party to vvhom the materials or equipment were 
fumimed or supplied, or for vvhom the labor was done « 
perfonned; and 

2. 	 Have either received a rejection in whole or in part from Contrndor, 
or not received within 30 days of fmnishing the above notice any 
communication !rom Contrnctor by which Contractor had indicated 
the claim will be paid directly or indirectly; and 

3. 	Not ha..mg been paid within the'libove 
notice to Surety and sent a copy, ornotice 
that a claim is being made under this Band 
the previous written notice furnished to Contractor: 

5. Ifa notice by a Claimant required by Pw-agraph 4 is provided by Ov.'ller to 
Contrnctor or to Surety, that is sufficient compliance. 

6. When a C1aimant bas satisfied the CC'OOitiOllS of Paragraph 4, the Surety shall 
promptly and at Surety's expense take the following actions: 

6.1. 	 Send all answer to that Claimant, with a copy to Owner, within 45 days 
a.fh;r receipt of ~l! claim, stating the amounts that are undisputed and 
the basi'> for c.lmllenging any moounts that are disputed. 

6 2. 	 l'ay or arrange for paynR'ti.t of any undisputed amouuts. 

7. Surety'~ total obligation 'iball not exceed the amollllt of this Band., and the 
:Jmount or tins B':'IJd shall be credited for any payments made in good faith by 
Surety 

FOR Il\FOR\U.nON O~il.Y - Name, Addnss aDd TelephoDI' 

Surl'ty Agency or Broker: 

Owner's Represl'Dtati:vl.!- (I'DgiDffr or othl'r party): 


2013-OO3-ENG 

8. Amounts owed by Owner to Contractor under the Contrnct shall be used for 
the performance of the Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any 
performance bond. By Contrnctor furnishing and OWner accepting this Bond, 
they agree that all funds earned by Contrndor in the performance of the Contract 
are dedicated to satisfy obligations of Contrnctor and Surety under this Bond, 
sobject to Owners priority to use the funds fOr the completion of the Work. 

9. Sraety shall not be liable to Ov.'ller, Claimants, or others for oblig:!!FJDS of 
Contractor that are Imrelated to the Contract. Owner shall not be liablE for 
payment ofany costs or expenses ofany Claimant under this Bond., and 5hal1 
have under this Bond no obligations to make payments t{., g:!"e notices ,)n behalf 
of: or otherwise have obligations to Claimants under this Band. 

10. Surety hereby waives notice ofany change, including changes of time, t·, ,he 
Contract or to related Subcontracts. purchllSl.' corders and other obligations. 

11. No suit or action shall be commenced by a Claimant Illlder this Bond other 
than in a rourt of competent jurisdictIcm in the Im'<!tioo in whieh ihe Work or 
part of the Work is located or after the expimtion of urr? year frum the date (1) 
on which the Claimant gave the notice required by Parazrapil 4.1 or Paragraph 
4.23, or (2) on vvhich the la,..,llat'llr or service perfonued by anyone or the 
last materials or eq uipmeni were furu! 5h"d hy lI:uYiJoe under the Construction 
Contract, whichever of (1) or (2)fi!'St occurs. If the provisions of this paragraph 
are void or prohibitoo by law, IDE minimum period of limitation available 10 
sureties as a defeu~ m the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable. 

12. Notice 1<, Surety, Ov.'ller, or Contrnctor shall be mailed or delivered to the 
addresses shown on the signature page. Actual receipt of notice by Surety, 
Owner, or Cuntractor, however lIt'complished, shall be sufficient compliance as 
of the date rec~.v~ at the addre:'jS :iliown on the signature page. 

13. When this Bond bas U~ furnished to comply with a statutory requirement 
in the location where the Contract was to be performed, any provision in this 
Bond conflicting with said statutory requirement shall be deemed deleted 
herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory requirement shall be 
deem...<>d incorporated herein. The intent is that this Bond shan be conslrued as a 

. stlitutory Bond and not as a common law bond 

14. Upon request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary 
of this Bond, Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall 
permtt a copy to be made. 

15. DEFINITIONS 

IS.1. 	C1aimant An individual or entity having a direct contract with 
Contractor, or Vltith a first-tier subcontractor of Contrnctor, to furnish 
labor, materials, or equipment for use in the performance of the 
Contract. The intent of this Bond shall be to include without limitation 
in the terms Klabor, materials or equipment" that part of water, gas, 
power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service, or rental equipment 
used in the Contract. architectural and engineering services required for 
performance of the Work of Contrnctor and Contractor's 
Subcontrnctors, and all other items for ",irich a mechanic's lien may be 
asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, materials, or equipment 
were furnished. 

15.2. Contract: The agreement between Ov.'ller and Contractor identified on 
the signature page, including all Contract Documents and changes 
thereto. 

15.3. Owner Default: Failure of0Ii0.'ller, ",ruth has neither been remedied nor 
waived, to pay Contractor as required by the Contrnct or to pt'fform and 
complete or comply with the other terms thereof. 
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This document has important legal consequences; consultation v.ith an attorney is encouraged with respect to its use or modification. 
This document should be adapted to the particular circlUnstances ofthe contemplated Project and the Controlling Law. 

STANDARD 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 


OF1HE 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 


Prepared by 

El~GINEERS JOINT CONTRACT DOClJ~1El''TS COM.MITTEE 

and 

Issued and Published Jointly By 

-------­ACEC 
.\,,'>.U 1W ,\!\ C(ll "'U1 (~j E.... :...I.'lJJII"li. Cit:<_1,'lIor.J!" 

National Society 01 
Professional Enllineers 
Pmlesslonal EnglnBB" In PrIVate Practice 

.SII'! American Society
iii "J of Cil/if Engineers 

PROFESSION.ALENGINEERS IN PRIVATE PRACTICE 
a p}'(Jctice.dMsioll ofthe 

NATIONAL SOCIETY OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS 


AMERlC AN COUNCIL OF ENGINEERING CO~iIPANIES 


AMERICA.i'-J SOCIETY OF CIVll. ENGINEERS 


Tins document has been approved and endorsed by 


The Associated General Contractors of America 

Knowled9_ lor c",.ting 
"""'lIo. and SU$f'''''ng 

Ill" Buik E"'trOllm&!'l1~ 
Const11lction Specifications Institute 

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions ofthe Construction Contract. 

Copyright ® 2002 N"ational Society of Professional Engineer~ for EJCDC. All rights resernd. 
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. These General Conditions have been prepared for use with the Suggested Fonns of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor Nos, I 
! 

!
tC-520 or C-525 (2002 Editions). Their pro\lsions are interrelated and a change in one may necessitate a change in the other. 


Commeat~ conc.eming their usage are contained in the EJCDC Construction Documents, General and Instructions (No. C -001) (2002 

Edition), For guidance in the preparation of Supplementary Conditions, see Guide to the Preparation of Supplementary Conditions 

(No, C-800) (2002 Edition). 


EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract 

Copyright © 2002l'1ational Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserred. 
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GE~~RALCO~~nnONS 

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS M'D TERVIINOLOGY 

1.01 Defined Tenns 

A Wherever used in the Bidding Requirements or 
Contract Documents and printed with initial capital letters, the 
terms listed below will have the meanings indicated which are 
applicable to both the singular and plural thereof. In addition 
to terms specifically defined, terms with initial capital letters 
in the Contract Documents include references to identified 
articles and paragraphs, and the titles of other documents or 
fonns. 

1. Addenda--Written or graphic instnnnents issued 
prior to the opening of Bids which clarifY, correct, or change 
the Bidding Requirements or the proposed Contract 
DoclUnents. 

2. Agreemellt--The written instrument which is 
evidence of the agreement between Owner and Contractor 
covering the Work. 

3. Application for Payment--The fonn acceptable to 
Engineer which is to be used by Contractor during the course 
of the Work in requesting progress or final payments and 
which is to be accompanied by such supporting doclllllentation 
as is required by the Contract Documents. 

4. Asbestos--Any mateIial that contain~~ mOfl!than 
one percent asbestos and is friable or is releasing asbestos 
fibers into the air above current action levels established by 
the United States Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration. 

5. Bid-The offer or proposaiQf a Bidder subnritted 
on the prescribed form setting fdrth the 'Prices for the \"lork to 
be performed. 

6. Bidder-Thbndividual or entity who submits a Bid 
directly to Owner. 

7. Bidding Ddcumel1ts--The Bidding Requirements 
and the proposed Contract Docmnents (including all 
Addenda). 

8. Bidding Re.fjuirements--The Advertisement or 
.~.1nvitation 	 to Bid. Instructions to Bidders, bid security of 

acceptable if any, and the Bid Forol with any 
supplements. 

,9. Change Order--A document recommended by 
Engineer which is signed by Contractor and Owner and 
authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an 
adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Tinles, issued 
on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement. 

2013-OO3-ENG 

10. Claim--A denland or assertion by O",ner or 
Contractor seeking an adjustment of Contract Price or 
Contract Times, or both. or other relief with respect to the 
terms of the Contract. A demand for money or services by a 
third party is not a Claim 

11. Contract--The entire and integrated wTitten 
agreement between the Owner and Contract()r conceming. the 
Work. The Contract supersedes prior negotiations. 
representations, or agreements, whether written or oral. '. 

12. Contract Document,-- Those items so designated 
in the Agreement. Only Plinted or ,bard copies of the items 
listed in the Agreement are ContractDocuruents. Approved 
Shop Drawings, other Contractor's submittals, and the reports 
and dra",ings of subsurface and physical <:Qilditions are not 
Contract Documents 

13. Contract Price--The moneys payable by O\\ner 
to Contrac!or for completion of the Work in accordance with 
the COlUmct DocmneU1:S as stated in the Agreement (subject to 
the prO'.:isions of Paragraph 11.03 ill the case of Unit Price 
Work). 

14. I1mes--The number of days or the dates 
stated in the Agreement to: (i) achieve Milestones, if any, 
(ii) achieve Substantial Completion; and (iii) complete the 
Wark so that it is ready for final payment as evidenced by 
Engineer's written recollllllendation of final payment. 

15. Contractor-The individual or entity with whom 
OWner has entered into the Agreement. 

16. Cost of the Work-oSee Paragraph 11.01.A for 
definitiotL 

Ii. Drawings--That part of the Contract Documents 
prepared or approved by Engineer which graphically shows 
the Scope. extent, and character of the Work to be performed 
by Contractor. Shop Drawings and other Contractor submittals 
are not Dra,villgs as so defmed. 

18. Effective Date of the Agreement-The date 
indicated in the Agreement on which it becomes effective, but 
if no such date is indicated. it means the date on which the 
Agreement is signed and delivered by the last of the two 
parties to sign and deliver. 

19. Engineer-The individual or entity named as such 
in the Agreement. 

20. Field Order--A ",Titten order issued by Engineer 
which requires minor changes in the Work but which does not 
involve a change in the ConUllct Price or the Contract Times. 

21. General Reqllirements-Sections of Division 1 of 
the Specifications. The General Requirements pertain to all 
sections of the Specifications. 

EJCDC C-100 Smndal'd General Conditions oftbe Construction Contract. 
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A listing of the contems of the Project Ivlanua1. which may be 
22. Ha:ardolls Environmental Condition--The bOlmd in one or more volumes. is contained in the table(s) of 

presence at the Site of Asbestos. PCBs, Petrolewu, Hazardous contents. 
Waste, or Radioactive Material in such quantities or 
circumstances that may present a substantial danger to persons 35. Radioactil'e Marerial--Sow'ce, special nuclear. or 
or property exposed thereto in cOIlllection ",lth the Work. byproduct material as defined by the Atomic Energ.y Act of 

1954 (42 USC Section 2011 et seq.) as amended from time to 
23. Ha:ardolls Waste--The term Hazardous Waste time. 

shall have the meaning provided in Section 1004 of the Solid 
Waste Disposal Act (42 USC Section 6903) as amended from 36. Related Entity - An officer. partner. 
time to time. employee, agent. consultant. or subcontractor. 

24. Laws and Regulations; Lem's or Regulations-­ 37. Resident Project Representatil'e--The authorized 
Any and all applicable laws. rules. regulations. ordinances. representative of Engineer who Irniy be assigned to the Site or 
codes. and orders of any and all governmental bodies. any part thereof. 
agencies. authorities, and courts having jurisdiction. 

38. Samples--Physical ..:xamph:~ of materials. 
25. Liens--Charges, security interests. or equipment. or wotkmanship that an: representative of some 

encumbrances upon Project fimds. real property, or personal portion of the Work find which 6tablish the standards by 
property. which such portion of the '.Vork will be judged. 

26. Milestone--A principal event specified in the 39. Schedule ofSubmilllils-A schedule, prepared and 
Contract Documents relating to an intennediate completion maintained by Contractor. of required submittals and the time 
date or time prior to Substantial Completion ofall the Work. requirements to supporl scheduled performance of related 

constmcti{)fl activities. 
27. Notice ofAlI'ard--The written notice by Owner to 

the Successful Bidder stating that upon timely compliance by 40. Schedllie of Values-A schedule. prepared and 
the Successful Bidder with the conditions precedent listed maintained by Contractor. allocating portions of the Contract 
therein, Owner ",ill sign and deliver the Agreement. Price to valious portions of the Work and used as the basis for 

re\'icw:ing Contractor's Applications for Payment. 
28. Notice to Proceed-A written notice. given by 

Owner to Contractor fixing the date on which the Contract 41. Shop Drmdngs--}\ll dra\\1ngs, diagrams, illustra­
Times will commence to nm and on which ('.infractor !>haU tions. schedules. and other data or infonnation which are 
stalt to perform the Work Imder the Contract Documents. specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and 

submitted by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the 
29. Oll1ler--The individual or entity whom Work. 

Contractor has entered into the Agreement lind fur whom the 
Work is to be perfonned. 42. Site--Lands or areas indicated in the Contract 

Documents as being fiunished by Owner upon which the 
30. PCBs--Polychlorinated biphenyls. 	 Work is to be perfonued. including ligbts-of-way and 

easements for access thereto, and such other lands filfDished 
3 L Petroleum--PetroleUlD,including crude oil or any by O"'ller which are designated for the use of Contractor. 

fraction thereof ",mch is liquid at standard conditions of 
temperature and. pressure (60 Fahrenheit and 14.7 43. Specifications--That p811 of the Contract 
polmds per sqlmre inch absolute), as oil, petroleum. fuel Docmnents consisting of written requirements for materials. 
oil, oil sludge, oil refuse. gasoline, kerosene, and oil mixed equipment systelllS. standards and workmanship as applied to 
\vith other DOn-Hazardous Waste and crude oils. the Work. and celtain administrative requirements and 

procedural matters applicable thereto. 
31. Progress scluidllle--A schedule, prepared and 

maintained by Contractor, describing the sequence and 44. Subcontractor--An individual or entity having a 
duration the activities comprising the Contractor's plan to direct contract \\ith Contractor or ",lth any other 
(lccomplish the \Volk within the Contract Times. Subcontractor for the perfomumce ofa Palt of the Work at the 

Site. 
33. Project--The total construction of which the 

Work to be performed under the Contract Documents may be 45. Substantial Completion-The time at which the 
the whole, or a part. Work (or a specified prot thereot) has progressed to the point 

where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified 
34. Project Manual-The bound documentary P811 thereot) is sufficiently complete. in accordance with the 

infonnation prepared for bidding and constructing the Work. Contract Docunlents, so that the Work (or a specified part 

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions orthe Construction Contract. 
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thereof) can be utilized for the purposes for v:hich it is 
intended. The tenns "substantially complete" and 
"snbstantially completed" as applied to all or part of the Work 
refer to Substantial Completion thereof. 

46. Successful Bidder-The Bidder submitting a 
responsive Bid to whom O-Wller makes an award. 

47. Supplementary Conditions--That part of the 
Contract Docwnents which amends or supplements these 
General Conditions. 

48. Supplier--A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier. 
distributor. materialman. or vendor having a direct contract 
-with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to fwnish materials 
or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or 
any Subcontractor. 

49. Underground Facilities-All lmderground 
pipelines, conduits, ducts, cables. wires, manholes. vaults. 
tanks, tunnels, or other such fadlities or attachments. and any 
encasements containing such facilities, including those that 
convey electricity, gases, stearn.. liquid petroleum products. 
telephone or other connntmications. cable tele'\1sion. \vater, 
wastewater. storm water, other liquids or chemicals. or traffic 
or other control systems. 

50. Unit Price Work--Work to be paid for on the 
basis oftmit prices. 

51. Work-The entire construction or the vaxiom 
separately identifiable pax1s thereof required to .be pl'Ovided 
under the Contract Documents. Work includes and is the result 
of performing or providing all labot", services. and 
documentation necessaxy to produce such construction. and 
fwnishing, installing.. and incorporating all materials and 
equipment into such construction. all as required by tht: 
Contract Documents. . 

52. Work Change Direttive--A \'\iTitten statement to 
Contractor issued on or after the Effective Date of the 
Agreement and signed by Owner and recommended by 
Engineer ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the 
Work. or respollding to differing'or uI~{oreseen subsurface or 
physical conditions under which the Vlork is to be performed 
or to emergencies. A Work Change Directive ""ill not change 
the Contract Price or the Cont~ct Times but is evidence that 
the exPect that the change ordered or doclUnented by a 
V.'ork Chauge Directive v.ill be incorporated in a subsequently 
lssued Change Order (Qllowing negotiations by the parties as 
to its if any. on the Contract Price or Contract Times. 

1.02 Ten1Jinology 

A. The following words or tenus are not defined but, 
when used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract 
DOClUllents, ha've the following meaning. 

~ The Contract Documents include the terms "as ;. 
i 
tallowed," "as approved." "as ordered", "as directed" or terms 

of like effect or import to authorize an exercise ofprofessional [ 
~ 

judgment by Engineer. In addition. the adjectives ~ 

"reasonable," "suitable," "acceptable," ''proper,'' 
~ 

t"satisfactoIY," or adjectives of like effect or import are used to f 
describe an action or determination of Engineer a~ to the I 

Work. It is intended that such exercise of professional 1 
judgment, action or determination will be solely to evah;tate, in ! 
general. the Work for compliance with the requirements of 
and infonnation in the Contract Docwnents and conformance 
with the design concept of the completed Project as a I 
functionine whole as shO\vn or nidicated in the Contract J
Document; (unless there is.' a specific statement indicating f 

othemise). The use of any such tenn or adjective is not i 
intended to and shall not be effecti\'eto assign to Engineer any 
duty or audlOlity to 01' direct the performance of the 
Work or any duty OT authority to'tmdertake responsibility Icontrary to the provision;;; of Paragraph 9.09 or any other 
provision (If tbe Contmct Documents. i 

{ 

eDay I 
i 
~ 

The l.yord "day" means a calendar day of 24 
,< 

t
hom's measlllt'd froUl midnight to the next midnight. J 

D. Defective t 
1. The word "defective," when modifying the word I 

" refers to Work that is unsatisfactoIY. faulty, or I
deficient in that it: ! 

a. does not confonn to the Contract Documents. or r 
~ 

b. does not meet the requirements of any applicable I,.inspection, reference standard, test. or approval ~ 
refened to in the Contract Documents, or 

f 
~c. has been damaged prior to Engineer's ­
~ 

reconuuendation of final payment (unless responsi­	 I 
bility for the protection thereof has been assumed by 	 i 

~ 

fO-Wl1er at Substantial Completion in accordance -with ,
Paragraph 14.04 or 14.05). 

t 
! 
t 

E. Furnish, Install, Peifonn, PrOl'ide 

I 
t

1. The word "furnish." when used in c01mection with 
services, materials, or equipment shall mean to supply and 
deliver said senices, materials, or equipment to the Site (or 
some other specified location) ready for use or installation and I
in usable or operable condition. 	 f 

J2. The word "install," when used in connection with f 
services. materials. or equipment, shall mean to put into use or f 

fplace in fmal position said sen1ces, materials, or equipment ~ 

complete and ready for intended use. I 
i 

B.Intent ofCertain Tenlls or Adjectives 	 3. The words "perform" or "provide," when used in IDCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 

I 
! 

f 
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connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean 
to furnish and install said services. materials, or equipment 
complete and ready for intended use. 

4. When "'furnish." "'install," ''perform,'' or "provide" 
is not used in connection with services. materials, or 
equipment in a context clearly requiring an obligation of 
Contractor, ''provide'' is implied. 

F. Unless stated othemise in the Contract Docu­
ments, words or phrases which have a well-known teclmical Or 
construction industry or trade meaning are used in the 
Contract Documents in accordance \\ith such recognized 
meaning. 

ARTICLE 2 - PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

2.01 Delivery ofBonds and Evidence ofh1Sllrance 

A When Contractor delivers the executed 
counterparts of the Agreement to Ov.'ller, Contractor shall also 
deliver to Ov.ner such bonds as Contractor may be required to 
furnish. 

B. Evidence of Insurance: Before any Work at the 
Site is started, Contractor and Owner shall each deliver to the 
other, v.ith copies to each additional insured identified in the 
Supplementary Conditions, certificates of insurance (and other, 
evidence of insurance which either of them or anY,fldditional 
insured may reasonably request) which Contractor and Owner 
respectively are required to purchase and maintain in 
accordance with Article 5. 

2.02 Copies ofDocuments 

A O\\ner shall fumishto Contractor up to ten :pl1nted 
or hard copies of the Dra\\'lngs and Project nlanual. 
Additional copies will be fumishedupon request at the cost of 
reproduction. 

2.03 Commencement of COl1trdtt Times; Notice to 
Proceed 

A. The Contract Times v.ill connnence to run on the 
thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Agreement or, if a 
Notice to Proceed IS gi'V"ell. on the day indicated in the Notice 
to ,Proceed. A Notice to Proceed may be given at any time 
'within 30 days afteithe Effective Date of the Agreement. In 
no event ';,ill the Contract Times conunence to nm later than 
tb~ sixtieth day aUer the day of Bid opening or the thlltieth 
day after the Effective Date of the Agreement. whichever date 
is eallier. 

2.04 Starting the Work 

A Contractor shall start to perfonn the Work on the 
date when the Contract Times commence to run. No Work 

2013-OO3-ENG 
shall be done at the Site prior to the date on which the 
Contract Times conuuence to run. 

2.05 Before Starting Const17lction 

A. Preliminary Schedules: Within 10 day,:; after the 
Effective Date of the Agreement (unless otherwise specified in 
the General Requirements), Contractor shall submit to 
Engineer for timely review: 

1. a preliminary Progress Schedule: indicatiug the 
times (numbers of days or dates) for starting and complcr:ng 
the various stages of the Work including any Milestones 
specified in the Contract Documents: 

2. a prelinllllary Schednk of Submittal~: and 

3. a preliminary Schedule Values for all of the 
Work which includ~ quantities and of items which 
when added together eqUal the Contract Price and subdivides 
the Work component parts in sufficient detail to serve as 
the basi,,~ for progres::. payment'> during pelformance of the 
Work. Such prices wilt include an appropriate amOlUlt of 
overhead.!U1d profit applicable to each item ofWork. 

2.06 Precoii'iimClion Conference 

A. Before any Worli: at the Site is started. a 
conference attended by Owner, Contractor, Engineer. and 
others as appropriate will be held to establish a working: 
lUlderstanding among the parties as to the Worli: and to discuss 
the schedules referred to in Paragraph 2.0S.A. procedures for 
handling Shop Drawings and other submittals, processing 
Applications for Payment, and maintaining required records. 

2.07 Initial Acceptance ofSchedules 

A. At least 10 days before submission of the first 
Application for Payment a conference attended by Contractor. 
Engineer. and others as appropriate will be held to review for 
acceptability to Engineer as provided below the schedules 
submitted in accordance with Paragraph 2.05.A. Contractor 
shall have an additional 10 days to make corrections and 
adjustments and to complete and resubmit the schedules. No 
progress payment shall be made to Contractor until acceptable 
schedules are submitted to Engineer. 

1. The Progress Schedule will be acceptable to 
Engineer if it provides an orderly progression of the Work to 
completion within the Contract Times. Such acceptance will 
not impose on Engineer responsibility for the Progress 
Schedule, for sequencing, scheduling, or progress of the Work 
nor interfere with or relieve Conu'actor from Contractor's full 
responsibility therefor. 

2. Contractor's Schedule of Submittals \\ill be 
acceptable to Engineer if it provides a workable arrangement 
for reviewing and processing the required submittals. 

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Con~truction Contract. 
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3. Contractor's Schedule of Values ",ill be acceptable 

to Engineer as to fOlID and substance if it provides a 
reasonable allocation of the Contract Price to component parts 
of the Work. 

ARTICLE 3 - CO:\-rRACT DOCUMEl'ijS: INTENT, 
A.\1EJ'j"DING, REUSE 

3.01 Intent 

A. The Contract Documents are complementary: 
'what is required by one is as binding as if required by all. 

B. It is the intent of the Contract Docmnents to 
describe a fimctionally complete Project (or part thereof) to be 
constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. Any 
labor, documentation, services, materials, or equipment that 
may reasonably be infen-ed from the Contract Documents or 
from prevailing custom or trade usage as being required to 
produce the intended result will be provided whether or not 
specifically called for at no additional cost to Owner. 

C. Clarifications and interpretations of the ContI'act 
Documents shall be issued by Engineer as provided in 
Article 9. 

3.02 Reference Standards 

A. Standards, Specifications, Codes, Laws, and 
Regulations 

1. Reference to standards, specifications, manuals, or 
codes of any technical society, organization .. or association. or 
to Laws or Regulations, whether such re1hence wspecific or 
by implication, shall mean the standard, specification.. lllarmaL 
code, or Laws or Regulations in effect ~t the time of opening 
of Bids (or on the Effective DI!le of th;;:, Agreement if there 
were no Bids), except as may be otherwise:;.pecifically stated 
in the Contract Documents. 

2. No proyision of <my such standard. specification.. 
manual or code. or any instruCtion of a Supplier shall be 
effective to change the duties or responsibilities of O"'ller. 
Contractor. or Engineer, or any of their subcontractors, consul­
tants, agents, or employees from those set forth in the Contract 
Documents. No such pro\-ision or instruction shall be effective 
to assign to Owner. or Engineer. or any of, their Related 
Entities, any duty or authority to supervise or direct the pelfor­
mance of Ihe Work or any duty or authority to tmdertake 
respottsibility inconsistent with the provisions of the Contract 
Documents. 

3.03 Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies 

A. Reporting Discrepancies 

1. Contractor's Rel'iew of Contract Documents 

2013-OO3-ENG 
Before Startillg Work: Before undertaking each part of the 
Work, Contractor shall carefully sttldy and compare the 
Contract Documents and check and verify pertinent figures 
therein and all applicable field measurements. Contractor shall 
promptly report in "lriting to Engineer any conflict, error, 
ambiguity, or discrepancy which Contractor may dis.::over and l' 

¥ 

shall obtain a \'vutten interpretation or clarificat.ion from & 

Engineer before proceeding \\ith any Work affected thereby. 

2. Contractor's Review of Comracl Documents ~ 
t 
~ 

During Peifonllance of Work: If. during the performance of t
the Work. Contractor discovers any conflict, error, ambiguity, 	 ~ 

for discrepancy within the Contract Documents or between the ~ 

Contract Documents and any prm;sion of any Law or ~ 

Regulation applicable to the perfonmmce of the Work or of ~ 
any standard, specification.. manual or code, or of any 

} 
r:­
$~ 

instruction of any Supplier. Contractor shall promptly report it 1,;f 

to Engineer in \'vuting. Contractor sh.1l1 not proceed with the ~ 

I 
~'Work affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by 

Paragraph 6.16.A) until ilIl amendment or supplement to the 
Contract Documentil has been issued by one of the methods 
indicateI! in Paragraph 3.04. 

t 
j: 
~3. Contractor shall not be liable to Owner or 

Engineer for failure to repol1 any conflict, error, ambiguity, or ~ 
discrepancy iu the Contract Documents unless Contractor 	 fo 

,. ~ knew or reasonably should have known thereof. 	 f 
I' 
~ 

B. Resolving Discrepancies 	 !~ 
j" 

1. Except as may be otherwise specifically stated in 
~ 

J
the Contract Documents, the provisions of the Contract ~ Documents shall take precedence in resolving any conflict, 	 t 

~error, ambiguity, or discrepancy between the provisions of the ijl 

ContI-act Documents and: J 
~ 
~ a. the provlSlons of any standard, specification, i 

manual, code, or instruction (whether or not specifi­ ~ 
cally incorporated by reference in the Contract t,. 
Documents); or ,t 

~ 

!, 
b. the provlSlons of any Laws or Regulations ~ 

~ 
applicable to the performance of the Work (unless ~ r
such an interpretation of the pro\-isions of the , 

!•
f 

Contract DoclUnents would result in violation of such 

Law or Regulation). ~. 


3.04 Amending and SlIpplementing Contract Documents I 
f 

A. The Contract Documents may be amended to I 
~ 
~provide for additions. deletions, and revisions in the Work or t 

to modify the temlS and conditions thereofby either a Change ~ 
Order or a Work Change Directive. f 

! 
t 
~ 

B. The requirements of the Contract Documents may ,,be supplemented, and minor vatiations and deviations in the 
Work may be authorized. by one or more of the follo\'ving I 
ways: l 

t 

J 
EJCDC C-7OO Standard General Conditions ofthe Construction Contract. f 
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1. A Field Order; 

2. Engineer's approval ofa Shop Drawing or Sample: 
(Subject to the provisions ofParagraph 6.l7.D.3); or 

3. Engineer's ""ritten interpretation or clarification. 

3.05 Reuse o/Document<; 

A Contractor and any Subcontractor or Supplier or 
other individual or entity performing or furnishing all of the 
Work under a direct or indirect contract \\ith Contractor. shall 
not: 

1. have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in 
any of the Dra\\ings. Specifications, or other docmIlCnts (or 
copies of any thereof) prepared by or bearing the seal of 
Engineer or Engineer's consultants, including electronic media 
editions: or 

2. reuse any of such Drawings. Specifications. other 
docl.Unents, or copies thereof on extensions of the Project or 
any other project \vithout written consent of Owner and 
Engineer and specific written verification or adaption by 
Engineer. 

B. The prohibition of this Paragraph 3.05 \\ill survive 
final payment or termination of the Contract. Nothing herein 
shall preclude Contractor from retaining copies of the Contract 
Documents for record purposes. 

3.06 Electronic Data 

A Copies ofdata furnished by Owner or Engineer to 
Contractor or Contractor to Owner or Engineer thatlllay be 
relied upon are limited to the plinted copies (al~ known a<; 
hard copies). Files in electronic media format~f text. data, 
graphics, or other types are ftunished only for the ~,onvenience 
of the receiving party. Any conclusion or infonnati~u obtained 
or derived from such electronic fik:~ will be 'at the user's sole 
risk. If there is a discrepancy betw~n the electronic files and 
the hard copies. the fu1rd copies govern. 

B. Because data stored in electronic media fonnat can 
deteriorate or be modified inadvel1ently or otherwise ""ithout 
authorizatioli of the data's creator, the party recehing 
electronic rues agrees that it will perfonn acceptance tests or 
procedures within. 60 days. after which the receiving party 
shall be deemed to have accepted the data thus transferred. 
Any elTon; detected the 6O-day acceptance period will 
be corrected by the transfening party .. 

C. When transferring dOCllUlents in electronic media 
foniml, the transferring party makes no representations as to 
long tenu compatibility. usability, or readability ofdocllUlents 
resulting from the use of software application packages, 
operating systems. or computer hardware differing from those 
used by the data's creator. 

2013-OO3-ENG 

ARTICLE 4 AVAILABILITY OF LA"IDS; 
SUBSURFACE Al\"D PHYSICAL COl'l"DITIONS; 
HAZARDOUS E::\'VIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS; 
REFERENCE POIl'I"TS 

4.01 Ami/ability ofLands 

A. O\\ner shall furnish the Site. Owner <;,haH notify 
Contractor'of any encumbrances or resu;'ctiolls not of 
application but specifically related to use of the Site ';',.ill 

which Contractor must comply in perfonning the Work. 
Owner will obtain in a timely Il1a1L'ler and pay for easements 
for pennanent stru.cnlfes or pennan",n! changes in existing: 
facilities. If Contractor and O-Wller are unable to agree on 
entitlement to or on the amOlmt or extent, if any, of any adjust­
ment in the Contract or Contracl" Tinles. or both. as a 
result of any delay in' O\\ner's furnishing the Site or a P811 
thereof. Contractor may make a Claim therefor as prOvided in 
Paragraph [0.05. 

B. Upon reasonable wrinen request O\\ner shall 
furnish Contractor with current statement ofrecord legal title 
and legali.1escription the lands upon which the Work is to 
be perfonned and OVl-ner's interest therein as necessary for 
giving notice of or filing a mechanic's or construction lien 
against such 1811ds in accordance with applicable Laws and 
Regulations. 

C. Contractor shall provide for all additional lands 
and access thereto that may be required for temporary 
construction facilities or storage ofmaterials 811d equipment. 

4.02 Subsuiface and PhYSical Conditions 

A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary 
Conditions identify: 

1. those reports of explorations and tests of 
subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the Site that 
Engineer has used in prep81ing the Contract Documents; and 

2. those drawings ofphysical conditions in or relating 
to existing surface or subsurface suuctures at or contiguous to 
the Site (except UndergrOlmd Facilities) that Engineer has 
used in preparing the Contract DocUlIlents. 

B. Limited Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data 
Allthori=ed: Conu'actor may rely upon the general accllfacy of 
the "technical data" contained in such reports and dra\\ings. 
but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. 
Such "technical data" is identified in the SupplementalY 
Conditions. Except for such reli811ce on such 'technical data," 
Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against 
O\\11er or Engineer, or any of their Related Entities ,,\ith 
respect to: 

1. the cO.!!?E.ieteIless of such reports and drawings for 
EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions oftke Construction Contract. 
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Contractor's pmposes, including, but not limited to, any 
aspects of the means. methods, techniques, sequences. and 
procedmes of constmction to be employed by Contractor, and 
safety precautions and programs incident thereto: or 

2. other data. inteIpretations. opinions. and 
information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in 
such drawings: or 

3. any Contractor inteIpretation of or conclusion 
drawn from any "technical data" or any such other data. 
interpretations. opinions. or infonnation. 

4.03 Differing Subswface or Physical Conditions 

A Notice: If Contractor believes that any subsmface 
or physical condition at or contiguous to the Site that is 
tmcovered or revealed either: 

1. is of such a natme as to establish that any 
''technical data" on \vhich Contractor is entitled to rely as 
provided in Paragraph 4.02 is materially inaccurate; or 

2. is of such a natme as to require a change in the 
Contract Documents: or 

3. differs mateli.ally from that shown or indicated in 
the Contract Documents; or 

4. is of an tmusual natme, and differs materially from 
conditions ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as 
inherent in work of the character provided for in .the Contract 
Documents: 

then Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof 
and before further disturbing the subsurface. ell physical 
conditions or performing any Work in conucction therewith 
(except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 6.lo.A). 
notify Owner and Engineer in "'ritingabout such condition. 
Contractor shall not further disturb such coudition or perform 
any Work in connection therewith (except as. aforesaid) tmtil 
receipt of ",Titten order todo so. 

B. Engineer's Rel'iew: After receipt of"'Titten notice 
as required by Paragraph 4.03.A, Engineer will promptly 
review th.: pertinent condition, detelmine the necessity of 
O\\ner's obtaining additional exploration or tests with respect 
thereto. and advise Owner in "'Titing (\\<ith a copy to 
Contractor) of Engineer's findings and conclusions. 

C. Possible Price and Times Adjustments 

1. The Contract Price or the Contract Times. or both. 
'Will be equitably adjusted to the extent that the existence of 
such diffeting subsurface or physical condition causes an in­
crease or decrease in Contractor's cost of, or time required for. 
pelfonnance of the Work: subject, however, to the following: 

a. such condition must meet anyone or more of the 

f 
~: 
f 
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categories described in Paragraph 4.03.A: and t 

5 
f 

b. with respect to Work that is paid for on a Unit 
Price Basis. any adjustment in Contract Price will be 
subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 9.07 and 
11.03. 

2. Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment 
in the Contract Price or Contract Times if: 

a. Contractor knew of the existence of such 
conditions at the tinle Contractor lnade a final 
conmlitment to O"'ller \vith respect to Contract Price 
and Contract Times by tile subnlission of a Bid or 
becoming bOlUld Wider a negotiated contract; or 

I 
i 
~. 

b. the existence of such conditiolJ could reasonably 
~ 

have been discovered or revealed as a result of any 
examination, investigation, exploration, test, or sntdy 
of the Site and contiguous areas required by the Bid­
dillg Requirements or Contract Documents to be 
conducted by or for Contractor prior to ContractOlJs f 

~ 

making such final comnlitment: or r 
f. 

c, Contractor [,uled to give the \\Titten notice as re­ t 

quire,I by P'l.ragraph 4.03.A. l•~ 
3. If O\\'l1er and Contractor are unable to agree on t 

fentitlement to or on the amol1l.lt or extent, if any, of any ~ 

adjnstment in the Contract Price or Contract Times. or both. a 

l 
~ 

Claim may be lnade therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. 
However, O\wer and Engineer, and any of their Related 
Entities shall not be liable to Contractor for any claims, costs, 
losses. or damages (including but not linlited to all fees and i 

~charges of engineers, arcllitects, attomeys, and other ~ 
professionals and all COlUt or arbitration or other dispute t 
resolution costs) sustained by Contractor on or in counection Iwith any other project or anticipated project. ,i ~ 
4.04 Underground Facilities , 

~. 
~ iA. Shown or Illdicated: The infonllation and data ishown or indicated in tlle Contract Documents with respect to F 

existing Undergrotmd Facilities at or contiguous to the Site is i 
i 

tbased on infonnation and data furnished to Owner or Engineer l 
by the owners of such Undergrol1l.ld Facilities, including t 
Owner. or by others. Unless it is othenvise expressly prO\.ided f 
in the Supplementary Conditions: I 

J 
J1. Owner and Engineer shall not be responsible for ~. 

f
the accuracy or completeness of any such infonnation or data: J 
and I 

i2. the cost of all of the following will be included in 
tlle Contract Ptice. and Contractor shall have full f 
responsibility for: l 

a. re.ie",ing and checking all such infonnation and f
data, i 

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditious ofthe Construction Contract. f 
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b. locating all UndergrO'und Facilities shO'wn O'r 
indicated in the CO'ntract Documents, 

c. cO'ordinatiO'n O'f the WO'rk with the O'wners O'f such 
UndergrO'und Facilities, including Owner, during 
cO'nstructiO'n, and 

d. the safety and prO'tectiO'n O'f all such UndergrO'und 
Facilities and repairing any damage theretO' resulting 
frO'm the WQrk. 

B. Not Shown or Indicated 

1. If an UndergrO'und Facility is uncQvered O'r 
revealed at Qr cQntiguQus to' the Site which was nQt ShO'\\11 0'1' 

indicated, Qr nQt shown O'r indicated with reasO'nable accuracy 
in the CQntract DQcuments, CO'ntractO'r shall. prO'mptly after 
becO'ming aware thereof and befO're ftn:ther disturbing 
cQnditiQns affected thereby Qr perfO'rming any WQrk in 
cO'rmectiO'n therewith (except in an emergency as required by 
Paragraph 6.16.A), identify the O'wner O'f such UndergrO'und 
Facility and give written nO'tice to' that O'wner and to' OW11er 
and Engineer. Engineer will promptly review the UndergrOlmd 
Facility and detennine the extent, if any. to' which a change is 
required in the CO'ntract Documents to' reflect and dO'cument 
the cO'nsequences Qf the existence 0'1' locatiO'n Qf the Under­
grOlmd Facility. During such time, CO'ntractQr shall be 
resPO'nsible fQr the safety and prQtectiQn O'f such UndergrQund 
Facility. 

2. If Engineer cQncludes that a change in the Contract 
Documents is required. a WQrk Change Directive Qr a Change 
Order will be issued to' reflect and document such CQnse­
quences. An equitable adjustment shall be made in the 
CO'ntract Price O'r CQntract Times, O'r bO'th. to' tbf;:.:extent that 
they are attributable to' the existence O'r locatiQn Qf any 
UndergrQund Facility that was nQt ShO\\.111 Qr illdkated or flQt 
shO'wn Qr indicated with reasQnable accuracy in d~ Contract 
Docmnents and that CO'ntractO'r did nO't know of and CQuld nO't 
reasonably have been expected .be a'Wale of Qr to' have 
anticipated. If Owner~lld CQntractQI: are unable to' agree Qn 
entitlement to' Qr on the amount Qr extent, if any. O'f any such 
adjusbnent in Contract Price Times, Ov.ller O'r 
CO'ntractQr may make a Claim therefO're as provided in 
Paragraph 10.05. 

4.05 Referel!ce Points 

A. Owner shall prO'vide engineering slUveys to' 
establish leference PQints fO'r cO'llsbuctiO'n which in Engineer's 
Judgment are necessary to' enable CO'ntractO'r to' proceed with 
the. WQrk CO'ntractQr shall be resPO'nsible fO'r laying Qut the 
WO'rk shall prO'tect and preserve the established reference 
PQints aud property mQnuments, and shall make nO' changes Qr 
relQcatiQns withQut the priO'r written approval Qf Owner. 
Contractor shall repOlt to' Engineer whenever any reference 
PQint or property mO'nument is IO'st or destrO'yed O'r requires 
relocatiQn because Qf necessary changes in grades 0'1' 10catiO'ns. 
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and shall be responsible fQr the accurate replacement Qr 
relQcatiO'n O'f such reference PQints Qr prO'perty mO'mnnents by 
prQfessiQnally qualified persQnnel. 

4.06 Ha=ardous ElIl'irOllme11fal Condition at Site 

A. Reports and Drawings: Reference is made to' the 
Supplementary CQnditiQns fQr the identificatiO'n of thQse 
reports and drawings relating to' a Hazardous En"irollluental 
CO'nditiO'n identified at the Site. if any, tlmt lL.l'.'e been utilized 
by the Engineer in the preparatiQn Qf the Contract DO'cuments. 

B. Limited Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data 
Authori=ed.· CO'ntractO'r may rely upon the general accmacy Qf 
the "technical data" cO'ntain:::d in snch reports and drawings, 
but such reports and dta\vings are nO't Contract DO'cunlents. 
Such "technical data" is identiii.:d in the Supplementary 
CO'nditiO'ns. Except Ihr such reliance 011 such ''technical data." 
CO'ntractO'r may nO't UPO'n or make ally claim against 
Owner O'r Engineer. O'r <lny O'f their Related Entities with 
respect to: 

1. the cO'mpleteness O'f such repOJts and wawings for 
CO'ntrac:!or's purpQses. including, but nO't limited to', any 
aspects the means. methods. teclnriques, sequences and 
procedures of (:omlrucliO'n to' be emplQyed by CO'ntractO'r and 
safety precautiO'ns and prO'grams incident theretO'; O'r 

, O'ther data, interpretatiO'ns, O'pmlOllS and 
infommtiO'n cO'ntained in such repQrts Qr shO'wn 0'1' indicated in 
&u('h drawings: 0'1' 

3, any CO'ntractQr interpretatiO'n O'f O'r cO'nclusiQn 
drawn from any "technical data" Qr any such O'ther data, 
interpretatiO'ns, O'piniO'ns O'r informatiQn. 

C. CO'ntractQr shall nO't be responsible fO'r any 
Hazardous EnvirO'rmlental CQnditiO'n uncQvered O'r revealed at 
the Site which was nO't shQWll 0'1' indicated in Drav.ings or 
SpecificatiO'ns O'r identified in the CO'ntract DO'cuments to' be 
within the ScO'pe Qfthe WQrk. CO'ntractO'r shall be respO'nsible 
fQr a HazardQUS EnvirQmnental CO'nditiQn created 'with any 
materials brO'ught to' the Site by CO'nbactO'r, SubcO'ntractO'rs. 
Suppliers. O'r anyQne else fQr whO'm CO'nb'actO'r is resPO'nsible. 

D. If CO'ntractQr encOlmters a HazardO'us 
EmirO'lllllental CQnditiO'n or if CO'ntractO'r 0'1' anyO'ne fO'r whQm 
CQntractor is responsible creates a HazardO'us EnvirO'mnental 
CQndition, ContractO'r shall innnediately: (i) secw'e Qr 
O'therwise isO'late such cO'nditiO'n; (ii) stO'P all Work in 
cO'rmectiO'n with such cQnditiO'n and in any area affected 
thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 
6.16.A): and (iii) nO'tify Owner and Engineer (and promptly 
thereafter confillll such notice ill writing). Ov.ner shall 
prO'mptly cO'nsult \\'ith Engineer cQnceming the necessity for 
Ov.ller to retain a qualified expelt to' evaluate such cO'nditiQn 
O'r take cO'rrective actiQn. ifany. 

EJCDC C-700 StandaJ'd ~neral Conditions of the Construction CORtraet. 
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E. Contractor shall not be required to reS1IDle Work in 
connection \\'ith such condition or in any affected area mtil 
after Owner has obtained any required permits related thereto 
and delivered to Contractor ",TiUen notice: (i) specifying that 
such condition and any affected area is or has been rendered 
safe for the resmnption of Work; or (ii) specifying any special 
conditions mder which such Work may be restIDled safely. If 
O"11er and Contractor cannot agree as to entitlement to or on 
the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in Contract 
Price or Contract Times, or both. as a result of such Work 
stoppage or such special conditions lIDder which Work is 
agreed to be resluned by Contractor, either party may make a 
Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. 

F. If after receipt of such "Titten notice Contractor 
does not agree to reslune such Work based on a reasonable 
belief it is unsafe, or does not agree to resUllle such Work 
mder such special conditions, then Owner may order the 
portion of the Work that is in the area affected by such condi­
tion to be deleted from the Work. If Owner and Contractor 
cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if 
any. ofan adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times as a 
result of deleting such portion of the Work, then either party 
may make a Claim therefore as provided in Paragraph 10.05. 
Owner may have sllch deleted portion of the Work perfOlmed 
by O\\11er'S 0\\11 forces or others in accordance \\ith Article 7. 

G. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and 
Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless 
Contractor, Subcontractors. and Engineer, and the officers, 
directors, partners, employees, agents, consulta1lts. and 
subcontractors of each and any of them from and agamst all 
claims, costs, losses, and damages (including htlt not limited 
to all fees and charges of engineers, architect&, attorneys, and 
other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute 
resolution costs) arising out of or relating to a Hazardou<> 
Environmental Condition, provided that £uch Hazardou." 
Emironmental Condition: (i) was not'Shown orindicat~d in 
the Drawings or Specifications or identified in'the Contract 
Documents to be included \\ith.in', the Scope of the 'York. and 
(ii) was not created by Contractor or by anyone for whom 
Contractor is respon'iible. Nothing in. this Paragraph 4.06. G 
shall obligate Owner to indemnify any individual or entity 
from and againSt the consequences~f that in&...idual's or 
entity's own negligence. 

H. tile fullest e~ent permitted by Laws and 
Re~dations. Comractor shall indemnify and hold hamuess 
OWllefand Englll;'!er, and the officers, directors, partners. 
employees. agents, cQllsultants, and subcontractors of each 
and any of them from and against all c1ain1S. costs, losses. and 
da,mages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of 
engineers, architects, attomeys, and other professionals and all 
court 'Or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising 
out ofo£ relating to a Hazardous Enviromnental Condition 
created by Contractor or by anyone for whom ConUClctor is 
responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 4.06.H shall obligate 
Contractor to indemnify any individual or entity fl:om and 
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against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own 
negligence. I 

I. The provisions of Paragraphs 4.02, 4.03, and 4.04 
do not apply to a Hazardous Environmental Condition I 
Imcovered or revealed at the Site. ~ 

! 
ARTICLE 5 BO~l)S AND ~SURA.:."'CE 

I5.01 Peifonllance, Payment, and Other Bonds 

A. Contractor shall fwnish v¢onnance and payment 

bonds. each in an amolmf at least equal to the Contract Price 

as SeClnlty for the faithfhl performance and pa)1llent of all of 

Contractor's obligations lUlder the Cqlltract DoclIDlents. These 

bonds shall renlai.n in dYed tmtil one year after the date when 

final payment become!> due or completion of the 

cOlTection period specified ill Paragraph 13,07, whichever is 

later, exc~pt as pro\ided othenvise by Laws or Regulations or 

by the Contract DoClUllents. Ccntractorshall also furnish such 
 I 
other bonds as are required by the Contract Docwnents, f 

R All bonds "hall be in the form prescribed by the IContract Documenb except as pro\lided otherwise by Laws or 

Regulations. and shall be executed by such sureties as are 


'. named in tlle ClUTent list of "Companies Holding Certificates 

of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as 

Acceptable Reinsuring Companies" as published in Circular 

57(Hamended) by the Financial Management Selvice, Surety 

Bond Branch. U.S. Department of the Treasury. All bonds 

signed by an agent must be accompanied by a certified copy of 
 rthe agent's authority to act. 

i 
C. If the surety on any bond furnished by Contractor 


is declared bankrupt or becomes insolvent or its right to do 

business is terminated in any state where any part of the 
 I
Project is located or it ceases to meet the requirements of 

I 
I 

Paragraph 5.01.B, Contractor shall promptly notify O"11er and 

Engineer and shall, within 20 days after the event giving rise 

to such notification. provide another bond and surety, both of 

which shall comply with the requirements of Paragraphs 

5.01.B and 5.02. ,I 

I 
~ 

~ 
5.02 Licensed Sureties alld Insurers 

A All bonds and mslU'ance required by the Contract 

Documents to be purchased and maintained by O"11er or 

Contractor shall be obtained from surety or insurance 

companies that are duly licensed or authorized in the 

jurisdiction in which the Project is located to issue bonds or 
 i 
inslU'ance policies for the lnnits and coverages so required. 
Such surety and insurance companies shall also meet such t 
additional requirements and qualifications as may be provided 
in the Supplementary Conditions. I 

I 
~ 

5.03 Certificates o/Insurance 
~ 
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A. Contractor shall deliver to Owner. with copies to 
each additional insured identified in the Supplementary 
Conditions. certificates of insurance (and other evidence of 
insurance requested by O\\'ller or any other additional insured) 
which Contractor is required to purchase and maintain. 

B. Owner shall deliver to Contractor. with copies to 
each additional insured identified in the Supplementary Condi­
tions, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insur­
ance requested by Contractor or any other additional insured) 
which O"\'ller is required to purchase and maintain. 

5,04 Contractor's Liability Insurance 

A Contractor shall purchase and maintain snch 
liability and other insurance as is appropriate for the Work 
being perfonned and as will provide protection from claims 
set fOlth below 'which may arise out of or result from 
Contractor's performance of the Work and Contractor's other 
obligations under the Contract Docmnents. whether it is to be 
performed by Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier, or by 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them to 
perfolm any of the Work or by anyone for whose acts any of 
them may be liable: 

1. claims under workers' compensation, disability 
benefits, and other similar employee benefit acts: 

2. claims for damages because of bodily mJUlY, 
occupational sickness or disease, or death of Contractor',> 
employees: 

3. claims for damages because of bodily injur;i\ 
sickness or disease, or death of any person otller than 
Contractor's employees; 

4. clainlS for damages insured hY reasonably 
available personal injury liability coverage w-m~h are sus­
tained: 

a. by any person as a result of an offense directly or 
indirectly related to the eI11ployment of such person 
by Contractor, or 

b. by any otller person for any other reason: 

5, claims tor damages, other than to the Work itself. 
becanse of injury to or destruction of tangible property 
wherever located, including loss of use resulting therefrom: 
(Iud 

6. claim:; for dalnages because of bodily iQjury or 
death of any person or property damage arising out of the 
o"\ner~hip, maintenance or use of allY motor vehicle. 

B. The policies of insurance required by this 
Paragraph 5.04 shall: 

L with respect to insm'ance required by Paragraphs 
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5.04.A3 through 5,04.A6 inclusive. include as additional 
insured (subject to any customary exclusion regarding 
professional liability) O\\'ner and Engineer. and any other 
indi"iduals or entities identified in the Supplementary Condi­
tions. all of whom shall be listed as additional insureds. and 
include coverage for the respective officers. directors, 
partners, employees. agents, consultants and subcontractors of 
each and any of all such additional insureds. and the i.!lsurance 
afforded to these additional insureds shall prmtide primary 
coverage for all claims covered thereby: 

2. include at least the specific coverages and i-e 
written for not less than the limip> of liability provided in the 
Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws or 
Regulations. whichever is grealer: 

3, include completed operations insurance; 

4. include contractual insurance covering 
Contractor's indemnity obligations lUlder Paragraphs 6.11 and 
6,20: 

5, contain a prOVlSlon or endorsement that the 
coverage afforded will not be canceled. materially changed or 
renewal lU1til. at least 30 days prior ",Titten notice has 
been given 0,,,'11';:1' and Contractor and to each other addi­
tional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions to 
whom a certificate of inslu'ance has been issued (and the 
certificates of insurance furnished by the Contractor pursuant 
to Paragraph 5.03 '}..ill so provide): 

6, renlain in effect at least lmtil final payment and at 
all times thereafter when Contractor may be correcting. 
removing, or replacing defective Work in accordance witll 
Paragraph 13.07; and 

7, '}..ith respect to completed operations insurance. 
and any insurance coverage written on a claims-made basis, 
relnain in effect for at least two years after final payment 

a. Contractor shall fumish O\\ner and each otller 
additional insured identified in the Supplementary 
Conditions. to whom a certificate of insurance has 
been issued, evidence satisfactory to O\\'ller and any 
such additional insured of continuation of such 
insurance at final payment and one year thereafter, 

5.05 Oll'ller's Liabilily I1ISurance 

A. In addition to the insurance required to be pro\id­
ed by Contractor lU1der Paragraph 5.04, Owner. at O","11er's 
option, may purchase and maintain at O,,\,ner's expense 
O\\'ller's o'}..nliability insurance as will protect O\\'ller against 
claims which may arise from operations under the Contract 
DOCllluents. 

5.06 Property Insurance 
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A Unless otherwise pro",ided in the Supplementary 

Conditions, Owner shall purchase and maintain property 
insurance upon the Work at the Site in the amount of the full 
replacement cost thereof (subject to such deductible amounts 
as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions or 
required by Laws and Regulations). This insurance shall: 

1. include the interests of Owner, Contractor. 

Subcontractors. and Engineer. and any other individuals or 

entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions. and the 

officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, consultants 

and subcontractors of each and any of them, each of whom is 

deemed to have an insurable interest and shall be listed as an 

insured or additional insured; 


2. be written on a Builder's Risk "all-risk" or open 
peril or special causes of loss policy fonn that shall at least 
include insurance for physical loss or damage to the Work, 
temporary buildings, false work. and materials and equipment 
in transit and shall insure against at least the follo\\'ing perils 
or causes of loss: fire. lightning, extended coverage, theft, 

. vandalism 	 and maliciolls mischief. earthquake. collapse. 
debris removal. demolition occasioned by enforcement of 
Laws and Regulations, water damage. (other than caused by 
flood) and such other perils or causes of loss as may be 
specifically required by the Supplementary Conditions: 

3. include expenses incurred in the repair or 

replacement of any insured property (including but not limited 

to fees and charges of engineers and architects); 


4. cover materials and equipment stored at the Site or . 
at another location that was agreed to in writing by Owner 
prior to being incorporated in the Work. provided that such 
materials and equipment have been includ~d in an Application 
for Payment recommended by Engineer; 

5. allow for partial utilization of the Work by O.Vllcr: 

6. include testing and stan up; and 

7. be maintained in effect until final payment is made 

unless otherwise agreed to tn ~'Iitingby Owner, Contractor, 

and Engineer \\:it11 30 days 'written notice to each other addi­

tional insured to whom a certificate of insurance has been 

issued. 


.a. shall pnrchase and maintain such boiler 
and ~chinery insurance. or additional property insltrance as 
may be r~quired by Supplementary Conditions or Laws 
and Regulations which will include the interests of Owner. 
Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer. and any other 
indi.\.iduals or entities identified in the Supplementary 
Conditipns, and the officers, directors, partners, employees. 
agents;-coDSultants and subcontractors of each and any of 
them. each of whom is deemed to have an insurable interest 
and shall be listed as an insltred or additional insured. 

I 
i 
~ 
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C. All the policies of insurance (and the certificates i 
or other evidence thereof) required to be purchased and i 
maintained in accordance with Paragraph 5.06 'will contain a I 
provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not I
be canceled or materially changed or renewal refused until at 
least 30 days prior written notice has been given to Owner and I
Contractor and to each other additional insltred to whom a ~ 
certificate of insm:ance has been issued and ~i1l contain 
waiver pro1.>isions in accordance with Paragraph 5.07. f ,i 

D. ~ller shall not be responsible for purchasing and 
maintaining any property insltranCe specified in this Paragraph f 
5.06 to protect the interests of Contractor, Subcontractors, or 
others in the Work to the extent any deductible amolUlts I 
that are identified in the Supplementary Conditions. The risk i 
of loss within such identified deductible all10lmt will be borne ~ 
by Contractor. Subcontractors, or others sufiaing any such t 
loss. and if any of them property insltranCe coverage 

~ 

within the limits of such 8lllOlllit&, may purchase and 
maintain it at t.he pmcha.!.er·s 0\\'11 expense. I 

E. If Contractor reques,ts in writing that other special 
insuram:e be included in the property insltrance policies I 
provided lUlder Paragraph 5.06, Owner shall. if possible. i 

tinclude such insurance. and the cost thereof will be charged to 

I 
~ 

Contractor appropriate Change Order. Prior to com­
mencement of the Work at the Site. Owner shall in ~'Iiting 
advise Contractor whether or not such other insurance has 
been procmed by Owner. t 

I 
~ 

5JJ7 Wan'ero/Rights 	 ~ 

I 
A. ~'11er and Contractor intend tbat all policies ~ 

r 
purchased in accordance with Paragraph 5.06 will protect \. 

~ 

Owner. Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer. and all 
other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary 
Conditions to be listed as insureds or additional insureds (and 
the officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, consultants iand subcontractors of each and any of them) in such policies 
and will provide primary coverage for all losses and damages 
caused by the perils or causes of loss covered thereby. All 
such policies shall contain provisions to the effect that in the 
event of payment of any loss or damage the insurers will have 

I 
I 
I 
~no rights of recovery against any of the insureds or additional 

insureds therelUlder. Owner and Contractor waive all rights 
against each other and their respective officers, directors, 
partners. employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of 
each and any of them for all losses and damages caused by, 
arising out of or resulting from any of the perils or causes of 

I 
~ 

loss covered by such policies and any other property insurance 
applicable to the Work; and, in addition, waive all such rights 
against Subcontractors. and Engineer, and all other individuals 
or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions to be 
listed as inSW'ed or additional lnsltred (and the officers. i 
directors, partners. employees. agents, consultants and r 
subcontractors of each and any of them) under such policies i 
for losses and damages so caused. None of the above waivers I 
shall extend to the rights that any party making such waiver I 

~ 
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may have to the proceeds of insurance held by O\\'ller as 
trustee or otherwise payable under any policy so issued. 

B. Owner waives all rights against Contractor. 
Subcontractors, and Engineer. and the officers, directors. 
partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of 
each and any of them for: 

1. loss due to business intermption, loss of use. or 
other consequential loss extending beyond direct physical loss 
or damage tOO\\'ller's property or the Work caused by, arising 
out of. or resulting from fire or other perils whether or not 
insured by Owner; and 

2. loss or damage to the completed Project or part 
thereof caused by. arising out of. or resulting from fire or other 
insured peril or cause of loss covered by any property 
insurance maintained on the completed Project or part thereof 
by (h"'ller during partial utilization pursuant to Paragraph 
14.05, after Substantial Completion pursuant to Paragraph 
14.04, or after final payment pirrsuant to Paragraph 14.07. 

C. Any insurance policy maintained by (hvner cover­
ing any loss, damage or consequential loss referred to i.n 
Paragraph 5.07.B shall contain provisions to the effect that in 
the event of payment of any such loss, danJage, or 
consequential loss, the insurers "illlJave no rights of recovery 
against Contractor, Subcontractors, or Engineer, and th.e 
officers. directors, partners, employees. agents. consultants 
and sl.lbcontractors ofeach and any ofthem 

5.08 Receipt and Application ojInsurance Proceeds 

A. Any insured loss lmder the policies of insurance 
required by Paragraph 5.06 will be adju<,ted with Owner and 
made payable to OV.'Der as fiduciary for !he insur~ds, as their 
interests may appeal', subject to tJle requiretllents of any 
applicable mortgage clause and of Paragraph O\vner 
slJalI deposit in a separate account any money so and 
shall distribute it in accordance with such agreement as the 
parties in interest may reach. If no other special agreement is 
reached, the damaged Work shall b~repai.red or replaced, the 
moneys so receiveti applied on account thereof. and the Work 
and the cost thereof covered by an appropriate Change Order. 

B. Ovmer as fiduciary shall have power to adjust and 
settle any los$ with the insurers unless one of the parties in 
interes~ slJall object in \\"riting "ithin 15 days after the 
occurrenCe of loss to Owner's exercise of this power. If such 
objection be made, as fiduciary shall make settlement 
vlith the in accordance "ith such agreement as the 
partiCl'l: in interest Jr.J.8y reach. If no such agreement among the 
parties in interest is reached, O\.\'ller as fiduciary shall adjust 
and ~l:Ule the loss with the insurers and, if required in writing 
by any party in interest, Owner as fiduciary shall give bond for 
the proper performance of such duties. 
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A. If either (h\'ller or Contractor has any objection to 
the coverage afforded by or other provisions of the bonds or 
insurance required to be purchased and maintained by the 
other party in accordance with Article 5 on the basis of 
non-conforrnance v.ith the Contract Documents, the objecting 
party slJall so notify the other party in writing withlll 10 days 
after receipt of the certificates (or other evidence requested) 
required by Paragraph 2.01.B. Ov.'ller and Contractor shall 
each provide to the other such additional in 
respect of inslrr8nCe provided as the other llJay reasonably 
request. Ifeither party does not purclJase or llJaintain all of the 
bonds and insurance required of such party by the Contract 
Documents, such party shall notify the other party in writing 
of such failure to purchase prlOJ' to the ~tart of the or of 
such faihrre to maintain prior to any change in the required 
coverage. Without prejudice to any other right or remedy. the 
other party llJay elect obtain equivalent bonds or UlSlU'cUlce 
to protect such other p:uty's lIlta:e5fs the expense of the 
p81ty who wao: required to pro\ide such coverage, and a 
Change Order shaH he is::'li'~d to adjust the Contract Price 
accordin~~fy. 

5.10 Partial Utili=t:tioll, Acknowledgment oj Property 
Insurer 

A. If Ov.'ller finds it necessary to occupy or use a 
portion or portions of the Work prior to Substantial 
Completion of all the Work as provided in Paragraph 14.05, 
no .,uch use or occupancy slJall commence before the Ulsurers 
prmiding the property ulSlrrance pursuant to Paragraph 5.06 
lJave acknowledged notice thereof and in "Titing effected any 
changes in coverage necessitated thereby. The insmers 
providing the property inslrraDce shall consent by endorsement 
on the policy or policies, but the property insurance shall not 
be canceled or permitted to lapse 011 accolmt of any such 
partial use or occupancy. 

ARTICLE 6 - CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

6.01 Supen'isioll and Superintendence 

A Contractor shall supervise. inspect and direct the 
Work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention 
thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be 
necessary to perfoffil the Work in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. Contractor shall be solely responsible 
for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and proce­
dirres of constmction. Contractor shall not be responsible for 
the negligence of Ov.ller or Engineer in the design or 
specification of a specific means, method, technique. 
sequence, or procedure of construction which is shown or 
indicated in and expressly required by the Contract 
Docunlents. 

5.09 Acceptance oj Bonds and Insurance; Option to B. At all times during the progress of the Work, 
Replace Contractor shall assign a competent resident superintendent 
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who shall not be replaced without written notice to Owner and 
Engineer except nnder extraordinary circumstances. The 
superintendent will be Contractor's representative at the Site 
and shall have authority to act on behalf of Contractor. All 
communications given to or received from the superintendent 
shall be binding on Contractor. 

6.02 Labor; WorA7ng Hours 

A Contractor shall provide competent, suitably 
qualified personnel to survey and lay ont the Work and 
perfonn cons1rnction as required by the Contract Documents. 
Contractor shall at all times maintain good discipline and 
order at the Site. 

B. E'{cept as othernise required for the safety or 
protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or 
adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise stated in the Contract 
Documents, all Work at the Site shall be perfonned dwing 
regular working hours. Contractor "ill not pennit the 
perfOlmance of Work on a Satw'day, SlIDday, or any legal 
holiday v.'ithout OWner's ",Titten consent (which "ill not be 
nnreasonably 'withheld) given after prior v.Titten notice to 
Engineer. 

6.03 Sen7ces, Materials, and Eqllipmem 

A Unless otherwise specified in the Contract 
Docmnents, Contractor shall provide and assume full 
responsibility for all services, materials, equipment, labOr. 
transportation, construction equipment and machinery, tools, 
appliances, fuel. power. light, heat, telephone, water. &<lilitary 
facilities. temporary facilities. and all otherfucilities and 
incidentals necessary for the perfonnance. tt.'Sting, start-up. 
and completion of the Work. 

B. All materials and equipment incolporated into th::: 
Work shall be as specified or, ifnot !.pe<::i,fied, slmll be of flOod 
quality and new, except as othen~ise provided in the Conb'act 
DoC1ID1ents. All special warranties and guanmtees required by 
the Specifications shall expressly run to the benefit of Ov.-ner. 
If required by Enginco', Contractor shall furnish satisfactory 
e\idence (including reports of required. tests) as to the source. 
kind. and quality ofmaterials and equipment. 

C All materials and equipment shall be stored, 
applied, installed, connected, erected, protected, used, cleaned, 
and ~I,)nditioned in accordance with instructions of the 
applidible Supplier. except as otherwise may be provided in 

.. ;}lie Contract Documents. 

.6.04 Progress Schedule 

J~ A Contractor shall adhere to the Progress Schedule 
establi~d in accordance "ith Paragraph 2.07 as it may be 
adjusted from time to tinle as provided below. 

1. Contractor shall submit to Engineer for acceptance 
(to the extent indicated in Paragraph 2.07) proposed 

2013-OO3-ENG 
adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will not result in 
changing the Contract Times. Such adjustments will comply 
with any pro\'isions of the General Requirements applicable 
thereto. 

2. Proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule 
that will change the Contract Times shall be submitted in f 
accordance with the requirements of Article 12. Adjustments 
in Contract Times may ouly be made by a Change Ord"'f. t 
6.05 Substitutes and "Or-Equals" 

A Whenever an item of material or equipment is 
specified or described in the Contract.Documents by using the 
nanle of a proprietary item or the nllll1e of Il particular 
Supplier, the specification or description is intended to 
establish the type, ftmctioll.. appearance, and quality required. 
Unless the specification O[ descriptioo:contains or is followed 
by words reading that no like. equivialenl. or "or-eqllal" item 
or no substifution is ~1111itted, other items of material or 
equipment or material or equipment ofother Suppliers may be 
submitted to Engineer for review under the circumstances 
describetl below. 

. "Or-Equa1" Items: If in Engineer's sole discretion 
an item of 01' equipment proposed by Contractor is 
functionally equal to that named and sufficiently similar so Ithat no change in related Work will be required, it may be con­
!>idered by Engineer as an "or-equal" item, in which case 
review and approval of the proposed item may, in Engineer's Idiscretion, be accomplished without compliance \lith 
some or all of the requirements for approval of proposed 
substitute items. For the purposes ofthis Paragraph 6.05.AL a 
proposed item of material or equipment will be considered 
functionally equal to an item so named if: 

a. in the exercise of reasonable judgment Engineer 

I 
tdetennines that: 

1) it is at least equal in materials of 
construction. quality, durability, appearance. strength. 
and design characteristics: 

~ 
2) it v.i11 reliably perfonn at least equally r 

well the function and achieve the results inlPosed by 
the design concept of the completed Project as a 
functioning whole, I 

I 
3) it has a proven record ofperfonuance and 

I 
favailability of responsive service; and 

b. Contractor celtifies that if approved and 
!incorporated into the Work: I 

1) there will be no increase in cost to the tOvmer or increase in Contract Times. and 

2) it "ill conform substantially to the 
detailed requirements of the item named in the IEJCDC C-700 Standard ~neral Coaditions of the Construction Contract. 
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Contract Documents. 

2. Substitute Items 

a. If in Engineer's sole discretion an item of material 
or equipment proposed by Contractor does not 
qualify as an "or-equal" item under Paragraph 
6.0S.A.l, it will be considered a proposed substitute 
item. 

b. Contractor shall submit sufficient infonnation as 
provided below to allow Engineer to determine that 
the item of material or equipment proposed is 
essentially equivalent to that named and an accept­
able substitute therefor. Requests for review of 
proposed substitute items of material or equipment 
will not be accepted by Engineer from anyone other 
than Contractor. 

c. The requirements for review by Engineer will be as 
set forth in Paragraph 6.0S.A.2.d, as supplemented in 
the General Requirements and as Engineer may 
decide is appropriate lmder the circumstances. 

d. Contractor shall make written application to 
Engineer for review of a proposed substitute item of 
material or equipment that Contractor seeks to 
furnish or use. The application: 

1) shall certify that the proposed substitute 
item will: 

a) pelfOlnl adequately the fiinctions and 
achieve the results called fbI by the general 
design.. 

b) be similar in substance to that specified, 
and 

c) be suited to tbesame llie as that specified; 

2) will state: 

a) the extent, if to which the use of the 
propo<:ed substitute item will prejudice 
Contractor's achievement of Substantial 
Cmnpletion on tinle; 

wheiher or 110t use of the proposed 
Sub~filUte item in the Work v.ill require a 
change in any of the Contract Documents 
(or in the provisions of any other direct 
contract with Owner for other work on the 
Project) to adapt the design to the proposed 
substitute item: and 

c) , ..'hether or not incorporation or use of the 
proposed substitute item in connection with 
the Work is subject to payment of any 
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license fee or royalty: 

3) will identify: 

a) all variations of the proposed substitute 
item from that specified, and 

b) available engineering. sales. maintenance. 
repair. and replacement services: 

4) and shall contain an itemized estimate of 
all costs or credits that v.ill result directly or in(li­
recdy from use of such substitute item. including 
costs of redesigrI and chlims of other contractors 
affected by any resnliillg changl:. 

B. Substitute COllStntctioN ",fethods or Procedures: If 
a specific means, melho& technique. <iequence, or procedure 
of construction is expressly by the Contract 
Documents, Contractor· may furnish or utilize a substitute 
means, rru::ihocl technique, sequence, or procedure of con­
struction approved by Engineer. Contractor shall submit 
sufficiem information tfl allow Engineer. in Engineer's sole 
discretion. to deterrrillli,! that the substitute proposed is 
equivalent 10 that expressly called for by the Contract Docu­
ments. The requirements for review by Engineer will be 
similar to those provided in Paragraph 6.05.A.2. 

C. Engineer's Em/llarion: Engineer v.ill be allowed a 
reasonable time within which to evaluate each proposal or 
&ubmittal made pursuant to Paragraphs 6.0S.A and 6.0S.B. 
Engineer may require Contractor to furnish additional data 
about the proposed substitute item. Engineer ",ill be the sole 
judge of acceptability. No "or equal" or substitute v.ill be or­
dered. installed or utilized until Engineer's review is complete, 
which will be evidenced by either a Change Order for a 
substitute or an approved Shop Drawing for an "or equal." 
Engineer ",ill advise Contractor in writing of any negative 
determination. 

D. Special Guarantee: Owner Dlay require Contractor 
to furnish at Contractor's expense a special performance 
guarantee or other surety with respect to any substitute. 

E. Engineer's Cost Reimbursement: Engineer will 
record Engineer's costs in evaluating a substitute proposed or 
submitted by Contractor pursuant to Paragraphs 6.0S.A2 and 
6.05.B Whether or not Engineer approves a substitute item so 
proposed or submitted by ContractoL Contractor shall 
reimburse Owner for the charges of Engineer for evaluating 
each such proposed substihlte. Contractor shall also reimburse 
Owner for the charges of Engineer for making changes in the 
Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct 
contract , ..ith Owner) resulting from the acceptance of each 
proposed substihlte. 

F. Contractor's Expense: Contl'3ctor shall provide all 
data in support of any proposed substitute or "or-equal" at 
Contractor's expense. 

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Condltiom oftbe Construction Conhllct. 

Copyright @ 2002 N'ational Society of Professional EnginE-US for ElCne. All rigbts n.'sen'ed 


00700 19 




FDOT SCRAP Osfa>n Road (CR 359B) WideninglResurfacing 

6.06 Conceming Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others 

A Contractor shall not employ any Subcontractor. 
Supplier, or other indi"idual or entity (including those 
acceptable to O\\<ner as indicated in Paragraph 6.06.B), wheth­
er initially or as a replacement. against whom O\\<ner may 
have reasonable objection. Contractor shall not be required to 
employ any Subcontractor, Supplier. or other individual or 
entity to furnish or perform any of the Work against whom 
Contractor has reasonable objection 

B. If the Supplementary Conditions require the 
identity of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other 
indi"iduals or entities to be submitted to Owner in advance for 
acceptance by O\\'Iler by a specified date prior to the Effective 
Date of the Agreement, and if Contractor has submitted a list 
thereof in accordance with the Supplementary Conditions, 
O"ner's acceptance (either in writing or by failing to make 
written objection thereto by the date indicated for acceptance 
or objection in the Bidding Documents or the Contract 
Documents) of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other 
individual or entity so identified may be revoked on the basis 
of reasonable objection after due investigation. Contractor 
shall submit an acceptable replacement for the rejected 
Subcontractor. Supplier, or other individual or entity. and the 
Contract Price will be adjusted by the difference in the cost 
occasioned by such replacement, and an appropriate Change 
Order "ill be issued . No acceptance by Owner of any such 
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, whether 
initially or as a replacement, shall constitute a wah'er of any 
right of Owner or Engineer to reject defective Work. 

C. Contractor shall be frilly responsible to Owner and 
Engineer for all acts and omissions of the Subcontractors. 
Suppliers, and other individuals or enti,ties Pe:rtbnning or 
furnishing any of the Work just as Contractor is responsible 
for Contractor's OVt'll acts and omi$$ious. NOlhing

.; ..~.' ­
Contract Documents: 

1. shall create for the benefit of any such 
Subcontractor, Supplief. or other .individual 'or entity any 
contractual relationshipbet\Yeen OWlltr or Engineer and any 
such Subcontractor, Supplier oiOfuer individual or entity. nor 

2. shall anythllig in the Contract Documents create 
any obligati(!llOn tllepart of Oy.-ner or Engineer to payor to 
see to tlle payment ofany moueys due any such Subcontractor, 
Supplier, or other illdividu."tl or entity except as luay othe1wise 
be required by Laws and Regulations. 

D.Contractor shall be solely responsible for 
scheduling and coordinating the Work of Subcontractors. 
Suppli~rs, and other individuals or entities performing or 
furnishlng any of the Work tUlder a direct or indirect contract 
",ith Contractor. 

E. Contractor shall require all Subcontractors, 
Suppliers, and such other individuals or entities perfofllling or 

I2013-OO3-ENG 
furnishing any of the Work to communicate with Engineer 
through Contractor. 

F. The divisions and sections of the Specifications 
and the identifications of any Dra'wings shall not control I
Contractor in dividing the Work aDlOllg Subcontractors or f
Suppliers or delineating the Work to be performed by any fspecific trade. 

i 
~' 

G. All Work performed for Contractol' by a 
Subcontractor or Supplier will be pursuant to an appropriate 
agreement between Contractor and the Subcontractor or 
Supplier which specifically binds the Subcontractor or f 
Supplier to the applicable tenns anda>nditions of the Contract fDoctmlents for the benefit otOwnerand Engineer. Whenever 
any such agreement is \\1t11 a Subcontractor or Supplier who is 
listed as an additional insured 011 the insurance 
provided in Paragl1tph 5.0.6. the agreement between the 
Contractor and the SubcontraciOlQT Supplier will contain f 
provisions whereby the Subcontractor or Supplier waives all 

I 

rrights agaill~l O\\ner, Contrastor, and Engineer, and all other 
individllaIs or entitie::' iderititied in the Supplementary [ 
Conditions to be listed as insureds or additional insW'eds (and 
the officers, directors, parlners, elllployees, agents, consultants tand subcontractors of each and any of them) for all losses and 
damages cal.l'5cd arising out of, relating to, or r~ulting 
from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by such 
policies and any other property insurance applicable to the 
WQrk. If the insurers on any such policies require separate 
wal,'er fonns to be signed by any Subcontractor or Supplier. 
Cootractor will obtain the same. I 

I
6.07 Patent Fees and Royalties 

A. Contractor shall pay all license fees and royalties 
and assume all costs incident to the use in the performance of f 
the Work or the incorporation in the Work of any invention. f 
design, process, product. or device whim is the subject of 
patent rights or copyrights held by others. If a particular 
invention, design. process, product, or device is specified in 
the Contract Documents for use in the perfonnance of the t
Work and if to the actual knowledge of Owner or Engineer its 
use is subject to patent rights or copyrights calling for the tpayment of any license fee or royalty to others. the existence 
of such rights shall be disclosed by Owner in the Contract l 
Documents. 

B. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and IRegulations. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless 
Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, partners, 
employees, agents. c011sultants and subcontractors of each and 
any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and I 
damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of 
engineers, architects, attorneys. and other professionals and all 
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising 
out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or 
copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work f 
or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any 

f 
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invention, design, process, product, or device not specified in 
the Contract Documents. 

6.08 Pennits 

A. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary 
Conditions. Contractor shall obtain and pay for all 
constmction pernuts and licenses. O\\ller shall assist 
Contractor, when necessary, in obtaining such permits and 
licenses. Contractor shall pay all governmental charges and 
inspection fees necessary for the prosecution of the Work 
wmch are applicable at the time of opening of Bids, or, if there 
are no Bids, on the Effective Date of the Agreement. Owner 
shall pay all charges of utility owners for connections for 
providing pennanent service to the Work. 

6.09 Laws and Regulations 

A Contractor shall give all notices required by and 
shall comply with all Laws and Regulations applicable to the 
performance of the Work. Except where otherwise expressly 
reQ1.lired by applicable Laws and Regulations, neither Owner 
nor Engineer shall be responsible for monitoring Contractor's 
compliance 'with any Laws or Regulations. 

B. If Contractor perfonns any Work kno"l.\ing or 
having reason to know that it is contrary to Laws or 
Regulations, Contractor shall bear all claims, costs, losses, and 
damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of 
engineers, arcmtects, attorneys, and other professionals and all 
COlut or arbitration or other dispute resolution cost:;) arising . 
out of or relating to such Work. However, it shan not be 
Contractor's primary responsibility to make certain that the 
Specifications and Drawings are in accordance with Laws and 
Regulations, but this shall not relieve Contrl'H:'1or of 
Co~tractor's obligations under Paragraph 3.03. .., 

C. Changes in Laws or RegUt~ons not known at the 
time of opening of Bids (or, on the Effective of the 
Agreement if there were no Bidslllaving all effect on the cost 
or time of perforn1.ance of the WOl:f{;shall be the subject of an 
adjustmeut in Contrac:t.?rice or Corit:i,:act Tinles. If Owner and 
Contractor are unable to <l!U'ee on "entitlement to or on the 
amOlUlt or extent if any, of ~y such ;}ajustment, a Claim may 
be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. 

6.10 Ta.Tes 

_,\. Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use. and 
other similar taxes required to be paid by Contractor in 
accordance vvith the Laws and Regulations of the place of the 
Pr~iect which are applicable during the perfoD11.ance of the 
Work. 

6.11 Use ofSite and Other Areas 

A. Limitation on Use of Site and Other Areas 

1. Contractor shall confine construction equipment. 

2013-OO3-ENG 
the storage of materials and equipment. and the operations of 
workers to the Site and other areas pemutted by Laws and 
Regulations. and shall not unreasonably encumber the Site and 
other areas v.lth construction equipment or other materials or 
equipment. Contractor shall assume full responsibility for any 
damage to any such land or area, or to the owner or occupant 
thereof. or of any adjacent land or areas resulting from the 
perfonnance of the Work 

2. Should any claim be made by allY 'Ouch m\'ller or 
occupant because of the perfoD1laDce of the Work. Contractor 
shall promptly settle v.ith such other party by negotiation or 
othernise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute 
resolution proceeding or at law. 

3. To the fullest eXkllf pemritfed hy Laws and 
Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless 
Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, partners. 
employees, agents. comilitants and suhcontractors of each and 
any of them from and <1g<linst all clainls, costs, losses. and 
damages (ulciuding Imt noi limited to all fees and charges of 
engineels,architects, al1{'mey!:>. and other professionals and all 
COlUt or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising 
out of or relating to any claim or action. legal or equitable. 
brought any snchowner or occupant against O\\'ller. 
Engineer, any other party indemnified hereunder to the 
extent caused by or based upon Contractor's perfonuance of 
the Work. 

B. Removal of Debris DlIring Perfonnance of the 
Work: Dtuing the progress of the Work Contractor shall keep 
the Site and other areas free from accumulations of waste 
materials, rubbish. and other debris. Removal and disposal of 
such waste matedals. rubbish. and other debris shall conform 
to applicable Laws and Regulations. 

C. Cleaning: Prior to Substantial Completion of the 
Work Contractor shall clean the Site and the Work and make it 
ready for utilization by Owner. At the completion ofdle Work 
Contractor shall remove from the Site all tools. appliances. 
construction equipment and machinery, and surplus materials 
and shall restore to Oliginal condition all property not 
designated for alteration by the Contract DoclUllents. 

D. Loading Stnlctures: Contractor shall not load nor 
penuit any part of any structure to be loaded in any manner 
that will eudanger the stlUcture, nor shall Contractor subject 
any part of the Work or adjacent property to stresses or 
preS"lJres that \\ill endanger it. 

6.12 Record Documents 

A. Contractor shall maintain in a safe place at the Site 
one record copy of all Dra\\ings, Specifications, Addenda. 
Change Orders. Work Change Directives. Field Orders. and 
written interpretations and dadfications in good order and 
annotated to show changes made during construction. These 
record doclUnents together with all approved Samples and a 
cOlmterpart of all approved Shop Drawings will be available to 
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Engineer for reference. Upon completion of the Work, these 
record documents. Samples, and Shop Drawings \vill be 
delivered to Engineer for (hvner. 

6.13 SafelY and Protection 

A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for 
initiating. maintaining and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with the Work. Contractor shall 
take all necessary precautions for the safety of. and shall 
provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury or 
loss to: 

1. all persons on the Site or who may be affected by 
the Work; 

2. all the Work and matelials and equipment to be 
incorporated therein, whether in storage on or offthe Site: and 

3. other propel1y at the Site or adjacent thereto, 
including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, 
structures. utilities, and Underground Facilities not designated 
for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of 
construction. 

B. Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws 
and Regulations relating to the safety of persons or property, 
or to the protection of persons or property from damage, 
injury, or loss; and shall erect and maintain all necessary 
safeguards for such safety and protection. Contractor shall 
notify O\\llers of adjacent property and of Underground 
Facilities and other utility owners when prose~utioll ofthe 
Work may affect them and shall cooperate with them ill fhe 
protection, removal, relocation, and replacement of their 
property. 

C. All damage. injury, or loss to . any property 
referred to in Paragraph 6.l3.A.2 or 6.~J.A.3 c<)jJsed, dire<.:uy 
or indirectly, in whole or in part by Colitractor, any Subcon­
tractor, Supplier. or any other individual or entity directly or 
indirectly employed by any of them to pertl]IID any of the 
Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable. 
shall be remedied by Contractor (except damage or loss 
attributable to tp<: fault ofDrawingsorSpecmcations or to the 
acts or omis:,;ions of O\\ller or Engineer or , or anyone 
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of 
them may be li~ble. and not attributable, directly or indirectly, 
in or in part to the fault or negligence of Contractor or 
any' StibcontractoL Supplier, or other individual or entity 
directly or indirectly employed by any of them). 

D. Corttrilctor's duties and responsibilities for safety 
and tor protection of the Work shall continue until such time 
as all Work is completed and Engineer has issued a notice 
to Owner and Contractor in accordance with Paragraph 
14.07.B that the Work is acceptable (except as otherwise ex­
pressly provided in connection witll Substantial Completion). 

6.14 Safety Representafil'e 
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A. Contractor shall designate a qualified and 
expelienced safety representative at the Site whose duties and 
responsibilities shall be the prevention of accidents and the 
maintaining and supervising of safety precautions and 
programs. 

6.15 Ha=ard Communication Programs 

A. Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating 
any exchange of material safety data sheets or other hazard 
conmuullcation information required to be made a"llilable to 
or exchanged between or among employers at the Site in 
accordance with Laws or Regulatioils. 

6.16 Emergencies 

I 
t 

A. In emcrg~Jicier, ~ffecting ithe safety or protection 
of persons or the Work or propt'11yal the Site or adjacent 
thereto, Contmctof is obligated to act to prevent threatened I•damage, iUJtn),. or lo~~. Conuuctor shall give Engineer prompt 
written notice if Contractor believes that any significant 
changes in the Work or variations from the Contract 
DOCIUllents have been caused thereby or are required as a 
result thereof. If Engineer determines that a change in the 
Contract Documents is required because of the action taken by 
Contractor in response to such an emergency, a Work Change 
Directive or Change Order \vill be issued. 

6.17 Shop Drawings and Samples I 
I 
iA. Contractor shall submit Shop Drawings and 

Samples to Engineer for review and approval in accordance 
with the acceptable Schedule of Submittals (as required by 
Paragraph 2.07). Each submittal will be identified as Engineer I 

Imay require. 

f1. Shop Dmwings 

a. Submit nmnber of copies specified in the General 
Requirements. I 

Ib. Data ShO\\l1 on the Shop Drawings will be 
complete with respect to quantities, dinlensions, 
specified perfonnance and design criteria, materials. 
and similar data to show Engineer the services. I 
materials, and equipment Contractor proposes to 
provide and to enable Engineer to review the 
infonnation for the limited purposes required by I 
Paragraph 6.17.D. f 
2. Samples: Contractor shall also submit Sanlples to 

Engineer for review and approval in accordance with the i,acceptable schedule of Shop Dra\\iugs and Salllple submittals. 

I 

I 


a. Submit mUllber of Samples specified in the 
Specifications. 

b. Clearly identify each Sample as to matelial, 
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Supplier. pertinent data such as catalog numbers, the 
use for which intended and other data as Engineer 
may require to enable Engineer to review the 
submittal for the limited purposes required by 
Paragraph 6.17.D. 

B. Where a Shop Drav.ing or Sample is required by 
the Contract Documents or the Schedule of Submittals. any 
related Work performed prior to Engineer's review and 
approval of the pertinent submittal will be at the sole expense 
and responsibility ofContractor. 

C. Submittal Procedures 

1. Before submitting each Shop Drawing or Sample, 
Contractor shall have determined and verified: 

a. all field measurements, quantities. dimensions, 
specified performance and design criteria. installation 
requirements, materials, catalog numbers. and similar 
information with respect thereto: 

b. the suitability of all materials with respect to 
intended use, fabrication. shipping. handling. storage, 
assembly, and installation pertaining to the 
performance of the Work; 

c. all information relative to Contractor's 
responsibilities for means, methods. techniques, 
sequences, and procedures of construction. and safety 
precautions and programs incident thereto: ~nd 

d. shall also have reviewed and coordinated each 
Shop Drawing or Sample with other Shop Drawings 
and Samples and with the requirements of tbe Work 
and the Contract Documents. 

2. Each submittal shall Deaf a stamp or specific 
written certification that Contractor has satisfied Contractor's 
obligations Imder the Contract 'Documents with l'espect to 
Contractor's review and approval of that submittal. 

3. With each submittal, ".Contractor shall give 
Engineer specific written notice of any variations. that the 
Shop DrawinlZ or Sru.uple may have from the requirements of 
the Contract Documents. This notice shall be both a written 
communication separate from the Shop Dra,\ing's or Sample 
Submittal: and. addition. by a specific notation made on 
each . Shot) Drawing or Sample submitted to Engineer for 
f\!\iew and approval ofeach such variation. 

D. Engineer's Re'Viev.­

1. Engineer will pro'Vide timely review of Shop 
Drav.ing5 and Samples in accordance \\ith the Schedule of 
Submittals acceptable to Engineer. Engineer's review and 
approval will be only to detenn.ine if the items covered by the 
submittals v.ill, after installation or incorporation in the Work. 
conform to the information given in the Contract Documents 
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and be compatible with the design concept of the completed 
Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract 
Documents. 

2. Engineer's re'View and approval v.ill not extend to 
means. methods. techniques. sequences, or procedures of 
construction (except where a particular means. method. 
technique, sequence, or procedure of construction is 
specifically and expressly called for by the Contract 
Documents) or to safety precautions or programs incident 
thereto. The review and approval of a separate item as such 
will not indicate approval of the assembly in which the lY",t1l 
fimctions. 

3. Engineer's revie\\ ~nd approval shall !Jut relieve 
Contractor from responsibility for any yanatinu from the 
requirements of the Contract Documents 1.1Li.lc:,,, Contractor bas 
complied with the of P'dragraph 6.17.C.3 and 
Engineer bas given w1i!1en applOval each such \'ariation by 
specific written notal10n thereof incOl'porated in or 
accompauying the Shop Drav.ing or Sample. Engineer's 
revieW and approval shall ll0t relieve Contractor from 
respon~ibility for complying with the requirements of 
Paragraph 6.17.C.1. 

E. Re"ubmiHal Procedures 

1. Contractor shall make cOlTections required by 
Engineer and shall return the required number of corrected 
copies of Shop Drawings and submit, as required. new 
Samples for review ru.ld approval. Contractor shall direct 
specific attention in WIlting to revisions other than the 
corrections called for by Engineer on previous submittals. 

6.18 ContinlJing the Work 

A. Contractor shall carry on the Work and adhere to 
the Progress Schedule during all disputes or disagreements 
with Owner. No Work shall be delayed or postponed pending 
resolution of any disputes or disagreements, except as 
penn.itted by Paragraph 15.04 or as Ov.ner and Contractor 
may otherwise agree in writing. 

6.19 Contractor's General Warra1l1y and Guarantee 

A. Contractor wan-ants and guarantees to Owner that 
all Work v.ill be in accordance with the Contract Documents 
and will not be defective. Engineer and its Related Entities 
shall be entitled to rely on representation of Contractor's 
warranty and guarantee. 

B. Contractor's warranty and guarantee herelillder 
excludes defects or damage caused by: 

1. abuse, modification. or inlpfoper maintenance or 
operation by persons other than Contractor. Subcontractors. 
Suppliers. or any other individual or entity for whom 
Contractor is responsible: or 
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2. nonnal wear and tear under nonnal usage. 

C. Contractor's obligation to perform and complete 
the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents shall be 
absolute. None of the following will constitute an acceptance 
of Work that is not in accordance with the Contract 
Documents or a release of Contractor's obligation to perform 
the Work in accordance 'with the Contract Documents: 

1. observations by Engineer; 

2. recommendation by Engineer or payment by 
Q\\.'ller ofany progress or final payment; 

3. the issuance of a certificate of Substantial 
Completion by Engineer or any payment related thereto by 
Owner: 

4. use or occupancy of the Work or any part thereof 
by O\\'ller: 

5. any review and approval of a Shop Drawing or 
Sample submittal or the issuance of a notice of acceptability 
by Engineer: 

6. any inspection, test, or approval by others; or 

7. any con'ectlon ofdefective Work by O\\'ller, 

6.20 Indemnification 

A To the fullest extent permitted by Law~ and 
Regulations. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmle~" 
Owner and Engineer. and the officers, rlirectors. partners, 
employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and 
any of them from and against all claim!)", costs, losses. and 
damages (including but not limited to all fi;es llnd charges of 
engineers, architects, attorneys, ,and other professionals I!na all 
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising 
out of or relating to the perforntance of the Work. provided 
that any such clain}, cost, loss, or danmge is-attributable to 
bodily injury, sickne::s ..disease, or death. or to injury to or 
destruction of tang,Ible property (otbe:rthan the Work itself), 
including the loss of use resulting therefrom but only to the 
extent caused by any negligent act or omission of Contractor. 
any SUbCOlltl'actor, any Supplier, or any indi"idual or entity 
directly or mdirectly employed by any of them to perfornl any 
of the Work OfUl1yone for v,hose acts any of them may be 
li:tble. 

B. In any and all claims against Q\\.ner or Engineer or 
any {I f their respective consultants, agents, officers, directors. 
p&1nerS, or employees by any employee (or the sllf'l.dvor or 
persoual representative of such employee) of Contractor, any 
Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity 
directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any 
'of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be 
liable, the indemnification obligation wder Paragraph 6.20.A 
shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the 

f 

l 
( 
1 
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amowt or type ofdamages, comperlSation, or benefits payable 
by or for Contractor or any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or 
other individual or entity under workers' compensation acts, f 
disability benefit acts. or other employee benefit acts. ~. 

! 
[ 
~ 

C. The illdenmification obligations of Contractor 
tmder Paragraph 6.20.A shall not exiend to the liability of 
Engineer and Engineer's officers, directors, partners, employ­
ees, agents, consultants and subcontractors arising out of: J 

! 
I 

L the preparation or approval of. or the failure to 
prepare or approve, maps, Drawings. opinions. repom, 
smveys. Change Orders, designs, or Specifications: or 

t 
2. giving directions or instmctions, or failing to give I

them, if that is the primary caUst; of the injury or damage. f 
~ 

6.21 Delegation {~fPrqff~ssional Senices f 
t 

A. ('onn-actor will not be required to provide 
professional desIgn servke~ unless such services are 
specificaHyrequired by the Contract Docnments for a portion 
of the \\lork or unless such services are required to carry out 
Contractor's responsibilities for construction means, methods. 
technique". sequences and procedures. Contractor shall not be 
required to professional senices in violation of 
applicable law. I

~, 

B. If professional design services or certifications by 

I 
1 a tlesign professional related to systems, nmterials or 

equipment are specifically required of Contractor by the 
ConlIact Documents, O\\ner and Engineer will specify all 
performance and design criteria that such senices must 
satisfy. Contractor shall cause such sef'l"ices or certifications to 
be provided by a properly licensed professional, ",ilose r 
signanlfe and seal shall appear on all dra\\iugs, calculations, 
specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings and other l 
submittals prepared by snch professional. Shop Drawings and 
other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by 
such professional. if prepared by others, shall bear such Iprofessional's ",Tinen approval when submitted to Engineer. 

C. Ovmer and Engineer shall be entitled to rely upon t 
the adequacy, aCCtlfacy and completeness of the senices, 
certifications or approvals performed by such design f 
professionals. prmdded O\\'ller and Engineer have specified to 
Contractor all pe:tfonnance and design criteria that such 
sen1.ces must satisfy. ! 

D. Pursuant to this Paragraph 6.21, Engineer's review 
and approval of design calculations and design dra\\ings will 
be only for the limited putpose of checking for confornmnce 
with performance and design criteria given and the design f 
concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Engineer's t 
review and approval of Shop Dra",ings and other subminals I 
(except design calculations and design drawings) will be only 
for the putpose stated in Paragraph 6. 17.D.1. 
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E. Contractor shall not be responsible for the 
adequacy of the perfonnance or design critetia required by the 
Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 7 OTHER WORK AT THE SITE 

7.01 Related Work at Site 

A. Owner may perform other work related to the 
Project at the Site with Ov.ner's employees, or via other direct 
contracts therefor, or have other work performed by utility 
owners. If such other work is not noted in the Contract 
Documents. then: 

1. written notice thereof 'will be given to Contractor 
prior to stalting any such other work; and 

2. if Owner and Contractor are tmable to agree on 
entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any. of allY 
adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times that should 
be allowed as a result of such other work. a Claim may be 
made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. 

B. Contractor shall afford each other contractor who 
is a party to such a direct contract, each utility owner and 
Ov.ner. if O\\ner is performing other work "itll O\\ner's 
employees. proper and safe access to the Site, a reasonahk 
opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and 
equipment and tlle execution of such other work,; and shall 
properly coordinate the Work \\ith theirs. Contractor 5hall do 
all cutting. fitting. and patching of the Work that may he 
required to properly counect or otherwise raake its several 
parts come together and properly integrate \\ith ~ucb other 
work. Contractor shall not endanger any work. of others by 
cutting, excavating, or othernise al;(fring their \\ork and will 
only cut or alter their work ,'\iththe writtea);consent of 
Engineer and the others whose 'work wm be afiecled. TIle 
duties and responsibilities of Contl-actor urJder thisParagraph 
are for the benefit of such utility ov,'llers and other contractors 
to the extent that tll~ are COlllpal:able provisions for the 
benefit of Contractor in said direct contracts between Owner 
and sucb utility ovvners and other contractors. 

C. If the proper execution or results of any pal1 of 
Contractor"s Work depends upon work perfomled by others 
underrhis A11ide 7, Contractor shall inspect such other work 
~nd promptly rep01/: to Engineer in wtiring any delays. defects, 
or deficieucies in such other work that render it unavailable or 
unsuitable for ihe proper execution and results of Contractor's 

Contractor's failm:e to so report will constiUlte an 
acceptance of such otller work as fit and proper for integration 
with Contractor's Work except for latent defects and 
deficiencies in such other work. 

7.02 Coordination 
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A. If Owner intends to contract with otllers for the 
performance of other work on the Project at the Site. the 
following will be set forth in Supplementary Conditions: 

1. tlte individual or entity who will have authority 
and responsibility for coordination of tlte acti"ities among the 
varions contractors will be identified: 

2. the specific matters to be covered such 
authority and responsibility ",':ill be itemized: iUld 

3. the extent of such authority and responsibilit:('s 
will be provided. 

B. Unless othern'ise providt"C\in the Supplementary 
Conditions. O",ner shall have !>ole autltorityand responsibility 
for sllch coordination. 

7.03 Legal Relatiwiships 

Paragmphs 7.01.:\ and 7.02 al'e not applicable for 
utilities not under the control of Owner. 

B. Each other direct contract of O",ner under 
Paragraph 7.0LA shall provide that the other contractor is 
liable to Owner and Contractor for the reasonable direct delay 
and disruption costs incurred by Contractor as a result of the 
other contractor's actions or inactions. 

C. Contractor shall be liable to O\\ner and any other 
conhactor for the reasonable direct delay and disruption costs 
incurred by such otller contractor as a result of Contractor's 
action or inactions. 

ARTICLE 8 - OWNER'S RESPONSmILITIES 

8.01 Communications to Contractor 

A. Except as othelwise pro'ided in these General 
Conditions. Owner shall issue all COlll1lumicatiollS to 
Contractor through Engineer. 

8.02 Replacement a/Engineer 

A. In case of tennination of the employment of 
Engineer, Ov.ner shall appoint an engineer to whom 
Contractor makes no reasonable objection. whose status under 
the Contract DocUlllents shall be that of the former Engineer. 

8.03 Fumish Data 

A. O\vner shall promptly furnish the data required of 
O",ner under the Contract DoclUllents. 

8.04 Pay Wilen Due 
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A Owner shall make payments to Contractor when 

they are due as pro'vided in Paragraphs 14.02.C and 14.07.C. 

8,05 Lands and Easements; Reports and Tests 

A O~ller's duties in respect of providing lands and 
easements and providing engineering surveys to establish 
reference points are set forth in Paragraphs 4.01 and 4.05. 
Paragraph 4.02 refers to Owner's identifying and making 
available to Contractor copies of reports of explorations and 
tests of subsurface conditions and drawings of physical 
conditions in or relating to existing surface or subsurface 
stmctures at or contiguous to the Site that have been utilized 
by Engineer in preparing the Contract Docmnents. 

8.06 Insurance 

A Owner's responsibilities. if any, in respect to pur­
chasing and maintaining liability and property insurance are 
set forth in Article 5. 

8.07 Change Orders 

A O\\'ller is obligated to execute Change Orders as 
indicated in Paragraph 10.03. 

8.08 Inspections, Tests, and Approvals 

A O~ller's responsibility in respect to certaJl1 
inspections. tests, and approvals is set forth in Paragraph 
13.03.B. 

8.09 Limitations 011 Owner's Responsibilities 

A The O\\'ller shall not supepiise, direcL or have 
control or authority over, nor be responSttle for. Contractor's 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of 
constmction, or the safety preq:utionsand programs incident 
thereto, or for any failure of Ctitftractor compiy widl Laws 
and Regulations applicable to ~'perfommuce of the Work. 
Owner will not be responsible for Contracror's failure to 
perfonn the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 

8.10 Undisclosed Hq:;ardous Em:ironmental Condition 

A Owner's responsi~ility in respect to an lUldis­
closed J Hazardous Environmental Condition is set forth in 
Paragraph 4.06. 

8.11 Erjdence ofFinancial An'angements 

A If and to the extent O\\ller has agreed to fmlush 
Contractor reasonable evidence that financial arrangements 
bave been made to satisfy O'I.\'Iler's obligations lUlder the 
Contract Documents, Owner's responsibility in respect thereof 
will be as set forth in the Supplementary Conditions. 

t 
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ARTICLE 9 - ENGINEER'S STArnS DURING tCONSTRUCTION 

9.01 Owner's Representative I 
A. Engineer will be O'I.\ner's representative during 

the construction period. The duties and responsibilities and the 
linlitations of authority of Engineer as Owner's representative 
during construction are set forth in the Contract Documents 
and will not be changed without ""riften consent ofOwner and 
Engineer. 

9.02 Visits to Site I 
A. Engineer will make \'isits to the Site at intervals 

appropriate to the various stages of construction as Engineer 
deelIlS necessary in order to observe as an experienced and 
qualified design profes::donal the progress that bas been made 
and the quality of the variDus aspects of Contractor's executed 
Work. Ba:.ed on iufonuation obtained during such visits and 
observations. Engineer. for rhe benefit of O"'Iler, will 
detemune. in general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance 
with the Contract Docmnents. Engineer will not be required to 
make exhaustive or continuous inspections on the Site to 
cbeck the quality or quantity of the Work. Engineer's efforts 
will be directed toward providing for O"ner a greater degree 
ofconfidence that the completed Work will conform generally 
to the Contract Documents. On the basis of such "lsits and 
observations, Engineer will keep O"ner informed of the 
plOgress of the Work and will endeavor to guard O\\'Iler 
against defective Work. I 

B. Engineer's visits and observations are subject to f 
all the linlitations on Engineer's authority and responsibility 

I 
Iset forth in Paragraph 9.09. Patiicularly, but without 

linlitation. during or as a result of Engineer's visits or 
observations of Contractor's Work Engineer "ill not 
supervise, direct. control, or have authority over or be 
responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, 
sequences. or procedm:es of construction, or the safety 
precautions and progralIlS incident thereto, or for atly failure I 
ofContractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable 
to the perfonnance of the Work. f 

~ 
9.03 Project Representative : 

iA If O"'Iler and Engineer agree, Engineer will r. 
ftunish a Resident Project Representative to assist Engineer in I 
providing more extensive observation of the Work. The •1authority and responsibilities of any such Resident Project 
Representative and assistants "ill be as provided in the I
Supplementary Conditions, and linutations on the 
responsibilities thereof will be as provided in Paragraph 9.09. tIf Ow-ner designates another representative or agent to frepresent O'\ller at the Site who is not Engineer's consultant, 
agent or employee, the responsibilities and autbority and i 
linlitations tbereon of sucb other individual or entity will be as I 
E.rovided in the Supplementary Conditions. t 
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9.04 Authori=ed VariaTiol1s in Work 

A. Engineer may authorize minor variations in the 
Work from the requirements of the Contract Docllments which 
do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Price or the 
Contract Times and are compatible '\\rith the design concept of 
the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by 
the Contract Documents. These may be accomplished by a 
Field Order and will be binding on Owner and also on 
Contractor, who shall perform the Work involved promptly. If 
Owner or Contractor believes that a Field Order justifies an 
adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, 
and the parties are tumble to agree on entitlement to or on the 
amolmt or extent, if any, ofany such a<ljustment , a Claim may 
be made therefor as pro'tided in Paragraph 10.05. 

9.05 Rejecting Defecm'e Work 

A. Engineer will have authority to reject Work which 
Engineer believes to be defective, or that Engineer believes 
'\\rill not produce a completed Project that confonns to the 
Contract Documents or that will prejudice the integrity of the 
design concept of the completed Project as a fimctioning 
whole as indicated by the Contract Documents. Engineer will 
also have authority to require special inspection or testing of 
the Work as provided in Paragraph l3.04, whether or not tlle 
Work is fabricated, installed, or completed. 

9.06 Shop Drawings, Change Orders and Payments 

A. In conllection with Engineer's authOrltj. and 
limitations thereof, as to Shop Drawings and Samples. :.ee 
Paragraph 6.17. 

B. In comlection witll Engineer's authority, and 
limitations thereof, as to design:calculations and design 
drawings submitted in response to a\1elegation ofprofes~ional 
design senices. ifany, see Paragraph 6.21. . '. 

C. In comtection with E!lgineer's authority as to 
Change Orders, see Articles 10, 11, and 12. 

D. In comtection ~idrF.ngit1eer's atrthority as to 
Applications for Payment. see Article' 14. 

9.07 Dert?rminattollsfor Unit Price Work 

A. Engineer will detennine the actual quantities and 
classifications of Unl,f,'p1ice Work perfonned by Contractor. 
Engineer \\ill review \\ith Contractor the Engineer's 
prelilliUwy determinations on such matters before rendering a 
written decision thereon (by recommendation of an 
Applicntion for Payment or oilierwise). Engineer's written 
decision.thereon will be final and binding (except as modified 
by Engineer to reflect changed factual conditions or more 
accnrale data) upon Owner and Contractor. subject to the 
provisions ofParagraph 10.05. 
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9.08 Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documellls 
and Acceptability ofWork 

A. Engineer will be the initial interpreter of the 
requirements of the Contract Documents and judge of the 
acceptability of ilie Work ilierelmder. All matters in question 
and other matters between Owner and Contractor ari<>ing prior 
to the date final payment is due relating to the acceptability of 
the Work, and the interpretation of the requirements of the 
Contract DoclUuents pertaining to ilie perfol'manceof the 
Work, will be referred initially to Engineer in writing w'ithin 
30 days of the event giving rise to ilie question 

B. Engineer will, ",ith reatMnable promptness, render 
a written decision on the issue referred. If O~'ller or 
Contractor believe that any such decisiolJ entitles them to au 
adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times or both. a 
Claim may be made under Paragraph 10.05. The date of 
Engineer's decision shan be the date of the event giving rise to 
the issues referenced for purposes of Paragraph 10.05.B. 

C. Engineer':; written decision on the issue referred 
will be final and binding on Owner and Contractor, subject to 
the provi<,ions of Paragraph 10.05. 

D. I,Vhen fimctioning as interpreter and judge ll1lder 
this Paragraph 9.08, Engineer ",ill not show partiality to 
O"'iler or Contractor and will not be liable in connection with 
any interpretation or decision rendered in good faith in such 
capacity. 

9.09 Limitations on Engineer's Allfhority alld 
Responsibilities 

A. Neither Engineer's authority or responsibility 
lmder tIns Article 9 or under any oilier provision of the 
Contract Documents nor allY decision made by Engineer in 
good faith either to exercise or not exercise such auiliority or 
responsibility or the undet1aking. exercise, or perfonnance of 
any autholity or responsibility by Engineer shall create. 
impose. or give rise to any duty in contract, tort or othemise 
owed by Engineer to Contractor, any Subcontractor, any 
Supplier, any oilier individual or entity, or to any surety for or 
employee or agent ofany ofthem. 

B. Engineer ",ill not supervise, direct, controL or 
have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means. 
methods, techniques, sequences. or procedures of 
construction. or the safety precautions and programs incident 
thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply .....ith Laws 
and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. 
Engineer will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to 
pelionn the Work ill accordance with the Contract 
DoClUuents. 

C. Engineer will not be responsible for the acts or 
omissions ofContractor or ofany Subcontractor, any Supplier. 
or of any other individual or entity perfomting any of the 
Work. 
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D. Engineer's re'view of the final Application for 
Payment and accompanying documentation and all 
maintenance and operating instructions, schedules. guarantees. 
bonds. certificates ofinspection. tests and approvals. and other 
docmnentation required to be delivered by Paragraph 14.07.A 
will only be to determine generally that their content complies 
with the requirements of. and in the case of certificates of 
inspections, tests, and approvals that the results certified 
indicate compliance with the Contract Documents. 

E. The limitations upon authority and responsibility 
set forth in this Paragraph 9.09 shall also apply to. the 
Resident Project Representative, if any, and assistants. if any. 

ARTICLE 10 - CHANGES IN THE WORK; CLAIMS 

10.01 Authori:ed Changes in the Work 

A Without invalidating the Contract and without 
notice to any surety. O'\\'ller may, at any time or from time to 
time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work by a 
Change Order, or a Work Change Directive. Upon receipt of 
any such document Contractor shall promptly proceed Vtrith 
the Work involved which Vtrill be performed under the 
applicable conditions of the Contract Documents (except a'i 
otherwise specifically pro\ided). 

B. If O'\\'ller and Contractor are unable to agree on 
entitlement to, or on the amolUlt or extent, if any. ofan adjust· 
ment in the Contract Price or Contract Times. or both,' tLat 
should be allowed as a result of a Work Change Directive. a 
Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. 

10.02 Unauthori:ed Changes ill the Work 

AContractor shall notbe entitled to an in.:n;:ase in 
the Contract Price or all extension of the Contract Tinles v.ith 
respect to any work perfonned U;'at is not required by the 
Contract Documents a.~:llmended, modified, or supplemented 
as provided in Paragraph 3.04. except in the case of an emer· 
gency as provided in Paragraph or in the case of 
lUlcovering wdi'k as pro'ided in Paragraph 13.04.B. 

10.03 E'(ecution ofChange Orders 

A. O'\\'ller' and., Contractor shall execute appropriate 
Change OJ:ders recommended by Engineer covering: 

1. changes in the Work which are: (i) ordered by 
O\Ulet pursuant to Paragraph 10.0l.A (ii) required because of 
accept!l.ll<::e of defective Work under Paragraph 13.08.A or 
Ov.'ller'scorrection of defective Work tmder Paragraph 13.09. 
or (iii) agreed to by the parties; 

2. changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times 
which are agreed to by the parties. including any undisputed 
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sum or amount of time for Work actually performed in 
accordance with a Work Change Directive: and t 

f 
3. changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times l 

which embody the substance of any written decision rendered i 
by Engineer pursuant to Paragraph 10.05; provided that. in 
lieu of executing any such Change Order. an appeal may be i 
taken from any such decision in accordance \\ith the 
pro\isions of tlte Contract Documents and applicable Laws 
and Regulations. but during any such app.;:al, t outrac[j)r shall I 
cany on the Work and adhere to the Progress Schedule as 
provided in Paragraph 6.18.A. I 

I10.04 Notification to Surety 

A. If notice of any ,;;hange affecting the general f 
Scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract 
Doctunents (includiftg, but limited to, Contract Price or [ 
Contract Times) is required by the {Jr(.nl&lons of any bond to 
be given to It surety, the giving of any such notice will be 
Contractor' ':> respolL<;,lbility. The amolUlt of each applicable 
bond wilJ be adjusted te> reflect the effect of any such change. 

10.05 Claims 

I 
I 

A. ') Decision Required: All Claims, except 
those waived pursuant to Paragraph 14.09, shall be refened to 
the Engineer for decision. A decision by Engineer shall be 
required as a condition precedent to any exercise by O,\\ller or 
Contractor of any rights or remedies either may othelWise 
have under the Contract Documents or by Laws and IRegtilations in respect of such Claims. 

1B. Notice: Written notice stating the general nature of ( 

each Claim. shall be delivered by the claimant to Engineer and i 
the other party to the Contract promptly (but in no event later i 

ithan 30 days) after the start of the event giving rise thereto. 
The responsibility to substantiate a Claim shall rest with the tparty making the Clainl. Notice of the amount or extent of the 
Claim. with supporting data shall be delivered to the Engineer 
and the other party to the Contract within 60 days after the t 
start of such event (tmless Engineer allows additional tinle for f 
claimant to submit additional or more accurate data in support 
of such Claim). A Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price I 
shall be prepared in accordance with the provisions of 
Paragraph 12.01.B. A Clainl for an adjustment in Contract 
Time shall be prepared in accordance '\\ith the provisions of I 
Paragraph 12.02.B. Each Claim shall be accompanied by ~ 

I 
r

claimant's \\'ritten statement that the adjustment claimed is the 
entire adjustment to which the claimant believes it is entitled 
as a result of said event. The opposing party shall submit any tresponse to Engineer and the claimant within 30 days after 
receipt of the claimaIlt's last submittal (unless Engineer allows ! 

~ 
additional time). i 

If· 

~ 

~ 
~C. Engineer's Action: Engineer will review each 

Claim and, v.ithin 30 days after receipt of the last submittal of 
the claimant or the last submittal of the opposing party, ifany, t 

r;
take one of the follo'\ing actions in writing: r: 
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1. deny the Claim in whole or in part 

2. approve the Claim, or 

3. notify the parties that the Engineer is unable to 
resolve the Claim if, in the Engineer's sole discretion, it would 
be inappropriate for the Engineer to do so. For pw:poses of 
further resolution of the Claim, such notice shall be deemed a 
denial. 

D. In the event that Engineer does not take action on 
a Claim \vithin said 30 days, the Claim shall be deemed 
denied. 

E. Engineer's "''li.tten action under Paragraph 1O.05.C 
or denial pursuant to Paragraphs 10.05.C.3 or 10.05.D will be 
final and binding upon Owner and Contractor, unless Owner 
or Contractor invoke the dispute resolution procedure set forth 
in Article 16 'within 30 days of such action or denial. 

F. No Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price or 
Contract Times ""ill be valid if not submitted in accordance 
with this Paragraph 10.05. 

ARTICLE 11 COST OF THE WORK; ALLOWA.t~CES; 

L11'ITI PRICE WORK 

11.01 Cost ofthe Work 

A. Costs Inc/uded: The term Cost of the Work mf:<lllS 
the Sunl of all costs, except those excluned in Paragraph 
11.01.B, necessarily incurred and paid by Contractor in the 
proper performance of the Work. When the value (jfany Work 
covered by a Change Order or when'l. Claim for an adjustment 
in Contract Price is determined on the basis of the 
Work. the costs to be reimbursed to Contractor be only 
those additional or incremental c,,)Sts required becaUse of the 
change in the Work or because of file event giving dse to the 
Claim. Except as ot~ise may b~. agreed to in writing by 
O\\ner, such costs shall be in amoUnts no higher than those 
prevailing in the . locality of the Pr0j.~ct. shall include only the 
following items, and shall not inc:1ude any of the costs 
itemized in Paragraphll.OI.B. 

. 1. PayTOn costs for employees in the direct employ of 
Contractor in the performance of the Work Imder schedules of 
Job classifications 88Iced upon by O\\ner and Contractor. 
Such employees shall include. without limitation, superinten­
dent$.; foremen, and other personnel employed full time at the 
Slh!. Pa)Toll costs for employees not employed full time on 
the Work shall be apportioned on the basis of their time spent 
on the Work. Payroll costs shall include, but not be limited to, 
salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe benefits, which shall 
include social secrulty contributions, unemployment excise. 
and payroll taxes, workers' compensation, health and 
retirement benefits_ bonuses, sick leave, vacation and holiday 
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pay applicable thereto. The expenses of performing Work 
outside of regular working hours. on Sahlfday, Sunday, or 
legal holidays, shall be included in the above to the extent 
authorized by Owner. 

2. Cost of all materials and equipment fi.u:nished and 
illcOIporated in the Work, including costs of transport,Ition and 
storage thereof, and Suppliers' field services required in 
connection therewith. All cash discounts shall aceme to 
Contractor unless Owner deposits ftmds with Contractor with 
which to make payments, in which case the cash discotmts 
shall accme to O\\'ller. All trade discounts. rebates and refunds 
and rehlfllS from sale of suq>lus nL.1terials and equipment shall 
accme to Owner. and Contractor shall make provisions so that 
they may be obtained. 

3. Payments made by Contractor to Subcontractors 
for Work performed by Snhcontractor""Jfreqnired by O\''ller, 
Contractor shall obtain competitive from subcontractors 
acceptable to fr,mer and Contractor and shall deliver such 
bids to O~mer, who will then detennine, ""ith the advice of 
Engineer, which bids. if any. ""ill be acceptable. If any 
subconll'llct provides thaI the Subcontractor is to be paid on 
the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee. the Subcontractor's 
Cost of Work and fee shall be detemnned in the same 
manner as Contractor's Cost of the Work and fee as provided 
in this Paragraph 11.01. 

4. Costs of special consultants (including but not 
limited to Engineers, architects. testing laboratories. 
surveyors, attorneys, and accolmtants) employed for services 
specifically related to the Work. 

5, Supplemental costs inclnding the following: 

a. The proportion of necessary transportation, travel. 
and subsistence expenses of Contractor's enljJloyees incurred 
in discharge ofduties connected ""i.th the Work. 

b. Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of 
all materials, supplies, equipment, lnachinery, appliances. 
office, and temporary facilities at the Site, and hand tools not 
o\\'ned by the workers, which are cOllSUllled in the perfor­
mance of the Work. and cost less market value, of such items 
used but not conslUned which relnain the property of 
Contractor. 

c. Rentals of all construction equipment and 
machinery. and the parts thereof whether rented from 
Contractor or others in accordance \\ith rental agreements 
approved by Owner '''ith the advice of Engineer. and the costs 
of transpoltation. loading, unloading. assembly, dismantling. 
and removal thereof All such costs shall be in accordance 
with the temlS of said rental agreements. The rental of any 
such equipment lnachinery, or parts shall cease when the use 
thereofis no longer necessary for the Work. 

d, Sales, COllSumer, use, and other sinillar taxes 
related to the Work, and for which Contractor is liable. 
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imposed by Laws and Regulations. 


e. Deposits lost for causes other than negligence of 
Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone direcdy or indirectly 
employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may 
be liable, and royalty payments and fees for pemlits and 
licenses. 

f. Losses and damages (and related expenses) caused 
by damage to the Work, not compensated by insurance or 
otherwise, sustained by Contractor in connection with the per­
formance of the Work (except losses and damages ",itllin the 
deductible amounts of property insurance established in 
accordance with Paragraph 5.06.D), provided such losses and 
damages have resulted from causes other than the negligence 
of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indi­
rectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them 
may be liable. Such losses shall include settlements made with 
the \\'Titten consent and approval of O'Mler. No such losses, 
damages, and expenses shall be included in the Cost of the 
Work for the purpose of determining Contractor's fee. 

g. The cost of utilities, fuel, and sanitary facilities at 
the Site. 

h. IMinor expenses such as telegrams, long distance 
telephone calls, telephone service at the Site, expresses, and 
sinlilar petty cash items in connection with the Work. 

i. The costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance 
Contractor is required by the Contract DOCluuents to purchase 
and maintain. 

B. Costs Ey;c/uded: The term Cost of the Work shall 
not include any of the follo\\ing items: 

1. Payroll costs and other compensation of 
Contractor's officers, executives, princjpals (oil,partnerships 
and sole proprietorships), gener~] lnanagers, safety managers. 
engineers, architects, estimators, attu11leys, auditors. 
accountants, purchasing and contracting age.uts. expediters. 
timekeepers, clerks,and other personnel employed by 
Contractor, whetlIer at ihe Site or in Contractor's principal or 
branch office fofgeneral admit.ttstratiou of the Work and not 
specifically included i~l the agreedOpon schedule of job 
classifications referrid to in Paragraph 11.01.A.l or 
specifically CQ'ilered by Paragraph 11.0IA.4, all of which are 
to be considered administrative costs covered by the 
Contractor's fee. 

.,2. Expenses of Contractor's principal and branch 
'officeS;'other than Contractor's office at tlIe Site. 

3. Any part of Contractor's capital expenses, 
incl1]din~ interest on Contractor's capital employed for tlIe 
Work and charges against Conhactor for delinquent payments. 

4. Costs due to the negligence of Contractor, any 
Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 

I 
12013-OO3-ENG 

any of them or for \\-nose acts any of them may be liable, 
including but not limited to, the correction of defective Work, 
disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied, and 
making good any damage to property. ~ 

5. Other overhead or general expense costs of any 
kind and the costs of any item not specifically and expressly 
included in Paragraphs 1l.01.A and 11.01.B. I 

l 
I 

C. Contractor's Fee: When all the Work is 
performed on the basis of cost-plus, Contractor's fee l>hall be 
deternlined as set forth in the Agreement When the value of 
any Work covered by a Change Order or when a Claim for an 
adjusnnent in Contract Price is dctennined on the basis of 
Cost of the Work, Contractor's fee shan be detemnned as set I
forth in Paragraph 12.01.C. 

D. Documematiofl;\Vhenever the C~st of tlIe Work 
for any purpose is to be detenuiued.:pursuant to Paragraphs Ill.01.A and 1 LOLB, Contractor will establish and maintain 
records tltereof in accordaI!ce with generally accepted ac­ ,~ cOlmting practices and submit in a form acceptable to 
Engineer an itemized cost breakdown together with supporting 
data. 

11.02 Alloll'tlI1C'f'S 

A. It is understood that Contractor has included in the 
Contract Price all allowances so named in tlIe Contract 
~lments and shall cause tlIe Work so covered to be 
performed for such SUDlS and by such persons or entities as 
may be acceptable to Owner and Engineer. 

B. Cash Allowances 

1. Contractor agrees that: J 
i 

a. the cash allo\\'1Ulces include the cost to Contractor i 
(less any applicable trade discOlmts) of materials and 
equipment required by the allowances to be delivered I
at the Site. and all applicable taxes: and 

b. Contractor's costs for unloading and handling on I 
tlle Site, labor. lllStallation , overhead, profit. and i 
other expenses contemplated for the cash allowances Ihave been lllcluded in the Contract Price and 110t in 

I 
i 

the allowances. and no demand for additional 
payment on account of any of tlIe foregoing will be Ivalid. 

I 
i 

C. Contingency Allowance 

!
1. Contractor agrees that a contingency allowance. if ~ 

any, is for the sole use ofOwner to cover unanticipated costs. f 
i 

D. Prior to final payment, an appropriate Change t 
Order will be issued as recommended by Engineer to reflect f 

" §
actual amOlUlts due Contractor on account ofWoIk covered by 

I 
~'" 
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allowances, and the Contract Price shall be correspondingly 
adjusted. 

11.03 Unit Price Work 

A Where the Contract Docmnents provide that all or 
part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work, initially the 
Contract. Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price 
Work an amount equal to the smn of the unit price for each 
separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the 
estimated quantity ofeach item as indicated in the Agreement 

B. The estimated quantities of items of Unit Price 
Work are not guaranteed and ar.e solely for the purpose of 
comparison of Bids and detennining an initial Contract Price. 
Detenninations of the actual quantities and classifications of 
Unit Price Work perfonned by Contractor will be made by 
Engineer subject to the provisions ofParagraph 9.07. 

C. Each unit price will be deelned to include an 
amOlmt considered by Contractor to be adequate to cover 
Contractor's overhead and profit for each separately identified 
item. 

D. Owner or Contractor may make a Claim for an 
adjustment in the Contract Price in accordance 'with 
Paragraph 10.05 if: 

1. the quantity of any item of Unit Price Work 
perfomled by Contractor differs materially and significantly 
from the estimated quantity of such item indicate4 in the 
Agreement: and .. 

2. there is no corresponding adjustment with respect 
any other item ofWork: and 

3. Contractor believes that Contractor is entitled to an 
increase in Contract Price as a resultofbavingitlcIDTed addi­
tional expense or Ov.'1ler believes tltat Owner is'~tltith:d to a 
decrease in Contract Price and tlteparties lire tmable to agree 
as to tlte amount of any such increaSe or decrease. 

ARTICLE 12 _/ CHANGEOi' l'ONTRACT PRICE; 
CIIAl~GE OF CONTRACT TIMES 

12.01 Change o/Contract Price 

A. The CO.ll.tn1ct Price may only be cbang.ed by a 
Change tA'deL i\ny Claim for an adjustment in the Contract 
Price shall be based on written notice submitted by the party 
making the Clainl to the Engineer and the other party to the 
Contract in accordance with dIe provisions of Parag.raph 
10.05. 

B. The value of any Work covered by a Change 
Order or of any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price 
will be determined as follows: 
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1. where the Work involved is covered by unit prices 
contained in the Contract Docmnents. by application of such 
unit prices to the quantities of the items involved (subject to 
the provisions of Paragraph 11.03): or 

2. where the Work invoh'ed is not covered by unit 
prices contained in the Contract Documents, by a mutually 
agreed lump sum (which may include an allowance for 
overhead and profit not necessarily in accordance \\lth 
Paragraph 12.01.C.2); or 

3. where the Work invo1'l:ed is not covered by lUnt 
pllces contained in the Contract DoclUllents and agreement to 
a lillllp sum is not reached lUlder Paragraph I2.01.B.2, on the 
basis of the Cost of the WOlk (detenliined 2'0 provided in 
Paragraph 11.01) plus a Contractor's fee fo..lf overhead and 
profit (determined as in Paragnlph 12.01.C). 

C. Contractor's Fee: The Contractor's fee for 
overhead amI profit "ball be determined as follows: 

1. a mutually ac~eptable fixed fee: or 

2. if a fixed fee is not agreed upon, then a fee based 
on tlte foIlo;"'-.;ing percentages of the various portions of the 
Cost of the Work: 

a. for costs incurred under Paragraphs 11.01.AI and 
11.0LA2, the Contractor's fee shall be 15 percent: 

b. for costs incurred tmder Paragraph I1.01.A3, the 
Contractor's fee shall be five percent: 

c. where one or more tiers of subcontracts are on the 
basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee and no fixed fee 
is agreed upon, the intent of Paragraph I2.01.C.2.a is 
that the Subcontractor who actually perfolms the 
Work at whatever tier, will be paid a fee of 15 
percent of the costs incurred by such Subcontractor 
under Paragraphs 11.01.Al and 11.0l.A.2 and that 
any higher tier Subcontractor and Contractor will 
each be paid a fee of five percent of the amOlmt paid 
to dIe next lower tier Subcontractor: 

d. no fee shall be payable on the basis of costs 
itemized under Paragraphs 11.0LA4, 11.01.A5. and 
11.0l.B: 

e. the amolmt ofcredit to be allowed by Contractor to 
Ov.'1ler for any change which results in a net decrease 
in cost will be the anlOunt of the actual net decrease 
in cost plus a deduction in Contractor's fee by an 
amount equal to five percent of such net decrease; 
and 

f. when both additions and credits are involved in any 
one change. tlte adjustment in Contractor's fee shall 
be computed on the basis of the net change in 
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accordance with Paragraphs 12.01.C.2.a through 
12.01.C.2.e. inclusive. 

12.02 Change o/Contract Times 

A The Contract Tinles may only be changed by a 
Change Order. Any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract 
Times shall be based on '\\outten notice submitted by the party 
making the Claim to the Engineer and the other party to the 
Contract in accordance '\\oith the provisions of Paragraph 
10.05. 

B. Any adjustment of the Contract Tinles covered by 
a Change Order or any Claim for an adjustment in the 
Contract Times will be determined in accordance with the 
provisions ofthis Article 12. 

12.03 Delays 

A Where Contractor is prevented from completing 
any part of the Work 'within the Contract Times due to delay 
beyond the control of Contractor. the Contract Times 'will be 
extended in an amount equal to the time lost due to such delay 
if a Claim is made therefor as provided in Paragraph 12.02.A. 
Delays beyond the control of Contractor shall include. but not 
be limited to, acts or neglect by Owner, acts or neglect of 
utility owners or other contractors performing other work as 
contemplated by Article 7. fires, floods, epidemics, abnonnal 
weather conditions. or acts of God. 

B. If Owner. Engineer. or other contractors or utility 
O'\'llers performing other work for Owner as contemp]alj;\d by 
Article 7, or anyone for whom Owner is respol.lSible. delays. 
disrupts. or interferes with the perfonnance or progress of the 
Work. then Contractor shall be entitll.ld to an equitable 
adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times • or 
both. Contractor's entitlement to an. adjustment the Contract 
Times is conditioned on such'ldjus~ent beitig essential to 
Contractor's ability to complete the Worl:cwithin Contract 
Times. 

C If Contrac~~ is delayed in the performance or 
progress of the Vilork.'by f~,> flood, epidemic, abnormal 
weather conditions. acts of Gott; acts.or failures to act of 
utility ownersnot under. the control of Owner, or other causes 
not the fault of and beyond control of Owner and Contractor, 
then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in 
Contr~~tTimes~:l.fsuch adjustment is essential to Contractor's 
abilityto 'complete tIle Work \Vithin the Contract Tinles. Such 

adjusuuent shall be (;Contractor's sole and exclusive remedy 
for theoelays described in this Paragraph 12.03.C. 

D. Owner, Engineer and the Related Entities of each 
of the~shall not be liable to Contractor for any claims, costs, 
10sses,fJot damages (including but not limited to all fees and 
charges of Engineers, architects, attorneys, and other 
professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute 
resolution costs) sustained by Contractor on or in connection 
with any other project 01' anticipated project, 
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E. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in 

Contract Price or Contract Times for delays within the control 
of Contractor. Delays attributable to and within the control of 
a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be deemed to be delays 
within the control of Contractor. 

, 
I 
[ 
t 
I 

ARTICLE 13 TESTS Al'\"D INSPECnONS; ~-

CORRECTION, REMOVAL OR ACCEPTA.~CE OF 
DEFECTIVE WORK 

13.01 Notice o/Defects 

A. Prompt notice of nil defective Work of which 
O\\'ller or Engineer has actual knowledge "Will be given to 
Contractor. All defccri':e maybe rejected, corrected. or 
accepted as provided in this Article 13: 

t 

l 
f 
J 

13.02 .,·kcess to Work t 
~ 

A. Owner, Engineer, their consultants and other 
representatives and personnel of Owner. independent testing 
laboratories, and govenunental agencies with jmisdictional 
interests ,,,,ill have access to the Site and the Work at 
reasonable times for tlIeir observation, inspecting, and testing. 
Contractor shall provi.de them proper and safe conditions for 
sUCh access and advise them of Contractor's Site safety 
procedures and progralns so that they may comply therewith 
as applicable. 

13.03 Tests and Inspections 

A. Contractor shall give Engineer timely notice of 
readiness of tlle Work for all required inspections, tests, or 
approvals and shall cooperate \Vith inspection and testing 
personnel to facilitate required inspections or tests. 

B. O'\\oller shall employ and pay for the services ofan 
independent testing laboratory to perform all inspections, tests, 
or approvals required by the Contract Documents except: 

t 
i 

I
i., 

1. for inspections, tests, or appro\-'als covered by 
Paragraphs 13.03.C and 13.03.D below: 

I 
I 
J 

2. that costs incurred in connection with tests or 
inspections conducted pursuant to Paragraph 13.04.B shall be 
paid as provided in said Paragraph 13.04.C; and 

~ , 
3. as otherwise specifically provi.ded in the Contract 

Documents. 
I't 
is 

t 
C. If Laws or Regulations of any public body having 

jurisdiction require any Work (or part thereof) specifically to f 
! 

be inspected. tested. or approved by an employee or other 
representative of such public body, Contractor shall aSSlUne 
full responsibility for arranging and obtaining such inspec­

~: 

~. 
! 
~ 

tions, tests. or approvals, pay all costs in connection there'\\oitb. ~ 
EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions oftke Construction Contract. ~ 
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and furnish Engineer the required certificates of inspection or 
approval. 

D. Contractor shall be responsible for arranging and 
obtaining and shall pay all costs in connection \\ith any 
inspections, tests, or approvals required for Owner's and 
Engineer's acceptance of materials or equipment to be 
incorporated in the Work; or acceptance of materials, mix 
designs, or equipment submitted for approval prior to 
Contractor's purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work. 
Such inspections, tests, or approvals shall be performed by 
organizations acceptable to Owner and Engineer. 

E. If any Work (or the work of others) that is to be 
inspected, tested, or approved is covered by Contractor 
v.ithout v.Titten concurrence of Engineer, it must. if requested 
by Engineer, be lmcovered for observation. 

F. Uncovering Work as provided in Paragraph 
13.03.E shall be at Contractor's expense unless Contractor bas 
given Engineer timely notice of Contractor's intention to 
cover the same and Engineer has not acted with reasonable 
promptness in response to such notice. 

13.04 f]ncol'ering Work 

A If any Work is covered contrary to the v.ritten 
request of Engineer, it must, if requested by Engineer. be 
uncovered for Engineer's observation and replaced at 
Contractor's expense. 

B. IfEngineer considers it necessary or Ildvisable that 
covered Work be observed by Engineer or inspected or te::.ted 
by others, Contractor, at Engineer's request, shall lmcover, 
expose, or otherwise make available for observation, inspec­
tion., or testing as Engineer may require .. that p~~lion of the 
Work in question, furnishing all nec!i'ssary labor~inaterial, and 
equipment. "" 

C. If it is found that the uncovered Work isdefective, 
Contractor shall pay all clainlS,lt~ts, losses. and damages 
(including but not limited to all feesi~d chargeS of engineers, 
architects, attorneys, aDd"· oilier professionals and all com1 or 
arbitration or other dispute resolut~~llcosts) arising out of or 
relating to such uncovering, exposure; observation, UlSpeCtiOn. 
and testing, and of satistactory replacement or reconstruction 
(including but notlili.lited to all costs of repair or replacement 
of of others); and Ov..ner shall be entided to an 
appropriate decreru;,:in the Contract Price. If the parties are 
unable to agree as tathe amount thereof, Owner may make a 
Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. 

D. If. the uncovered Work is not found to be 
defecta-e, Contractor shall be allowed an increase in the 
Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Tunes. or both. 
directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure. 
observatio~ inspection, testing, replacement, and 
reconstruction. If the parties are unable to agree as to the 
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amOlUlt or extent dlereof. Contractor may make a Claim 
therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. 

13.05 Owner MaJ' Stop the Work 

A. If the Work is defective. or Contractor fails to 
supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or 
equipment, or fails to perfonll the Work in such a way that the 
completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents. 
Owner may order Contractor to stop the Work. or any portion 
dlereof. until the cause for such order has been eluulllllted: 
however, this right of Owner to stop the Work shall not 
rise to any duty on the part of O>,vner to exercise this right tor 
the benefit of Contractor, any Subcontractor. any Supplier, any 
other individual or entity, or any surely for, or employee or 
agent of allY of them. 

ofD(ji,cti,-e Work13.06 Correction or 

A. Promptly after receipt of notice, Contractor shall 
correct all defective Work, whether or not fabricated. illstalle~ 
or cOlllPleted, or, if the Work has been rejected by Engineer. 
remove if fi-om the Project and replace it \,ith Work that is not 
defectiw. Contractor shall pay all claims, costs. losses. and 
damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of 
engineers, architects. aftorneys, and other professionals and all 
COlU1 or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising 
out of or relating to such correction or removal (induding but 
not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of 
others). 

B. When cOlTecting defective Work under tbe terms 
of this Paragraph 13.06 or Paragraph 13.07, Contractor shall 
take no action that would void or otherv.ise impair Owner's 
special warranty and guarantee. if any, on said Work. 

13.07 Correction Period 

A. If within one year after the date of Substantial 
Completion (or such longer period of time as may be 
prescribed by the tenns of any applicable special guarantee re­
quired by the Contract DoClUllents) or by any specific provi­
sion of the Contract DOClIluents, any Work is fmUld to be 
defective, or if the repair of any damages to the land or areas 
made a"ailable for Contractor's use by Owner or pemritted by 
Laws and Regulations as contemplated in Paragraph 6.ll.A is 
fOlmd to be defective, Contractor shall promptly, v.idlout cost 
to Ov.ller and in accordance with Owner's v.Titten 
lllStructions: 

1. repair such defective land or areas: or 

2. correct SUdl defective Work: or 

3. if the defective Work has been rejected by O\\ller. 
remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not 
defective, and 

4. satisfactorily correct or repair or remove and 
EJCDC C-700 Standard Genual Conditions oftbe Construction Contract. 
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replace any damage to other Wolk. to the work of others or 
other land or areas resulting therefrom 

B. If Contractor does not promptly comply \\ith the 
tenns of Owner's written instructions. or in an emergency 
where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage. 
Owner may have the defective Work corrected or repaired or 
may have the rejected Work removed and replaced. All 
claims, costs. losses, and damages (including but not limited 
to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and 
other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute 
resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such correction or 
repair or such removal and replacement (including but not 
limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others) 
'will be paid by Contractor. 

C. In special circtunstances where a particular item of 
equipment is placed in continuous service before Substantial 
Completion ofall the Work, the correction period for that item 
may start to run from an earlier date if so provided in the 
Specifications. 

D. Where defective Work (and damage to other Work 
resulting therefrom) has been corrected or removed and 
replaced under this Paragraph 13.07, the correction period 
hereunder with respect to such Work will be extended for an 
additional period of one year after such correction or removal 
and replacement has been satisfactorily completed. 

E. Contractor's obligations under this Paragraph 
13.07 are in addition to any other obligation or warranty. The 
pro"isions of this Paragraph 13.07 shall not be constmedas a 
substitute for or a waiver of the pro"isions of .. applicable 
statute of limitation or repose. 

13.08 Acceptance ofDe.fective Work 

A It: instead of requiring cOll·~~tion or removal rind 
replacement of defective W6tk:, 0",;11\1r (alld. prior to 
Engineer's recommendation of··final pa:Ylnent, Engineer) 
prefers to accept it, Owner may do so. ContractOr shall pay all 
claims, costs, losses, damages (including but not limited 
to all fees and charges eugilleers, architects, attorneys, and 
other professior.als and all couit<or arbitration or other dispute 
resolution costS) attributable to Owner's evaluation of and 
determination to accept such defective Work (such costs to be 
approved by Engineer astp reasonableness) and the 
diminhhed vahle of the Work [0 the extent not otherwise paid 
by Coimactor pursuant to this sentence. If any such 
a..:ceptance occurs prifl(lO Engineer's reconnnendation of final 
payment,a Change Order will be issued incorporating the 
nece:;.~nfy revisions m the Contract DocllIllents with respect to 
the Work. and Owner shall be entitled to an appropriate 
decrease in the Contract Price, reflecting the dinlinished value 
of Work 50 accepted. If the parties are unable to agree as to 
the amount thereof. OWller may make a Claim therefor as 
provided in Paragraph 10.05. If the acceptance occurs after 
such reconnnendation. an appropriate amount will be paid by 
Contractor to O\\ller. 
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I 
~13.09 Olruer May Correct DeJecfh'e Work 

A. If Contractor fails within a reasonable time after 
written notice from Engineer to correct defective Work or to 
remove and replace rejected Work as required by Engineer in ,i 
accordance \\ith Paragraph 13.06.A, or if Contractor fails to f· 

perform the Work in accordance with the Contract I 
I 

Documents. or if Contractor fails to comply.with any other ~ 
provision of the Contract Documents, Owner lllay. after seven ! 

days written notice to Contractor, correct or remedy any such 
deficiency. 

B. In exercising the rights';;md remedies tulder this 
Paragraph 13.09, O\\ller !llmll proceed expeditiously. In 
connection with such con'ecth"e or remedial action.. Ov.'Uer 
may exclude Contractor from all or part ~t the Site, take 
possession ofall or pil.lt of Work and susp'end Contractor's 
services related theretn~ take possessit}u of Contractor's tools, 
appliances, constnl.ction equipment and machinery at the Site, 
and incorporate wthe Wod( all materials and equipment 
stored lIf the Site or for whichO\\ller has paid Contractor but 
which me stored elsewhere. Contractor shall allow Owner, 
Owner's representative~c agents and employees, Owner's 
other contractors, and Engineer and Engineer's consultants 
access to the Site to· enable Owner to exercise the rights and 
remedies under tllls Paragraph. 

C. All claims, costs, losses, and damages (including 
burnot limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, 
atto,Tneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration 
or other dispute resolution costs) incurred or sustained by 
Owner in exercising the lights and remedies under this 
Paragraph 13.09 will be charged against Contractor, and a 
Change Order "ill be issued incorporating the necessary 
revisions in the Contract Doctunents with respect to the Work: 
and OWller shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the 
Contract Plice. If the parties are unable to agree as to the 
amollnt of the adjustment. O'\'ller may make a Claim therefor 
as provided in Paragraph 10.05. Such claims. costs, losses and 
damages will include but not be limited to all costs of repair, 
or replacement of work of others destroyed or damaged by 
correctiou. removal. or replacement of Contractor's defective 
Work. 

D. Contractor shall not be allowed an extension of 
the Contract Tinles because of any delay in the perfomlatlce of 
the Work attributable to the exercise by Owner of Owner's 
rights and remedies under this Paragraph 13.09. 

ARTICLE 14 - PAYME1~lTS TO CO~-rRACTOR Al"l> 
COMPLETION 

14.01 Schedllle ojVollies 

A. The Schedule of Values established as provided in 
Paragraph 2.07.A will serve as the basis for pro~ess payments 
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and will be incorporated into a fonn of Application for 
Payment acceptable to Engineer. Progress payments on 
account of Unit Price Work will be based on the number of 
"twits completed. 

14.02 Progress Payments 

A Applications for Payments 

1. At least 20 days before the date established in the 
Agreement for each progress payment (but not more often 
than once a month), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for 
review an Application for Payment filled out and signed by 
Contractor covering the Work completed as of the date of the 
Application and accompanied by such supporting 
documentation as is required by the Contract Documents. If 
payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment 
not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored 
at the Site or at another location agreed to in writing, the 
Application for Payment shall also be accompanied by a bill 
of sale, invoice. or other docrmlentation \\'lUTanting that 
Ovmer has received the materials and equipment free and clear 
of all Liens and evidence that the materials and equipment are 
covered by appropriate property insm'ance or other anange­
ments to protect Owner's interest therein, all of which must be 
satisfactory to Owner. 

2. Beginning with the second Application for 
Payment, each Application shall include an affidavit of 
Contractor stating that all previous progress paymenls 
received on accolwt of the Work have been appliedQ'Il accOlwt 
to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations associated 
with pIlor Applications for Payment. 

3. The amount of retainage with respect toplOgress 
payments will be as stipulated in the Agreement. 

B. Review ofApplications 

1. Engineer will, within 10 days after receipt of each 
Application for Payment. either •.. indicate writing a 
reconuoendation of payment and p~esent the Application to 
Oviner or return the Application to'Contractor indicating in 
writing Engineer' s reasons· fOl';renlsing to reconuoend 
payment. In the latter case. Contractor may make the 
necessary conections and resubmit the Application. 

2. Engineer's recommendation of any payment 
requested in an Application for Payment \\ill constitute a 
representation by EUl;!ineer to Owner, based on Engineer's 
observations on the Site of the executed Work as an 
experienced and qualified design professional and on 
Engineer's review of the Application for Payment and the 
accompnnying data and schedules. that to the best of 
Enginet:!"s knowledge, infOlTIlatiOll and belief: 

a. the Work has progressed to the point indicated: 

b. the quality of the Work is generally in accordance 
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with the Contract Docunlents (subject to an 
evaluation of the Work as a fimctioning whole prior 
to or upon Substantial Completion. to the results of 
any subsequent tests called for in the Contract 
Documents. to a final determination of quantities and 
classifications for Unit Price Work under Paragraph 
9.07. and to any other qualifications stated in the 
recommendation): and 

c. the conditions precedent to Contractor'" being 
entitled to such payment appear to have been fhlfiUed 
in so far as it is Engineer's responsibility to obl>e1':e 
the Work. 

3. By recommendiug rmy such payment Engilleer will 
not thereby be deemed to have i>::prese.nted that: 

a. inspections n:u!dc to check the quality or the 
quantity of Work as it has been perfonned have 
been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of the 
Work in progress. or involved detailed inspections of 
ihe Work beyond the responsibilities specifically 
assigned to Engiheer in the Contract Docmnents: or 

li tllat there may not be other matters or issues 
behveen the pal1ies that might entitle Contractor to be 
paid additionally by O\\ner or entitle Owner to 
withhold payment to Contractor. 

4. Neither Engineer's review of Contractor's Work 
for the ptnposes of reconmlending payments nor Engineer's 
recommendation of any payment, including final payment. 
will inlpose responsibility on Engineer: 

a. to supervise, direct or control the Work. or 

b, for the means, methods. techniques, sequences. or 
procedures of constmction. or tlle safety precautions 
and programs incident thereto, or 

c. for Contractor's failure to comply with Laws and 
Regulations applicable to Contractor's perfonnance 
of the Work, or 

d. to make any examination to ascertain how or for 
what ptuposes Contractor has used the moneys paid 
on account of the Contract Price. or 

e. to determine that title to any of the Work, mate­
rials, or equipment has passed to Owner free and 
clear of any Liens. 

5. Engineer may refuse to recommend the whole or 
any pat1 of any payment if, in Engineer's opinion, it would be 
incorrect to make the representations to Owner stated in 
Paragraph 14.02.B.2. Engineer may also refuse to recommend 
any such payment or, because of subsequently discovered 
evidence or the results of subsequent inspections or tests. 
revise or revoke any such payment recommendation 
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previously made, to such extent as may be necessary in 
Engineer's opinion to protect Ovmer from loss because: 

a. the Work is defective, or completed Work has been 
damaged, requiring correction or replacement 

b. the Contract Price has been reduced by Change 
Orders: 

c. Owner bas been required to correct defective Work 
or complete Work in accordance '\Vith Paragraph 
13.09; or 

d. Engineer has acnml knowledge of the OCClUTence 
of any of the events enumerated in Paragraph 
15.02.A 

C. Payment Becomes Due 

1. Ten days after presentation of the Application for 
Payment to Owner with Engineer's recommendation. the 
amount recommended v.ill (subject to the provisions of 
Paragraph 14.02.D) become due, and when due will be paid by 
Ovmer to Contractor. 

D. Reduction in Payment 

1. Owner may refuse to make payment of the full 
amount recommended by Engineer because: 

a. claims have been made against Owner on accowlt 
of Contractor's performance or furni~lllng of the 
Work: .. 

b.liens have been filed in connection v.ith the Work, 
except where Contractor has delivered a specific 
bond satisfactory to Owner to secure the satisfaction 
and discharge of such Liens; 

c. there are other items entitling O\\'ller to a set-off 
against the amount reconunended; or 

d. Owner has actual knowledge of the occmrence of 
any the events ;'enum;rated in Paragraphs 
14.02.B.5.a through 14.02.B.5.c or Paragraph 
15.tl1.A 

;2. If 0}\ller refuses to make payment of the full 
amount recommended .by Engineer, Owner v.ill give 
ContractoJ immediate written notice (with a copy to Engineer) 
stating the rj;!asons tor SUcll action and promptly pay 
Contractor anY'<lmOlmt remaining after deduction of the 
amount so withheld. Owner shall promptly pay Contractor the 
amount. so withheld, or any adjusnnent thereto agreed to by 
Ovmerand Contractor, when Contractor corrects to Ov.'ller's 
satisfaction the reasons for such action. 

3. If it is subsequently deternlined that Owner's 
refhsal of payment 'WllS not justified, the amOlmt wrongfully 

f 
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withheld shall be treated as an amOlmt due as deternlined by 
Paragraph 14.02.C.1. 

\ 
14.03 Contractor's Warranty oJTifle l 

A. Contractor warrants and guarantees tImt title to all 
Work, materials. and equipment covered by any Application l 
for Payment, whether incorporated in ilie Project or 110t, will 
pass to Ov.'ller no later than the time of payment free and clear 
of all Liens. I

i
14.04 Substantial Completion i 

A. When Contractor considers ilie entire Work ready 
for its intended use Contractor s1mH notify Owner and 
Engineer in v.riting iliat the entire WorK is substantially 
complete (except for items specifically listed by Contractor as 
incomplete) and (hilt Engineer issue' a certificate of 
Substantial Compieti01L I 

f 
B. Promptly after Contractor's notification, , Ov.'1ler, 

Contractor. and Engineer shall make an inspection of the 
Work to detennine ilie STatus of completion. If Engineer does 
not consider the Work substantially complete, Engineer will 
notify Contractor in v.Titing giving the reasons therefor. I 

C. IfEngineer considers the Work substantially com­
plete, Engineer v.ill deliver to Ov.'ller a tentative certificate of !Substantial Completion which shall fix the date of Substantial 
Corupletion. There shall be attached to the certificate a 
tentative list of itelllS to be completed or corrected before final 
payment. Owner shall have seven days after receipt of the I 

I.tentative certificate during which to make written objection to 
Engineer as to any provisions of the certificate or attached list. 
If, after considering such objections, Engineer concludes that 
the Work is not substantially complete, Engineer will v.lthill 
14 days after submission of the tentative certificate to Owner 
notify Contractor in wliting, stating the reasons therefor. If. 
after consideration of Owner's objections, Engineer considers 
tlle Work substantially complete. Engineer will within said 14 i 
days execute and deliver to Owner and Contractor a definitive 
certificate of Substantial Completion (with a revised tentative t 
list of item'> to be completed or cOlrected) reflecting such 
changes from tlle tentative certificate as Engineer believes Ijustified after consideration of any objections from O\\,'ller. i 

t 
D. At the time of delivery of the tentative certificate l 

t,of Substantial Completion. Engineer will deliver to Owner and fContractor a written reconmlendation as to division of 
~ responsibilities pending final payment between Owner and i

Contractor "lhith respect to security. operation. safety. and ~ 

protection of the Work. maintenance, heat utilities, insurance. I 
and warranties and guarantees. Unless Owner and Contractor ~ agree otherwise in writing and so infonn Engineer in writing 
prior to Engineer's issuing ilie definitive certificate of l' 

~. 

Substantial Completion, Engineer's aforesaid recommendation t
will be binding on O\\'1ler and Contractor until final payment. f 

j 

~ 
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E. Owner shall have the right to exclude Contractor 
from the Site after the date of Substantial Completion subject 
to allov/ing Contractor reasonable access to complete or 
correct items on the tentative list. 

14.05 Partial Utili=atioll 

A. Prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work, 
Owner may use or occupy any substantially completed part of 
the Work which has specifically been identified in the 
Contract Documents, or which Owner, Engineer, and 
Contractor agree constitutes a separately functioning and 
usable part of the Work that can be used by Owner for its 
intended pru:pose without significant interference with 
Contractor's perfonnance of the remainder of the Work, 
subject to the following conditions. 

I. Owner at any time may request Contractor in 
\\TIting to permit Ovvller to use or occupy any such part of the 
Work which O\\ller believes to be ready for its intended use 
and substantially complete. If and when Contractor agrees that 
such part of the Work is substantially complete, Contractor 
will certify to O\\'ller and Engineer that such part of the Work 
is substantially complete and request Engineer to issue a 
certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work. 

2. Contractor at any time may notify Owner and 
Engineer in \\Titiog that Contractor considers any such part of 
the Work ready for its intended use and substantially complele 
and request Engineer to issue a certificate of Substantial 
Completion for that part of the Work. 

3. Within a reasonable time after eithersuch request 
O\\'ller, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an inspection of 
that part of the Work to determine its statns of completion. If 
Engineer does not consider that part of the WorkJo be sub­
stantially complete, Engineer ""jll notifyOvmer and 
Contractor in \\-Titing giving the reasons therefor.)f Engineer 
considers that part of the Work fO be substantially complete. 
the provisions of Paragraph 14.04 will apply with respect to 
certification of Snbstantial Completion of that part of the 
Work and the division of responsibility in respect thereof and 
access thereto. 

4. No use or occupancy or separate operation ofpatt 
of the Work may occur prior to compliance with the 
requirement:. of Paf~lg.raph 5.10 regarding property insurance. 

14.06 Final Inspection 

A. l...Tpon \\Tinen notice from Contractor that the 
eufire\Vork or an agreed portion thereof is complete. Engineer 
will promptly make a final inspection \\;th O\\'ller and 
Contractor and will notify Contractor in writing of all particu­
lars in 'NIDch this inspection reveals that the Work is 
incomplete or defective. Contractor shall immediately take 
such measures as are necessary to complete such Work or 
remedy such deficiencies. 
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14.07 Final Payment 

A. Application for Payment 

I. After Contractor bas, in the opinion of Engineer, 
satisfactorily completed all corrections identified during the 
final inspection and has delivered.. in accordance \vith the 
Contract Documents, all lnaintenance and operating 
instmctions, schedules, guarantees. bonds, certificates or other 
e"idence of insurance certificates of illspecli,Jn. marked-up 
record doClUnents (as provided in Paragraph 6.12), and <)ther 
dOCluuents. Contractor may make application for f,rA 
payment follo\\ing the procedure for progress payments. 

2. Tbe final Application for Payment shall be accom­
panied (except as previollsly dellY'i!red) by 

a. all docume:nlil!inn caHed fur in the Contract Docu­
ments. including but Hot to the e"idence of 
insumnce required by Paragraph 5.04.B.7: 

f). consent of surely. if any, to final payment; 

a list of all Claims against O\\'ller that Contractor 
believes are llll:d.!ttled: and 

d. complete and legally effective releases or waivers 
(satisfactory to O\\'ller) of all Lien rights arising out 
ofor Liens filed in connection with the Work. 

3. In lieu of the releases or waivers of Liens specified 
in Pat'agraph 14.07.A.2 and as approved by O\\-ller, Contractor 
may furnish receipts or releases in full and an affidavit of 
Contractor that: (i) the releases and receipts include all labor. 
services. material. and equipment for which a Lien could be 
filed: and (ii) all payrolls, matelial and equipment bills. and 
other indebtedness connected with the Work for which Owner 
or Owner's property might in any way be responsible have 
been paid or otheT\\ise satisfied. If any Subcontractor or 
Supplier fails to furnish such a release or receipt in full. 
Contractor may furnish a bond or other collateral satisfactOlY 
to O\\'Oer to indemnify Owner against any Lien. 

B. Engineer's Review of Application and Acceptance 

1. If. on the basis of Engineer's observation of the 
Work during construction and final inspection, and Engineer's 
review of the final Application for Payment and 
accompanying documentation as required by the Contract 
Documents, Engineer is satisfied that the Work has been 
completed and Contractor's other obligations under the COll­
tract Docwnents have been fulfilled, Engineer wilL within ten 
days after receipt of the fmal Application for Payment. 
i.ndicate in \liliting Engineer's recommendation of payment 
and present the Application for Pa}ll1ent to O\\'ller for pay­
ment. At the same time Engineer will also give \\-TItten notice 
to O\\11er and Contractor tlmt the Work is acceptable subject 
to the provisions ofParagraph 14.09. Othet'\\ise, Engineer will 
retwll the Application for Payment to Contractor. indicating in 
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",riting the reasons for refusing to recommend final payment, 

in which case Contractor shall make the necessary corrections 

and resubmit the Application for Payment. 


C. Payment Becomes Due 

1. Thirty days after the presentation to Owner of the 
Application for Payment and accompanying documentation. 
the amotmt recommended by Engineer, less any sum Owner is 
entitled to set off against Engineer's recommendation, 
including but not limited to liquidated damages, will become 
due and , will be paid by O\\ner to Contractor. 

14.08 Final Completion Delayed 

A If, through no fault ofContractor, final completion 
of the Work is significantly delayed, and if Engineer so 
confirms, Owner shall, upon receipt of Contractor's frnal 
Application for Payment (for Work fully completed and 
accepted) and reconnnendation of Engineer. and without 
terminating the Contract, make payment ofthe balance due for 
that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the 
remaining balance to be held by O.....ner for Work not fully 
completed or corrected is less than the retainage stipulated in 
the Agreement, and if bonds have been furnished as required 
in Paragraph 5.01, the "'TItten consent of the surety to the 
payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully 
completed and accepted shall be submitted by Contractor to 
Engineer with the Application for such payment. Sti.c:h 
payment shall be made under the terms and conditions 
governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a 
waiver ofClaims. 

14.09 Wall'er o/Claims 

A The making and acceptance of final payment will 
constitute: . 

L a waiver of all ..Claims Owner against 
Contractor. except Claims arising from unsettled Li\ills, from 
defective Work appearing after final inspection pursuant to 
Paragraph 14.06, front::iailure to comply with the Contract 
DoclUllents or the terms' of any special guarantees specified 
there~ or fron~Contractor's continuing obligations under the 
Contract Documents: and 

2. a ;,yaiver of all Claims by Contractor against 
Ov.nerQther thall those pre,'iously made in accordance with 
the requirements herein and expressly acknowledged by 
/)"'llef in ',,,Tiring as still unsettled. 

ARTICLE 15 - SUSPENSION OF WORK Al.~ 

TERvnNATION 

15.01 Owner May Suspend Work 

f 
I

2013-OO3-ENG 
A. At any time and 'without cause, Owner may t 

suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a period of not F. 

!more than 90 consecutive days by notice in "'riting to i 
~Contractor and Engineer which will fix the date on which 

Work will be resumed. Contractor shall resume the Work on t 
~ 

the date so fixed. Contractor shall be granted an adjustment in t 
the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract "rimes, or Iboth, directly attributable to any such suspension if Contractor 
makes a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05 J 

I 
15.02 Owner May Tenllinatejor Cause r 

j 

I 
IA. The occurrence of anyone or more of the 

follo\\'ing events will justify tennina1ion for cause: 

1. Contractor's persislt.'1tt failure perform the Work 
in accordance with the Contract Documents (including, but not 
limited to, failure t(~ sufficient skilled workers or 
suitable materials or equipment or· f~lure to adhere to the 
Progress Schedule estahlished tmder Paragraph 2.07 as I 
adjusted frDm time fj) time pursuant to Paragraph 6.04); 

I 
r 

2. Contractor'!,} disregard of Laws or Regulations of 
any public body having jurisdiction: 

3. Contr.JCior's disregard of the authOlity of JEngineer; or 

4. Contractor's violation in any substantial way of i 
any-provisions ofthe Contract Documents. f 

t 
B. If one or more of the events identified in IParagraph 15.02.A OCClU', Owner may, after giving Contractor i 

(and surety ) seveu days "'TItlen notice of its intent to 1,
terminate the services ofContractor: 

i 
~ 

1. exclude Contractor from the Site. and take 
possession of the Work and of all Contractor's tools, l r 
appliances. construction equipment, and machinery at the Site. 
and use the same to the frill extent they could be used by j
Contractor (without liability to Conb'actor for trespass or I: 
conversion). I 

i
2. incorporate in the Work all materials and tequipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid f 

Contractor but which are stored elsewhere. and ~ 
t 
~ 

3. complete the Work as O\\ner may deem expedient. 
f 

, ~ 

f 
C. If O"'ller proceeds as provided in Paragraph ~, 

lS.02.B. Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further ~ 

payment tmtil the Work is completed. If the unpaid balance of 
the Contract Price exceeds all claims, costs, losses. and t 

f 

daInages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of ,t 
engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all " Icourt or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) sustained , 
by O\\ner arising out of or relating to completing the Work. f-
such excess will be paid to Contractor. If such claims, costs, ~ 
losses, and damages exceed such unpaid balance, Contractor 

EJCDC C-700 Standard <ri'neral Conditions ofthe Construction Contract. 

Copyrigbt @ 2002l1'ational Sotiety or Proressional.EDgineers ror nCDe. All ligbts resen·ed. 


00700-38 




FOOT SCRAP: Osteen Road (CR 359B) WideninglResurfacing 

shall pay the difference to Owner. Such claims, costs, losses, 
and damages incurred by O\\'ller will be reviewed by Engineer 
as to their reasonableness and, when so approved by Engineer, 
incorporated in a Change Order. When exercising any rights 
or remedies under this Paragraph Owner shall not be required 
to obtain the lowest price for the Work performed. 

D. Notwithstanding Paragraphs I5.02.B and 15.02.C, 
Contractor's services will not be temlinated if Contractor 
begins within seven days of receipt of notice of intent to 
temlinate to correct its :fuilure to perfonn and proceeds 
diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of 
receipt of said notice. 

£. Where Contractor's services have been so 
terminated by O\\l1er, the termination will not affect any rights 
or remedies of Owner against Contractor then existing or 
which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or payment of 
moneys due Contractor by O\\'ller will not release Contractor 
from liability. 

F. If and to the extent that Contractor has provided a 
peliormance bond under the provisions of Paragraph S.01.A 
the temlination procedures of that bond shall supersede the 
provisions of Paragraphs I5.02.B, and 15.02.e. 

15.03 Oll71er May Tenninate For COllvenience 

A Upon seven days 'hTitten notice to Contractor Llnd 
Engineer, O\\l1er may, without cause and without prejudice to 
any other right or remedy of Owner, terminate the Cpntract. In 
sllch case, Contractor shall be paid for (without duplication of 
any items): . 

1. completed and acceptable Work ex:e~uted in 
accordance with the Contract Documents prior to....the effective 
date of ternlination,. including fhlr.nnd rea<;onable SunlS for 
overhead and profit on such Work; 

2. expenses sustained ptior to the effective date of 
termination in performing services and fumishing labor. 
lnaterials, or equipnlent as re(j\lired by the Contract 
Documents in co~ectioll ";1th lUlcompleted Work, plus fair 
and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such 
expellSes; 

3. :lU clailw., costs, losses. and damages (including 
but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers. architects. 
attorneys. and oth~rprofessionals and all court or arbitration 
or other dispute r~iution costs) incw:red in settlement of 
terminated contracts with Subcontractors, Suppliers. and 
others: 'and 

4. reasonable expenses directly attributable to 
termination. 

B. Contractor shall not be paid on account of loss of 
anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss atising 
out of or resulting from such temlination. 

2013-OO3-ENG 

15.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Tenninate 

A. If. through no act or fault of Contractor, (i) the 
Work is suspended for more than 90 cousecutive days by 
O\\l1er or under an order of court or other public authority. or 
(n) Engineer fails to act on any Application for Payment 
within 30 days after it is submitted. or (iii) Ovmer fail.. for 30 
days to pay Contractor any sum finally detennined to be due. 
then Contractor may. upon seven days 'hTittC'.lllotlCl!' to O'hl1er 
and Engineer, and provided Owner or Engineer do not remedy 
such suspension or failure within that time, terminate the 
Contract and recover from O'hl1er payment on the same tenns 
as prO\ided in Paragraph 15.03. 

B. In lieu of terminati1lg the Contrac. and without 
prejudice to any other right or remedy, if Engineer has failed 
to act on an Applicariollfor P;:ryment within 30 days after it is 
submitted, or O\\,!ler has failed for 30 to pay Contractor 
any sun} finany deteIlllined to be due. Contractor may, seven 
days aftet written notice 10 O\\l1er and Engineer, stop the 
Work until payment is made of all sllch amounts due 
Contraclor, including inlerest thereon. The provisions of this 
Paragraph 15.04 are nof intended to preclude Contractor from 
making a ('1aim under Paragraph 10.05 for an adjustment in 
Contract Price or Contract Times or otherwise for expenses or 
damage directly attributable to Contractor's stopping the Work 
as pennitted by this Paragraph. 

ARTICLE 16 - DISPUfE RESOLlJTION 

16.01 Methods and Procedures 

A. Either O'hl1er or Contractor may request 
mediation of any Claim submitted to Engineer for a decision 
lUlder Paragraph 10.0S before such decision becomes final and 
binding. The mediation will be govemed by the Construction 
Indusuy Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration 
Association in effect as of the Effective Date of the 
Agreement. The request for mediation shall be submitted in 
writing to the American Arbitration Association and the otller 
party to the Contract. Timely submission of the request shall 
stay the effect of Paragraph 10.0S.£' 

B. Ovmer and Contractor shall participate in the 
mediation process in good faith. The process shall be 
concluded within 60 days of filing of the request. The date of 
termination of the mediation shall be detennined by 
application of the mediation I1Iles referenced above. 

C. If the Claim is not resolved by mediation. 
Engineer's action lmder Paragraph 1O.05.C or a denial 
pursnant to Paragraphs 1O.05.C.3 or 10.05.D shall become 
final and binding 30 days after temlination of the mediation 
unless, within that time period. O\\'l1er or Contractor: 

1. elects in 'hTiting to invoke any dis,E.ute resolution 
EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction ContIlIct. 
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process provided for in the Supplementary Conditions, or 

2. agrees with the other party to submit the Claim to 
another dispute resolution process, or 

3. gives written notice to.. t.be other party of their 
intent to submit the Claim to a court of competent jurisdiction. 

ARTICLE 17 - MISCELLANEOUS 

17.01 Grt"ing Notice 

A Whenever any prOVisiOn of the Contract 
Documents requires the giving of ",Titten notice, it will be 
deemed to have been validly given if: 

1. delivered in person to the individual or to a 
member of the finn or to an officer of the corporation for 
whom it is intended. or 

2. delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail, 
postage prepaid. to the last business address known to the 
giver of the notice. 

17.02 Computation ojTimes 

A When any period of time is referred to in 111e 
Contract Documents by days, it will be computed to exclude 
the first and include the last day of such period. If the last day 
of any such period falls on a Saturday or Sunday or on a: day 
made a legal holiday by the law of the applicabk jurisdiction. 
such day will be omitted from the computation. 

17.03 Cumulatil'e Remedies 

A. TIle duties and obligations imposed by t~lese 
General Conditions and the rigjlts aUG remedie" l'\\'ailable 
hereunder to the parties hereto arein addition to, and are not to 
be consbued in any way as a limitation ot~ any rigjlts and 
remedies available to an;)' or all of them which are otherwise 
imposed or available 1)y I..a'l;VS or Regulations, by special 
warranty or guarantee, or by ot1l:er pro,isions of the Contract 
Doc1l1nents. The provil'ions of this Paragraph will be as 
effective as if repeated :;pecifically in the Contract Documents 
in connection 'with each particular duty, obligation.. right, and 
remectf to whicIlthey apply .. 

.17.04 SUM'imlojObllgations 

A. All representations, indemnifications, warranties. 
and guarantees made in, required by, or given in accordance 
with tbe Contract Documents. as well as all continuing 
obligations indicated in the Contract Documents, will survive 
final payment completion.. and acceptance of the Work or 
termination or completion of the Contract or termination of the 
services ofContractor. 

~ 
2013-OO3-ENG l 

17.05 Controlling Law l 

I 
I 

A. This Contract is to be governed by the law of the 
state in which the Project is located. 

17.06 Headings 

A. Article and paragraph headings are inserted for t 
convenience only and do not constitute parts. of these ('Jenera! ! 
Conditions. i 

l 

i 

I 
~ 

I 

t 

I 

I 

I 

! 

J r 

J 
~. 
r 
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~ 
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r 

! 
fEJCDC C-700 Standard ~neral Conditions oUhe Construction Contract. 
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Supplementary Conditions 

These Supplementary Conditions amend or supplement the Standard General Conditions of the Constmction 
Contract (No. C-700, 2002 Edition) and other provisions of the Contract Documents as indicated below. All 
provisions which are not so amended or supplemented remain in full force and effect. 

The telms used in these Supplementary Conditions have the meanings stated in the General Conditions. 
Additional tenns used in these Supplementary Conditions have the meanings stated below, which are appiicable 
to both the singular and plural thereof. 

SC-2.02 	 Delete Paragraph 2.02.A in its entirety and insert the following: 

A. 	 (hvner shall fumish to Contractor up to three printed or hard copi€s of Drmi'ings and 
Project Manual. Additional copies will befumished upon request at the cost ofreprod1lction. 

SC-4.06 	 Delete Pal'agraphs 4.06.A and 4.06.B in their entirety and Insert the following: 

A. 	 No reports on drawings related to Hazardous Environmental ConditiONS are k7lOwn to Olvner or 
Engineer. 

B. 	 Not Used. 

SC-S.04 	 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph S.04.B: 

c 	 The limits ofliability for the insurance required by Paragraph 5.04 ofthe General Conditions 
shall provide coverage for 11M less than the foliowing amounts or greater lvhere required by 
Laws and Regulations: 

1. 	 Workers' Compensation, and related coverages under Paragraphs 5.04.A.1 and A.2 ofthe 
General Conditions: 

a. State Statllt01J' 
b. Applicable Federal Longshoreman's) Statutory 
c. Employer's Liability $100,000 

2. 	 Contractor's General Liability under Paragraphs 5.04.A.3 through A.6 of the General 
Conditions shall include completed operations and product liability coverages and 
eliminate the e.r:clusion with respect to property under the care, custod,Y and control of 
Contractor: 

a. 	 Ge11eral Aggregate $1,000,000 
b. 	 Products - Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 
c. 	 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
d. 	 Each OCClI1TenCe (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) $1,000,000 
e. 	 Property Damage liability insurance lldll provide Explosion, Collapse, and Under­

ground coverages lvhere applicable. 
f 	 E'Ccess or Umbrella Liability 

1) General Aggregate $1,000,000 
2) Each OCCU17'ence $1,000,000 

Supplementary Conditions - 1 
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3. 


5.04.B.l. 

Automobile Liability under Paragraph 5. 04.A. 6 ofthe General Conditions: 

~' 

f,2013-OO3-ENG 
\ 

f 
a. 	 Bodi~V Injury: 

1) Each person 
2) Each Accident 

b. 	 Property Damage: 
1) Each Accidellt 

c. 	 Combined Single Limit of 

$1,000,000 I 
I$1,000,000 

$ 500,000 
$1,000,000 I 

~ 
4. The Contractual Liability coverage required by Paragraph 5.04.B.4 ofthe General Conditions 

shall provide coverage for 110t less than the follOWing amounts: 

a. 	 Bodi~V Injury: 
1) Each Accident 
2) Annual Aggregate 

b. 	 Property Damage: 
1) Each ACCident 
2) Annual Aggregate 

Additional Insureds: 

Taylor County Board o/County Commissioners 

SC-6.06 Add a new paragraph immediately after Patagraph 6.06.G: 

l 
t 

$1,000,000 f$1,000..000 

I 
$1,000,000 !

tSl, 000, 000 1 
i 
l 

t 

t 
f 

H. 	 The Contractor sllOll not award 'tfork w)llLed at more than fifty (50%) percent ofthe Contract 
Price to Sl/bcontractor(~'}, without prior vpritten approval ofthe Owner. I 

SC-6.10 Add a new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 6.10.A: 	 f 
! 

I 
~. 

B. 	 O,\-71er is ~~~mptfi;a,(JI pay~ne1lt l"1lsales and compensating use taxes ofthe State ofFlorida and 
ofcities and counties thereofOll all materials to be incorporated i11to the Work which are Direct 
Purchased by ()wner. 

1. Owner u'illfunlish the required certificates oftax exemption to Contractor for lise ill the 
purchase ofbin~ci Purchased supplies and materials to be incorporated f1lto the Work. I 
2. Owner's e.xemption does not app1-v to supplies, materials, or construction tools, I 
machinery, equipme11f, or other property purchased by or leased by Contractor, or to supplies or 
mate~ials 110t inc01porated into the Work. I 

.•SC-6.;~3 	 [ 
,t' 

Permits secllred from the County, City, Florida Department of Transportation, Florida Departme11f ofHealth, 
JSuwai£l1ee River Water Management District, Anny Corp of Engineers or the Florida Department of ~ 

Environrne111al Protection and specific requirements shall be strict~v adhered fO, including all requirements for 
~ 
~ 
!'the protection ofwetlands and Manatees, ifapplicable. 

Supplementary Conditions - 2 
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SC-9.03.A. Add the following language at the end of paragraph 9.03.A: 

1. 	 TIle County will provide Project Representative services for this project. All work pelfonlled for 
Ihis project shall be inspected by an authori=ed representative of the Board of County 
Commissioners of Taylor County on a five day, 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Afonday through Friday 
work lveek, excluding County-designated llOlida:vs. Ifweekend work becomes necessary, it must be 
authori=ed by the County's representative at least three days prior to scheduling ofsuch work. 

a. 	 The authori=ed representative shall be given no less than 24 hours prior Horice of the expected 
time and date ofpertinent aspects ofthis project to include, but not be limited to, concrete ponTs, 
material deliveries, lane closures etc. 

b. 	 The folloWing individuals, in the listed order, will be the responsible agr1lf(s) jor the Ctnmty: 

Dustin Hinkel, COllnty Administrator 

Andy McLeod, Public Works Division Director 

Kenneth Dudley, County Engineer 


SC-14.02.A.3 Add the following language at the end of paragraph 14.02.A.3: 

No payments will be made that would deplete the retainage, place in escrow any funds that are required 
for retain age, or invest the retainagefor the benefit ofthe Contractor. 

SC-14.02.C.1. Delete Paragraph 14.02.C.l in its entirety and insert the following in its place: 

1. 	 TIle Application for Payment with Engineer's recommendations will be presented to the County 
for consideration. If the C9un~rfinds the Application for Payment acceptable, the recommended 
amount less any reductio)'! under tire prOviSions ofParagraph 14.02.D will become due thirty 
days after the AppliCi1fion fm- Payment presented to the County, and the County will make 
payment to the Contractor. 

SC-16 

The venue for all disputes shall be Taylor County, Florida. 

Supplementaty Conditions - 3 
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SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS 


1. 	 The Taylor County Board of County Commissioners is improving Osteen Road (CR 
359B) Imder the teIDls of an FDOT SCRAP Agreement. Such improvements include 
widening and resurfacing an existing approximately 20 ft wide road to a 24 ft wide paved 
roadway by installing limerock widening strips, variable depth limerock overlay_ 
reclaiming the existing asphalt, and resurfacing the roadway_ The project will also 
include reshaping ditches, extending, removing, and installing guardrail and stormwater 
culverts, signage and pavement markings, as more fully detailed in the project plans and 
specifications. All work shall be completed in accordance with "Florida Depal1ment of 
Transportation (FDOT) Roadway and Traffic Design Standards", latest edition or "FDOT 
Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction", latest edition and as 
amended by these specifications or plans. 

2. 	 FDOT MODIFICATIONS - When "FDOT Roadway and Trame Design Standards" or 
"FDOT Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction" refers to FDOT, 
Engineer, Depal1ment, Inspector, these items shall to Taylor COlmty Engineer or 
authorized representative. When "FDOT Roadway and Tranic Design Standards" or 
"FDOT Standru'd Specifications for Road and Bridge Constmctirra" refers to Laboratory 
this item refers to an independent properly licensed. testing lahselected by Contractor 
with approval of County and fully compepliated by Contractor. 

3. 	 FDOT SPECIFICATIONS - When the specifications refer to the State of Florida or 
officials of the State it shall be luterpreted as the COlmty Commissioners or their 
autholized representative. 

4. 	 WARR.!\NTY - The Con-ection Period specified in Paragraph 13.07 of the General 
Conditions is modified require that all workmanship and matelials furnished to 
complete this project·shall be WalTalltedfor no less than a tluee-year peliod after the date 
of fmal acceptance. The Pe:ffoIDlance Bond for this project may be reduced to 75% of 
the contract aJ1}.ount after<>completion of the first year of wan-anty and then further 
reduced to 50%'[or the . 

5. 	 All matetials used shall meet all requirements of the Florida Department of 
Transp0l1ationStandardSpecifications for Road and Blidge Construction, latest edition 
andluethods of construction shall meet all requirements of the Florida Department of 
TransportatiQll Rtmdway and Traffic Design Standards, latest edition. Materials testing 
for this project shall be perfonned by an independent properly licensed testing lab 
selected by the Contractor with approval of the County and compensated by the 
Contractor. Results of required testing shall be fOlwarded and approved prior to covering 
work and prior to acceptance for payment. 

6. 	 Tht,'! Contractor shall be responsible for establishing all lines and grades together with all 
reference points as required by the valious trades for all work Imder this Contract. All 
required layout shall be done using competent and experienced persOlmel lmder the 
sllpelvision of a Land Smveyor registered in the State of Florida at the Contractor's 
expense. Control points established by the Owner and disturbed by the Contractor will 
be replaced by the Contractor at his expense. Survey monuments or markers which will 
be removed by construction shall be properly referenced to the right-of-way line plioI' to 
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~ 
f 

removaL Reference points shall be installed and documentation provided to the County [ 
upon project completion. r" 

f 
7. 	 Once each phase of this project begins, the Contractor shall maintain asphalt application l' 

~efforts at one location at a time. Taylor COUllty shall provide one (1) authorized 	 t 
v.representative to be on site dtuing asphalt application. All material tickets shall be tpresented to this representative at time of delivelY and indicate required information 	 f 

(FDOT #, Tonnage, Temp, etc.). 	
;;: 
~ 
~ 

8. 	 Material Testing and Sampling shall be completed as required by the FDOT Standard f 
Specifications, these Supplemental Specifications and the Construction Plans. Additional ~ 
random material samples shall be collected and tests run at the discretion of Taylor I 
COUllty'S authorized representative as part of the mandatory testing requirements. All 

~ 

asphalt testing shall be based on a 2,000 ton Lot size. I 
9. 	 Unless othetwise authorized, regulate paving machine speed to 110 more 70 feet-per­

minute to obtain smooth, continuous stuface free of pulIs mId tears in asphalt -paving mat. I 
10. 	 Offset longitudinal joints in successive asphalt courses a mirumum 4 inches. Offset 

lateral joints in asphalt courses a minimum of24 inches. ![, 
11. 	 LThffiROCK BASE: There shall be no adjustment or extra payment for additional width ! 

~ 

for thickness ofbase material. 

I 
i 

12. 	 PRTh1E COAT: A prime coat shall be applied to the fmished base comse prior to the 
application of asphalt courses at the nlte,of o.lp gallon per square yard per asphalt course 
application. AEP is the prefened Primelllatenal. Use of EPR-1 will be pennitted as a 
Prime Coat with submission of a FDOT pretest certification and when diluted at no less 

~-

than a 3:1 water ratio and applied a1'0.2-O.25 gal/sy. Unless othetwise authorized, tNTSS-lhm, Trackless Tack, will not bcpennitted as a prime material. Prime coat shall 
include an approved cover material and be allowed to cure a minimum of24 hours before 
pavmg commences. 

13. 	 SEEDING~ 1r~9HL'lG {Performance Tmf}: Pennanent seed shall be (Bennuda @ 
80 Ib/acre),tempot1;uy seed (Rye {October - March} or Brown Top 1v1illet {April ~ I 
September} @ 20 lb/acre) mixture and placement. Seed shall comply with Section 981 ~ 
and be placed consistent with Section 570, mOT Specifications, latest edition. 

14. 	 SODDING'{PerfOlmance Turf (SOD)}: Roadway Sod shall be rolled Bennuda.< I
Remaining areas may be pallet sod. Sod shall comply with Section 981 and be placed 
consIstent with Section 570, FDOT Specifications, latest edition. Sod may be required to f 
match adjacent type in and aroUlld residential properties. f 

15. 	 Unless noted othetwise, roadway improvements shall include providing & installing J 
O}'l2V at each approach side of all cross-drains throughout the projects limits. 

16. 	 Ihlless noted othenvise, all D3 Street name signage shall use a 9 inch high sign with 6 
inch uppercase and 4 inch lower case lettering. Public Street names shall be placed on a . 
green sign with white lettering and border. Private Streets shall use a blue background 
sign with white letteling and border. 

17. 	 CONCRETE: Unless noted othelwise, all concrete shall use one of the Ctuing materials 
consistent with Section 925, FDOT Specifications, latest edition. 

t 
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SURlIEY AND 
OF CONSTRUC TION VAl?IES (+/- 50 FT) 
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J: I 8£ YOIK; 18 n 	 ;: ~ ::I I

lIG '"Q TH "A' 

! 	0 to.~ I ~il 
~ :!) (50-. - 0 - 10k. 	 I:) v .. ;I 

a:i 	 t ~ITYPICAL SECTION NOTES 	 TYPICAL ~ ;........=...;;;;..;Co...;.=
.. Y 8EC 1i'" ~ 	~~ 
SiJPERP~ >£ ASPHAL nc CONCRf:Tf SHALL BE PLACED WITH A 

IJfCHANICAL SPRfAD£:FI EOIJIPPf O AHO USING a f C rRO.~IC 
 ~ ~ 8 ~ilTRANSY£RSC /VIO AUTOMA 71C LONG WDNAL SCJ?££() CON TFiO/.. 


AI/ABLE DEP TH U/JER" b >£RLA Y KITH 
 5 ~ 111$(·
2. 	 COUPAC 71ON OF ALL MA TfRIAL5 SHALL BE U"'I TfO Te TATiC . 'rPE SP-12.5 { TRAFFIC CJ \ 1.50 in A VGjSyj u ~ IL 

QNt ~ UNLESS OlHf Fl"MS( OI~CTfO 8'1' [ N(;INff"'- TIl. CooRSE IC- 12.5 , TRAFFIC C) (1.50 In AVCjSYj (PG 76-22) iii: C( oMl~ 
00 s-,
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.ONAL BA SC CROUP " WI TH 

4. 	 INSTALL OPTiONAL BAS[ CROUP , - ?ENING TO 25 n V WID TH ' - 12 .5 (TRAFFIC C) [,.50 .. AVGjSr} 
tier/ON F"C - I2. ' (TRAFFIC C) 1. -'0 in AVGISY) (pC 75 - 22) Se

5. 	 PL ACE U/,I[ROCK Oo,£RLA v 1tGU. O'IfR fXl. 'C ROAD 
IIIVTH. !.IIX EInS TlNG A·~ ROAD ..A ). ,(OCI( 0>£, r AND 

DBC 1,' Wlf)€IIIINC ,.., PROPOSfO RO_ < KlDr.'! PbAN. QPiIO!!/AL iJd 5LGRQUP Ii PERMI TJIQ ~ 
 ~ 

..;.r.;.v YEAR L • ~ 203:1 AADT e 1.347 OR SCREENiNGS. AiLOW PRIM[ TO CURE 24 HR BEFORf: PLACING AsPHAL r COIII?SES. 
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9. 	 INSTALL PERFORMANC[ TURF" THROUCHOUi PROJ£CT. ALL DISTURBED AREAS EXCEPT ROADWAY SOD srl?1P. 

L "" HOUR r . N/A 	 ~ 
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po. "\.sPrrO - J3. 55 MPH II . INS TALL PfRFORMANCf IVI'II'. SOO A/)JACfNT OT ROADWAl': 
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1111 U . 8 
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01 
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4. 	 CONSTRUCT OSC " WlODIINC TO PROVlOf 2fJ f7 MINIMUM WIDTH. 

CJJf?I" .)1 . 1,000 5. PL"CC U MEROCJ( OVfRLAY (VARIABL[ DEP TH) AND MIX rou ROAO WAY 'MO m AT A 10 in MiN/IIV)' Df:PTH. 
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fNlJCx HQ " &50. rttJ51 A."'iO rlM5. 

to 	 REMOVAJ.. AN!) AsstMtiLY WCLutK5 ...U. stf¥\£~NrAL ~!wcLS. 

n 	 1Hf: CONF1I~~!iIW..t. NOW"r 1HI: DltiMCCR ¥If0 !otE fMS" CQ.AL1J]) ST()(;.'IIFUI(; n.t: 1I'OAD...... 1" ~ 1J.I4T A.~ TO 8( 
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12. 	 CON J'RA(:t"Cl4 SHAiL I'ItOWO£ S"'-K:f' GfIi.... . m 01" o-!CIIlIC ANI) IJiIl£C~ 5)iGN.1itCl FUR _t'7!.N ,A.PPIIi/C\I'.AL NO Ll'SS (H.4-V 

fJIO (2) OArs PJIiCIf 10 OAre or "~Ila'l .rtrC'fI141Y,SHAU« fW:1.1) ~ 't ct:NT1lACTOII JtNlJ lJOClhIf.·HrrD IN 
Pfi'C.."IJtCC or CNQNtDlINC ~~ 0If 0'IWD'3 ~~""\fl. 
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rJPI'£1Ie.<!iC _ 	 , - ' '''''''''''!iC trrTCIIfNG. 
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PERhiA NENT II\?RK ZONE SlCN"GE $~'ALL BE IN PL"CE BEFOI/£ CONTRACTOR lI08l1. llES AND BEFORE ANY WORK ASSOCIA ~O fI171-1 TJ.jIS 

PRO.£CT I.IA Y BEGIN. 


2 	 NO LANE CLOSURE IWLL 8£ AlLOII£V BE~<:N THE HOIJRS Of" 5: 30 AM AN{) 8: JO AM F"ROM AUGUST THRU hlA Y Wl71-IOUT WRITTEN 
AU THORIZA TION FROM THE PRO£GT ENCiNEER. 

J. 	 CONSTRUCTION OPERA nONS SHALL 8E CONFlNEO TO ONE TRAFFIC (.ANE. lEA VlNG THE ADJACENT LANE CPEN TO TRAFFIC. ALL 
VfJ#CLES, EOUIPMEN1: WORK('RS. (EXCEPT FLAGGfJ?S) AND THEIR ACTIVITIES ARE RES TRICTED AT ALL TIMES TO ONE SiDE OF THE 

PAVCMENT 


4. ARROWS DENOTE DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC ONn AND 00 NOT REFI.£CT PAV[IoI£NT MARKINGS. l
5. 	 lla<K APEA LANE CLOSURES 'lrfrrlfll THE \tORK ZONE 5.'1ALl 8E LIMITED TO A I.IAXIMUI.I OF 1 MILE IN tENGTrl. NO CONSECUTIVE 

L,4,...E Cl.OSUI?ES 'ltfTHIN 2 MILES 

6. SPA CING GUIO£/JNES AND LII./ITS ARE CONSIDERED R£OUIR£M£NTS AND NOT .sv'Gr;£sr:~'1s. NON-COMPU ANCE MAY RESlJL T IN ~ ~ 
SToPPA GE UNTIL CORRECTED A T NO COST TO OM/ER. ADJUSnJENTS OF LONGfTlJDI/o,'AL DI"I£NSJONS TO FIT FIELD CONDmONc """OU1Rf ..,.;: 

PROJECT ENGiN££/? APPROVAL. """ tr 


TRAFFIC SEE FOOT .sPECIFICA nONS 102 do INDEX 60G SERIES. FOR GENERAL TCZ REOUIREMENTS AND l~l.lt
RfFfR TO INDEX /,10 600 SI!RtES. 

TRAFFIC DURING AN EVACUATION NOTICE OF A HURRi CANE OR OTH£R CA - " ~"rs A" 
THE DI.!RAnON OF THE EVACUATION OR <.vENT AS OIREC T£D BY "THE ENGINE£'. RECORD. .~ 

ACC10ENTS, AND OTHER UNFDRI!SEEN D.lalGENGY CONOITIONS MA Y REOUIRE THE . O.£CT ENGlNE£.R ";,L 
I.ANE a.OSUR,ES OR CHANIIEJ..IlA T/ONS SHOWN IN TH£ PLANS TII£ COH TR"CT, SHALl. MAKE TIlE ,\ :SSAR Y w 

"";:: 
'.&./
Q,) 
~ 
;Fi 
':'".i 

~~ 
<~ 
~ 
Cl 

" 
~ 

~ 
:r:: 

~ 

"" ::::, 

" Ci::
Vi 	

~lg 

~ 
'" 

*'" ~ 
}-

~I~ 
~~ 

7. FOR MAINTENANCE OF 
AOOtnONAL INFORUA TlON 

8, ALL LANES MUST 8E OP£N FOR 
SHALL REMAIN oPEN FOR 

9. TRAfT/C COI%mGVS, 
RESTRICT OR R£MO VC 
ADJUSTMEN TS 

10. CON TR,oCTOII SHAL~ 
PAve.t£NT ACCOIIOINC TO INDEx 

11. ADDI TIONAL SIGNS 
INT£!?S£Cno.'V 

12. ONLY' THAT EXCAVATION 
AUOwr::D TO 
BE USED TO 

00' Ql I

~..,.." pfj~ 

~I~ 

AS DlR£CT£D 8 '( THE PROJECT ENGINEER WITHIN .JO MiNUTES OF NOnFleATlON. ~ 
BE RESPONSlB.lL FOIl PLA CING TEMPORA RY PAlIf:MENr MARKIW', .t RPM'S DURlI., NTERM£I):AT£ liFTS 

NO 600. MAIN TAIN TRA FFIC DUllJNC PL.ACO/JE.N '" TEMPORARY M 't;RMAN£NT PII'-fA/I!: U') 

MARKINGS iN ACCORf;JANCE l+!TII FOOT IN{)£X NO. 600 do 607. a 
UoAS APPRoPRIATE SHALL BE ADDE:O Kt;£RE CONSTRI~C TlON ACT/>, 15 IN THE IMMt:Di~ 'ClNI TY OF .' 

OR BUSiNESS ~ 
THAT CAN 8£ BACKFILLED IN ONE DAY WILL ~ ' Q>tfD. DROP-oFFS Gl?EA T£R THAJ't :1' IWLl 8E 

REMAIN AFTER WORK ENOS FOR THE DAY. THE op nOf ~, O£R " WENT AS INOICA TED IN IN{)£)( NO. 600 SHALL 
ENSURE NO DHOP-OFF GREAT£!? THAN ;; "MAINS AT " £N~ - THE IY. 

~ 	 I~~~J 
~C OO' Cd00' 	 OC 

~ FOR Tro.mc '0/. THROUGH WORK ioNE sa 1NDt:x 606 5£Ri<S . 

TEEN ROAO ADVANCED SIGNING DETAILOO~ p--, -.hP 
~ ~ 	 /....... 


-....s­ ~. 	 ~ND PRO.JE:Cr 
IT STA 147+25 

IlRAWNJ 8Y111OL8 

c.~ WORK ZON. 

~[ 

EJ I..,J""......J 


[JJ WOf?K ZONE SIGiI" ~Q 
. I~ t 

e .... 	 ....OSTEEN ReAD..... 	 ..... 
SlOB STREE'l' SIGNJlIIG DETAIL 

eEA&LE, l:JILLlolM5 ~ PAJL POPPELL RD 

WORK ZON! ~ ZON! Wl)lH 
WORK ZONE SPCED 'MDTH (Fr) 

60- 70 JO 
~5 24 

45-:50 'IJ 
JO-4D 14 

<.JO 

" 1.L SPEEDS 
CURB do GU TT£R OF CIJ.'?B 

~g 
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EX! c ... 

SIL T ,cENCE APPt.iCA TTON AT CROSS DRA,·.'<J EX7£NSl0N5 .t BRIDGES 
~ 
I ­

7Iot£ P'Q..t.CMNC N/!MIATt'.l£ OF ~ SJ'DIilII w.l1£Q i'Q.L.t.f"'" AA£~1KW PuJw 
CONTNNS .u£R£Na;S ro iHe IDtJT ~~s fDIf ffOA.D NIl) ~ 
IXWSl»t.:_. "'£ f}£SJC._ rT.u.o,,-'1O$ AJI() OI>l£R S1E'IS OF 7>eC """'IJO<ICII(W 
PlAJ('j. "'£ RRST ,sJI£f7 rF 710€ CONS~J P'~AN$ (I(EY SH££T') CON1AJN$ AN 
HJI:X ro P1£ D7k£II ~ 

1H!' ~-\.£1l' S'1D'IIII..At!JlI PQJ.U1'rGlIV ~naII Pf..AN !#Q.UlJt.'"S ~AL t TDIS: 
• 7>fS NNlRA.J'J \£ ~1 
• THt fJtfJCl/Ut.H TS ftO!7tDK.'EC N Y ~ "'A,Iit/fA '1l.C 
• 	7'H! CcW~jI,,1t)If'$" 4P'f'ROYW £l'OS1(;;N AIKJ SlJ:JIMCN r 'J:::pn~. ~ AS ffi:Ot.JtH£() 


itT' SP£($'1C.I. OOH S£C1I(,W ' lJ.4, 

• !tEPO'tTS 0/'. JI.ISPCC11CNs 1ttlA D&. DVII!NG awsnrJvcT.'OW. 

1 Q 	 SITE DESCl?IP TION' 

f Q 	 ~ l¥fO.£CT ('CNSfSTS (F ~ AND If[~Aa~ AN 9JS1WG P",\oo(p ROt4DWA r; 

~« A.NO ~... aE ~JIE"'75 


r.D 	 S£«JeNCf " ....A....c;;w S"O!t DlsnJ7'f!tIItIC AC n ..rn!'5. 

IN 7tC SCCllr':)\> 104 DrGSfCW ~ PI.tW. ~ combIC"mIi 9'ML.L. Pfl'OIClf .. fle"TI'\UD 
SEoo;>.'C£ OF ~ 1>£ ~ IS A uSf OF SOt ~.C7!..­
.r.c ntof1'!9" fOlf 1WS ctlYS1'JIrJCmW ~~ 

f AJ1TlJ IIlOIrJ( A.S$DOAl£D lMilJ fif'.ADIIA Y *,f)fMNG/RESUIi'I"A.a,'.'!;,. !iH(JIJHJ£f7S AJ.'O 
S......:!t. 
AtDIJJI¥(; QJ,AROR~.N.. AM) ~iJ""'u../lIi1'ER£D r."'D S£C7IONS TO SCliE.ICW'SS DRAW 
P!PC a.~ 

t, c M'CA !Sl1iII.a. e ­

r:;!'''''' SI TE ..t'"£A. 72' +/- ACR£S 
;or"" Ajl£A it) IE DtS~ J8. J +/ - AQIP£5' 

/" 	""~!)A':'"A: 

Ih;.~ C.Q£FFW.£Nys. 

flYORE ~) . Q)5 
N7'U/' ~:R~ t\ J5 TO a.J4"""""" Ii 1'f£ ~....ar:t£l.QIIIN(NT C(N:IfflCIN, WCS'T!»- TI-t£ ~ tJIif""IHS MTo i;IDI£R 1),1t ~ 1l.:H 
OR LOIf'-{.~ AREA$ ~ 10 1).£ P/lO.£cr. S()W£ fY 't)£ ~ "!U .wFX. n?~. 'Ii":?oIE 
CHtXIHDWA TEfl Br PERCQ. A T'I~ ANO Trl£ ~(j IW1.L B£ TRANS'POIIi£() Br St1:E£7)-1.0 .... AND 
:"HE ROADSO£ t:r1t"HtS ro ~ N£Mt9r ('(ITTA.lLS, 

, fl !In: II,aP! 

7H£ CO'-'5'~ Pt.A!~5 ,aPE 9&fC ..'SED ,as T)£ Sr!C UA.PS, :rJo£ Lee.,. TlON or 1)t 
oi£.(UiI£l) M"QIlI(AnoN L5 Df$CRf9(D 1£O*' 

·,aPP~... 'E SU:JO'!"5: 	 1)f! Si.~ (F »€" s"'l C(I.N If! saN ~y TH£ 

SEen"" -'lID ll£ C!'PIlS:< ~CT/QN ~7'i 


".AlMA.S c,; !.QI. r:r.irtMflA'l't:C..' 	 m£ AN£U Ttl ~~~ UWf'7!l) i ?AD......, "j 
CXWSJ;IinICi.'OY ..a '.rD /JRNIiM;£ MlPJtO~T. 

'LOC.Al OCN f.F 7l:~'" ccw1RQS: 	 CCN7POl..$"/&Ii£ filEr.JtR£I) ,. r AU. l~LlW(;'A.s 

ANlJ A.UA5 ADJM:.SIIT T'I? I5U"""S 


-R"E:"c.I..!UG ".AI llR,').· SQt(E OF 7J,r£ #fUIII1'" '"'''ltJ 1Jiif PRO.£CT ~ 'iRA 

'ACENT TO n-.c PR\ 'T. 

'-~WAlE"} ~E 

f'~.'f 

'1'1i1l'.t) IN '"'" -.r: t:IffIJt. 

20 CONIRO/ 5 

EROSION AJyD '"'i't.V.,S· 

-C1)Q; C7ED F;IJ(;R TV CO¥S1Jit.oC1)(W Acnwnrs 7UAT
"'" $JI/" rOIl .mM£. lZI!D oUP£4;s, $1t4IaP ___ NA~ SI'1AU.t.~ 
~c AS SOCH A! nGW!" ~ ctJI ...:IN A.CnM'nts H,&)O£ 
't. ..... r "" P!/OIAICf y ClSl" ,.". ...[ ~ NTlA~/) ~ 

') DIe'1S 1M" Cf""'" - AI'ifL Y S'TA/JILV£ *7H sao 
"""­ _ (F r'" IIOJ( CUI.~ ~ IKM QA, er-
UlV> A.'iD ..."": 

&0. 	 III •• (JIT 1H: oJ -~ ,a.!lf Uf6l'i'S5lllU' /f" iN ~ ct:t:JIfONICt' MTH 
Ga.' ~AC~ _ ......1lA~ UJUS '11I r 5r,v.0Nt0 €.lI¥ 
~ """J..C~ PffOlJUCf'... ~ IY 111t ~ fMl.'IIUR. ~ ST.&oUDSit ' '"'!: WAY" ~ St,I6$71-1V7llI1'OIf I'iAT BALlS" /It""1fKuE/) ity '3oiE ~ 

:;,&.1,1 S-TAL ~ JlW"A:cnc. 

TH£ ~ A.. a: M II.I::~ SlHIJtA.DIi.U ~~U /JJl. S"r~/ZU) If rH st:fIllNC A!m 
.w\.l.~ P£!IJI.... • sc;QlHC .aN/) QIlAssaw; $HALL Sf PlACED IJ1US$ D8lCCn;;o 
~., stZJ ,. ....... T IS PlAa:D CN .1 1 0It~?!JIP 5ff.A!ll tIC PLIX%D. 

S1'PA.>t>r." END .u.s SoofALL BE SODO£l) ~Ot"1El. 'f A.FTEl~ ~Y ARE ~ 'iOOOfNG 
S!-t"J..L BE I'l.A.t%t' IN ACCQIIIIl..oWa .. rtf iNDeX Nas. AN[) ~"1KW S£tT'lCJN'!;".1 ""'" llU 
J{)f Ail{) 'iI'1 
iN n..e' !LC1'iOtI '(}of ! )tO$I(W GQlt~ PLAN. Ti1£ a.:w m AC1tW SHALL (;J£SCIi'J8£ Tr£ 
sr.".,LCnGW ""AC1'ICE$ ~ 'I'D txMT11'OL EJiIC'.ISIt(;W. 

Ail STJ4/JA.JZJ, Ti()If PR.tCfT(C5 S/oMU ¥ w.:,'n.Al1CD or 1)£ CCW TR.... CTDf "'5 50QI 4S" PRA Cn(;.41. 
l!i AftA5 OF 1ii£".;J8 tII'H£R£ COVS'1Jft.C~ AC7it.f~ HAr/f ~"RI." OR ~r 
S7'f)'='PfD, 84JT H NO CAS( ~A1..L T;£ ors~ AR(.Ao 8£ L£F"T 1INPR01£t:1ED FOR tlORE r'.o.N 

1,0(."" (7j OA'rS 

l. o. r $. 111JJCTUIf.~ PRACT'J(;£;5; 

.. n.c rcc_ 1/)4 EJ>O!XJN Q;W""" PUN, K Q;W11IACTrJII S>W.L ~ "'< _ 
'l11fuC7IM... I'IIA<:TIC£S '" CON""'" at 11W' S£1JII<fJ;r AND 01Jf£1/MSt: _!.£NT ",. 
Dt9OMR()£ OF POLJ.v rANT'S Fff()AJ £XPO'5ED AREAS OF 7HE SfJ[. 'S£/JJII£Hr Ct)ttlma.5 ~AL/.. 
IJ£ ~ 1"tA.ct' IffJ't/ff£ I1/S'TI.JIffJ1N SOl. Ul'STII£AII 01' me ca nJrCl.. 7Hf SJJPI.IC'lLIP'AL 
PR.AC'1lCES .s;.,.ALl.. ftCLlKJ£ AT LiAS' 7N( FOtLOfttNG IJM.£SS 01)£Rili'SC APPRO'BJ B ';' M
COilNrr £NCJM!DeHC DlKSICW 1!.liflQIr'.6IP.: Y: 

• 	SYN 1J.IEnr. OA!.LS {)iR iML£ Tl'P£" IJARR;'El'5 9oIAU. e£ "''I ACfXJl1J)ANCi: iM'n.t TUE STAN{)A.R[} 
fI«X Ie» AND SFEC/RCII. 'nO't SEC1'JON lD-f. 

• 	smrHEOC tMI.£S CIt tIAU 1ft" ~~n:n ACOC"S $)fALL 8£ IltACflJ tJNC!)IA.T£LY 
uPS 7>1t'AII M n- (JJ/ lLSS) P' AU. """ 0RAJ0d '" I)ISnJRiIEI) _AS. 

• 	S~~ rotc 8AUS 011 ....1.£ T)1>( BA.~ am>, a.GO:S PAltN..Ul. TO n,c FI'CAf)".AI r ALONe 
.QI~ AS SIIOtfIN IN 7).(f PLIH$ OR AS Itf:OtAI£D {1Y THE S7'£C1TI:;A 11I:W.S. ~,U, F.f£ 
~ •• AlQnc:w..ct 1JAL£S IF MD1)(WAI. stA~AL itEi ...v¥.AS HA 'w£" ~ 
D/Cf;X.w1E1\'£tII VUR'.NC COHS1'flfJf;1JOIJ. 

.. 	 S'r'tn:I.£:DC gN.£5 OR Sot T ~ SH,lj,L (j£ /'LA.C£D ALOtiC AU RQ.4U~ DI'TDICS {.o.; 
~ A/f£AS ,.S 5I1fJttMf ON O1.Mr I. tJt:SKiH ST,I,,\j}~ IDL 

.. SM.- T IVICE.W A~'cr lIWi"N ~ S'TAIo'D:ARD t02 AND 2 c nON 104, ~Clf'.lCA T;":l 

• PfRJIAWi£.NTi .sea ~£(] ANO til 

lob s~..~ MANA(,£II£JJiT: 
£XtS'TtNC ~ om::t.£s &l « ua/2':.1.'I' ro c.YW\o!:Y ftUN!JFf', ,~ ;:wa OUTFALLs' TI?',f 
,. SIt r FE."iC! SHALl.. 8£ USED AT CROSS {)RA,J!i C 

Z,e Ci>1€R _~ 

1..c. 1 ~ Si'[ {JI'!POSAL 

ALL ItJII..$7r (£N£fi.A TED aN 7>-r. £cr94-"'tJ.. ~ ·~h "" -"r:-IA~.V 
AAEAS PiPOItGW BY 1-4" ~ '""'SED~ "'~.'N'C,.. .. T \' ,; r 1H£ ~ou.OJIWQ' 

"NO~H':- ~ rr IMU '* '""I ON SOt: .eiS7 81!: a: I..£c.a.u "" ...,• 	PRO'jIID ..JI CGW~ "'IIP cau..r. .,,,.. -C PROLCT t.. 
CO' .;;M A.C l11.4'1lI!:s. 

• 	iJr. ·'C· OF Jl,(.L FIJlTfJr '¥W' ()7)..J£11 Of: -iJfIf1fS ACCOIl'IJINC ro EPA'S 
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TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Countv Commission Aaenda Item 

SUBJECTffITLE: I THE BOARD TO APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2016 
! CAPITAL FUNDING REQUEST TO TRANSFER AN ADDITIONAL 
$4800 TO THE JAIL TO COVER UNANTICIPATED COSTS, AS 

• AGENDAED BY THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR. 

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: FEBRUARY 1, 2016 

Statement of Issue: IN THE APPROVED CAPITAL FUNDING PLAN FOR FY 
2016, THE BOARD APPROVED AN EXPENDITURE OF 
$10,000 TO REPAIR AND REPLACE LOCKS AT THE JAIL. 
AN EMERGENCY REPAIR OF THE SPRJNKLER SYSTEM 
NECESSITATES RESTORING THE FUNDS FOR THE 
LOCKS IN THE AMOUNT OF $4800. 

Recommended Action: 

Fiscal Impact: $4800 

Budgeted Expense: 

Submitted By: DUSTIN HINKEL, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 838-3500 X 7 

Contact: 
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL tiSSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Facts & Issues: 

Options: 

Attachments: 



TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Countv Commission Aaenda Item 

SUBJECTfTITLE: THE BOARD TO DISCUSS AND SET A DATE FOR A BUDGET 
PLANNING WORKSHOP, AS AGENDAED BY THE COUNTY 

iADMINISTRATOR 

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: FEBRUARY_1~,_20_1_6___________ ~________~ 

Statement of Issue: THE WORKSHOP WAS ORIGINALLY SET FOR JAN 22, 
2016, BUT WAS POSTPONED. A NEW DATE HAS YET TO 
BE DETERMINED. 

Recommended Action: 

Fiscal Impact: 

Budgeted Expense: 

Submitted By: DUSTIN HINKEL, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 838-3500 X 7 

Contact: 
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL I ISSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Facts & Issues: 

Options: 

Attachments: 



TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Countv Commission Aaenda Item 

SUBJECTffITLE: I Approve Taylor County 4-H Foundation Audit for the 2014-2015 
budget year and request first and second funds to be released 
to Taylor County 4-H Foundation. 

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: 

Statement of Issue: 

Recommended Action: Approve 4-H Foundation Account Audit and Release first 
quarter and second quarter funds. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Budgeted Expense: 

Submitted By: Clay Olson 

Contact: 850-838-3508 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL I ISSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Facts & Issues: 


Options: 


Attachments: 
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UFIFLORIOA 

IFAS EXTENSION 203 Forest Park Drive 
Taylor County Cooperative Extension Perry, FL 32348 

850-838-3508 
http://taylor.ifas.ufl.edu 

To: Tammy Taylor, Finance Director 

From: Clay Olson, County Extension Director 

Date: January 25,2016 

RE: Release of County Budgeted Funds 

The Taylor County 4-H Foundation's completed audit report for fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2015 was presented to the Taylor County Board of 
County Commissioners at their regular meeting on February 1, 2016. Upon 
their approval of this audit report and release of fiscal year 15/16 budgeted 
funds, please prepare a check for our first and second quarter funding allotment 
in the amount of $5,580.00. This will be account 0279-58211. 

Thank you for your help. 

The Foundation for The Gator Nation 
An Equal Opportunity Institution 

http:5,580.00


'to 

Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. 

Financial Statements & Supplementary Information 


For the Years Ended September 30,2015 and 2014 


Compton & Lee, CPAs, P A 
Certified Public Accountants 

1809 Miccosukee Commons Drive 

Suite 108 


Tallahassee, Florida 32308 


" 



.. 


Table of Contents 

Report of Independent Auditors..................................... . 


Statements of Financial Position .................................... '" 


Statements of Activities ................................................ .. 


Statements of Cash Flows............................................... 


Notes to Financial Statements ......................................... 


Page Number 

1 


3 


4 


5 


6 




• 


COMPTON & LEE, CPAS, PA 
Certified Public Accountants 

1809 Miccosukee Commons Drive 

Suite 108 


Tallahassee, Florida 32308 


Telephone (850) 422-1040 

Fax (850) 422-1042 


Report of Independent Auditors 

To the Board of Directors 

Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. 

203 Forest Park Drive 

Perry, Florida 32348 


Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Taylor 
County 4-H Foundation, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of September 30, 2015 
and 2014, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 



.. 


to the company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. as 
of September 30,2015 and 2014 and the results of its operations and cash flows 
for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Compton & Lee, CP.J\s, P.Jl 

Compton & Lee, CP As, P A 
Tallahassee, Florida 
January 8, 2016 
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Current Assets 
Cash 
Investments 

Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. 
Statements of Financial Position 

September 30,2015 and 2014 

Assets 
2015 

$ 30,166 
28,930 

$ 

2014 

24,697 
30,317 

Total Current Assets 59,096 55,014 

Property and Equipment 
Property and Equipment 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Property and Equipment 

Total Assets 

1,904 
(1,904) 

0 

$ 59,096 $ 

1,904 
(1,904) 

0 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

Total Liabilities 

$ 

0 0 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted: 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

59,096 

$ 59,096 $ 

55,014 

55,014 

Read Independent Auditor's Report 3 
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Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. 
Statements of Activities 

For the Years Ended September 30,2015 and 2014 

Unrestricted Support and Revenue 
Donations 
Taylor County Board Donation 
Youth Camps 
Other Program Fees and Revenue 
Investment Gain 

2015 

$ 14,332 
11,160 
26,468 

1,729 

~ 

$ 

2014 

18,764 
11,160 
27,771 

435 
4,017 

Total Support and Revenue 52,802 62,147 

Expenses 
Program Services: 

County Funds 
Youth Camps 
Other Program Expenses 

12,722 
24,895 
11,103 

14,228 
22,681 
12,002 

Total Expenses 48,720 48,911 

Change in Unrestricted Net Assets 4,082 13,236 

Unrestricted Net Assets, Beginning of Year 55,014 41,778 

Unrestricted Net Assets, End of Year $ 59,096 $ 55,014 

Read Independent Auditor's Report 4 
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Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 

2015 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Change in Net Assets $ 4,082 
Adjustments to reconcile change: 

(Increase) Decrease in: 
Unrealized Gain on Investments 1,387 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 5,469 

$ 

2014 

13,236 

(3,018) 

10,218 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

5,469 

24,697 

$ 30,166 $ 

10,218 

14,479 

24,697 

Read Independent Auditor's Report 5 



Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2015 


Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of the Organization 

The Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. (Organization) was organized to extend 
agricultural education to rural youth by organizing boys and girls clubs and 
through "learning by doing". 

Basis ofAccounting 

The Organization's books are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Basis ofPresentation 

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, the Organization is required to report information regarding its 
financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: 
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assts, and permanently 
restricted net assets. There were no temporarily restricted or permanently 
restricted net assets as of September 30,2015 and 2014. 

Cash Equivalents 

The Organization considers all unrestricted highly liquid investments with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Income Taxes 

The Organization is exempt from state and federal income taxes under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Therefore, no provision for income taxes 
has been recorded. 

6 




Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 


September 30, 2015 


Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Contributed assets are reported at 
fair market value as of the date received. Additions, improvements, and other 
capital outlays that exceed a threshold of $500 and which significantly extend the 
useful life of the asset are capitalized. All property and equipment are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated lives of the assets. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

Donated Materials and Services 

Donated materials and equipment are reflected as contributions in the 
accompanying statements at their estimated values at date of receipt. No 
amounts have been reflected in the statement for donated services, as no 
objective basis is available to measure the value of such services; however, a 
substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time 
in the Organization's program services. 

Investments 

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily 
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values 
in the statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included 
in the change in net assets in the accompanying statement of activities. 

The origin of the investments were a donation from Taylor County Community 
Friends upon the dissolution of the Non-Profit. 

7 




Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 


September 30, 2015 


Note A - Designated Current Assets 

The Organization's operating funds are listed as cash in the current assets and 
are encumbered funds for current 4H programming and backpack programming. 
The funds are designated as follows: 

2015 2014 
Current 4H Programming Funds $13,912 $9,075 
Backpack Programming Funds 16,254 15,622 
Total Cash $30)66 $24,697 

Note B - Concentrations of Credit Risk 

The Organization maintains their operating, mutual funds and money market 
accounts at a Florida financial institution. Accounts at the institution are insured 
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. There are no 
uninsured cash balances as of September 30,2015 or 2014. 

Note C - Equipment 

The Organization's fixed assets at September 30,2015 and 2014 consist of the 
following: 

Data Processing Equipment 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Net Book Value 

8 




UFIFLoRIiJA 

IFAS EXTENSION 203 Forest Park Drive 
Taylor County Cooperative Extension Perry, FL 32348 

850-838-3508 
http://taylor.ifas.ufl.edu 

To: Tammy Taylor, Finance Director 

From: Clay Olson, County Extension Director 

Date: January 25,2016 

RE: Release of County Budgeted Funds 

The Taylor County 4-H Foundation's completed audit report for fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2015 was presented to the Taylor County Board of 
County Commissioners at their regular meeting on February 1, 2016. Upon 
their approval of this audit report and release of fiscal year 15116 budgeted 
funds, please prepare a check for our first and second quarter funding allotment 
in the amount of $5,580.00. This will be account 0279-58211. 

Thank you for your help. 

The Foundation for The Gator Nation 
An Equal Opportunity Institution 

http:5,580.00
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• • • COMPTON & LEE, CPAS, PA 
~ Certified Public Accountants 

] 809 Miccosukee Commons Drive 
Suite 108 

Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

Telephone (850) 422-1040 
Fax (850) 422-1042 

Report of Independent Auditors 

To the Board of Directors 
Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. 
203 Forest Park Drive 
Perry, Florida 32348 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Taylor 
County 4-H Foundation, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of September 30,2015 
and 2014, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 



ill' 

... 

to the company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
company's internal controL Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of Significant accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. as 
of September 30, 2015 and 2014 and the results of its operations and cash flows 
for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Comyton & Lee, CP.J\s, P.Jt 

Compton & Lee, CP As, P A 
Tallahassee, Florida 
January 8, 2016 
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Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. 


Statements of Financial Position 

September 30,2015 and 2014 


•• 	
Assets 

• 
2015 

Current Assets 

•• 
Cash $ 30,166 
Investments 28,930 

• Total Current Assets 	 59,096 

• Property and Equipment 

• 
Property and Equipment 1,904 
Accumulated Depreciation {1,904}• 

~ 

i 
~ 

2014 	 1 

, I, 

~ 
$ 	 24,697 

30,317 .. ~ 
f, 

i 
55,014 

t 
" ~ 

1,904 

{1,904} 


• 
 4' 


• 
,


Total Property and Equipment 	 0 0 ,~ 

• 	
r 
J

Total Assets 	 $ 59,096 $ 55,014 ~ 

• 	
! 
! 

Liabilities and Net Assets ! 
~ 

•• 
• 	 I 

[ 

f 

, 
Current Liabilities [• 

Accounts Payable 	 $ $ 

• 	
t 

Total Liabilities 	 0 0 
~ 

•• 
Net Assets 

Unrestricted: 59,096 55,014 

• 	 I 
t 
1 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 	 $ 59,096 $ 55,014 

• 	
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Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. e r 
Statements of Activities 1• For the Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 ,

,• 
•• 

Unrestricted Support and Revenue 
Donations 

• 
• 


Taylor County Board Donation 


• 

Youth Camps 

Other Program Fees and Revenue 


• 
 Investment Gain 


• Total Support and Revenue 


•
• Expenses 


• 

Program Services: 


County Funds 

Youth Camps 

Other Program Expenses 

Total Expenses 

•• Change in Unrestricted Net Assets 

• Unrestricted Net Assets, Beginning of Year 

•• Unrestricted Net Assets, End of Year 

••••••••••• 
• Read Independent Auditor's Report 4• 
• 

2015 

$ 14,332 
11,160 
26,468 
1,729 
(887) 

52,802 

12,722 
24,895 
11,103 

48,720 


4,082 


55,014 


2014 • 
~ 
f. 
~' 

~ ,~$ 18,764 
i11,160 I 

27,771 
435 f 

i;4,017 
~ 

i 
62,147 

f 

14,228 f 
22,681 I 
12,002 

48,911 I 
r 

13,236 t 
f 
I. 

41,778 t 
$ 59,096 $ 55,014 l 
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Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. 

Statements of Cash Flows 


For the Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 


2015 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Change in Net Assets $ 4,082 
Adjustments to reconcile change: 

(Increase) Decrease in: 
Unrealized Gain on Investments 1,387 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 5,469 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5A69 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 24,697 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 30J66 

Read Independent Auditor's Report 5 

2014 

$ 13,236 

(3,018) 
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Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. t 
Notes to Financial Statements i

September 30, 2015 I 
i 
t 

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 	 I 
t 
f

Nature of the Organization 
l. 
t 
iThe Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. (Organization) was organized to extend 
tagricultural education to rural youth by organizing boys and girls clubs and 	 ! 

i
t 

through "learning by doing" . 
t 
t 
I 
~ 

Basis ofAccounting ~ 
J 
~ I,

The Organization's books are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. 
f 

I 
tBasis ofPresentation 

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, the Organization is required to report information regarding its 
financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: l
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assts, and permanently 

restricted net assets. There were no temporarily restricted or permanently i

l' 


restricted net assets as of September 30,2015 and 2014. 


Cash Equivalents 

The Organization considers all unrestricted highly liquid investments with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Income Taxes i 
The Organization is exempt from state and federal income taxes under Section I501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Therefore, no provision for income taxes 	 ~ 

Ihas been recorded. ~ 
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~ Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. I 
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

September 30, 2015 \ 

IProperty and Equipment & 

I 
t

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Contributed assets are reported at 
fair market value as of the date received. Additions, improvements, and other 
capital outlays that exceed a threshold of $500 and which significantly extend the ~ 

useful life of the asset are capitalized. All property and equipment are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated lives of the assets. I 
Estimates iThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to !make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 

I 
i" 

disclosures. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

Donated Materials and Seroices I 
Donated materials and equipment are reflected as contributions in the 
accompanying statements at their estimated values at date of receipt. No i 
amounts have been reflected in the statement for donated services, as no 
objective basis is available to measure the value of such services; however, a 
substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time 
in the Organization's program services. 

Investments 

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily 
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values 
in the statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included 
in the change in net assets in the accompanying statement of activities. 

The origin of the investments were a donation from Taylor County Community 
Friends upon the dissolution of the Non-Profit. 
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Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. 
} 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
September 30, 2015 

1 

t 
INote A - Designated Current Assets 

I 
I 

The Organization's operating funds are listed as cash in the current assets and 
are encumbered funds for current 4H programming and backpack programming. 
The funds are designated as follows: 

Current 4H Programming Funds 
Backpack Programming Funds 
Total Cash 

Note B - Concentrations of Credit Risk 

2015 
$13,912 
16,254 
$30,166 

The Organization maintains their operating, mutual funds and money market 
faccounts at a Florida financial institution. Accounts at the institution are insured 

.J!§ 	
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. There are no 
uninsured cash balances as of September 30, 2015 or 2014. 

Note C - Equipment 

The Organization's fixed assets at September 30, 2015 and 2014 consist of the I 
following: 

Data Processing Equipment 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Net Book Value I 

I 
I 

2014 j 
~$9,075 


15,622 

$24,697 
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TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

County Commission Aaenda Item 

SUBJECTrrITLE: I THE BOARD TO APPROVE THE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
FOR ARCHITECTURAL FIRM TO DESIGN A COMMUNITY 

CENTER FOR SHADY GROVE, AS AGENDAED BY THE 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR. 

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: FEBRUARY 1, 2016 


Statement of Issue: 

Recommended Action: 

Fiscal Impact: 

Budgeted Expense: 

Submitted By: DUSTIN HINKEL, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 838-3500 X 7 

Contact: 
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ISSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Facts & Issues: 


Options: 


Attachments: 




! 

J2- I 
i 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Countv Commission Aaenda Item 

i SUBJECTffITLE: I THE BOARD TO REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORATION' S (FOOT) WORK 
PROGRAM PRIORITIES AND TAKE ANY ACTION DEEMED 
NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE, AS AGENDAED BY THE 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR. 

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: FEBRUARY 1, 2016 

Statement of Issue: 

Recommended Action: 

Fiscal Impact: 

Budgeted Expense: 

Submitted By: DUSTIN HINKEL, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 838-3500 X 7 

Contact: 
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL I ISSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Facts & Issues: 


Options: 


Attachments: 
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